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Chairman’s Statement
FERS

The Chairman of Green Global Resources Limited, Mr. Tse Michael Nam at Laos Jatropha plantation.
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BREAKING NEW GROUND FOR THE NEXT
GENERATION

During 2008, we successfully consolidated into the Group various green
investments we commenced in 2007, and established a framework for the
development of our new focus on environmentally friendly agricultural-
based businesses. We have concentrated our efforts on two main areas:
agro-conservation and bioenergy, which we have identified as sectors
with tremendous potential. This new business focus is consonant with
our aspiration to be a sustainable organization in social, environmental
and economic terms. As such, we are creating value not only for our
shareholders and other stakeholders but also for society as a whole.

We are delighted to see our vision being transformed into reality in 2008,
but we are alert to the formidable challenges ahead as commodities
markets continue to fluctuate wildly. We will proceed cautiously and with
flexibility in the pace of our operations and business developments. The
Group continues to hold a long-term perspective on the green sector,
and pledges its commitment to and resources in this sector.
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PARTNERSHIPS CONNECTING TO SUCCESS
Partnership is the key to our success and our unique public-private
partnership (“PPP") model is a distinctive part of our competence.

The PPP business model is based on a common goal of furthering
meaningful causes such as land preservation and energy conservation.
This model connects private enterprises like the Group to highly restricted
sectors through collaboration with government-supported or academic
institutions and is extended to benefit local farmers and other local
communities through mutually beneficial outsourcing schemes. These
outsourcing schemes provide jobs such as cultivation and other manual
work to local farmers and communities, hence creating stable incomes for
them, enhancing their living standards and improving local economies.

Interfacing with our local partners has been valuable and constructive,
and we will continue to actively participate in the management of, and
add value to, the various joint ventures that we have established.
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Green Global's licorice plantation in Ordos, Inner Mongolia.
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GROWING OUR BUSINESSES

Agro-conservation

The primary efforts of our agro-conservation activities centre on the
cultivation of licorice and salix, which are valuable, both for their anti-
desertification properties and their extensive range of commercial uses.

Demand and supply dynamics continue to underpin the commercial value
of licorice. Apart from being one of the most widely used natural products
in the world, laboratory testing has revealed that licorice flavonoids, a
major active component of licorice, are among the most effective anti-
oxidant, detoxifying and anti-ulcer substances. Other laboratory tests
indicate that licorice hydrophobic flavonoids have favourable abdominal-
fat-lowering and hypoglycemic effects. These discoveries are expected to
drive further demand for licorice.

While commercial demand for licorice roots has increased steadily in
past years, supplies in China have been under pressure because of the
diminishing output of wild-grown licorice and a dearth of planted licorice.
Organized and large-scale cultivation of licorice will ensure a stable supply
and quality of licorice roots, while contributing to national efforts in land
preservation and anti-desertification.

In recent years, many governments have encouraged the production and
use of environmentally friendly biofuel, including cellulosic ethanol which is
produced from lignocellulose, or plant biomass. According to the United
States government studies, cellulosic ethanol reduces greenhouse gas
emissions by 85% over reformulated gasoline. Salix is a highly efficient
source of biomass material because of its high productivity per acre and, as
such, is highly sought after as a feedstock for cellulosic ethanol.
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Every year, China loses over one million acres of arable land to
desertification, and the resulting water shortage has become critical.
China now suffers from a shortfall of 30 billion cubic metres of water
for irrigation every year. While China has more than 20% of the world’s
population, it has only 7% of the earth’s arable land. Hence, the
encroachment of the desert on this precious farmland, which could result
in higher food prices and food shortages, is a matter of grave concern.
The Chinese government authorities acknowledge desertification as the
biggest environmental challenge impeding sustainable development, and
have pledged to control China’s spreading deserts, which already cover a
fifth of the country’s land.

According to China’s State Forestry Administration, 500,000 square
kilometres of the country’s deserts have the potential to be reclaimed.
In 2006, China’s government announced a desert control scheme aimed
at reclaiming half of this land by 2020. The Group is committed to
being a part of this national effort to halt the spread of desertification,
aquifer depletion and general land degradation. As such, the Group
has concluded a cooperation agreement for the cultivation of salix and
licorice in Inner Mongolia. Shareholders can find a more detailed account
of the progress of our agro-conservation business in the Management
Discussion and Analysis section.

Bioenergy

Despite recent declines, commodity and energy prices are still high by
historical standards and are expected to remain near their current levels
during 2009, according to International Monetary Fund economists.
The adverse effects of high fuel prices, compounded by fallout from the
current global financial crisis, increase the need to develop renewable
energy.
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Mature salix plantations are ready for harvesting.
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High yield of Jatropha fruit on a mature tree.
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Widespread concern over the environment has resulted in government
initiatives to induce power generation and distribution businesses to go
green. The developed world is aiming at an 80% carbon reduction, while
the developing world eyes a 50% reduction by 2050. The outlook for
renewable energy remains strong, and biofuel in particular has enormous
potential in Asia. China aims to invest RMB2 trillion by 2020 in its mid-
and long-term development plan for renewable energy, and has set a
target of making renewable energy account for 15% of the country’s
total primary energy consumption by 2020. India has also set aside 100
million acres for Jatropha, and expects the oil to account for 20% of
its diesel consumption by 2011. Australia, Brazil and Kenya have also
embraced plans for the development of renewable energy. The Group's
strategic investments in the bioenergy sector address these governments’
concerted efforts to achieve sustainable development in the energy
sector.

This green power initiative is manifested in the United States under the
Obama-Biden comprehensive “New Energy for America” plan, which will
include a public sector investment of US$150 billion over the next ten
years to catalyze private efforts to develop a clean energy future. The
Obama administration has pledged to ensure that 10% of the country’s
electricity will come from renewable sources by 2012, and 25% by 2025.
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The Group seeks to satisfy a portion of the world’s increased demand
for renewable energy resources and the social goals of sustainability
and land management. Biodiesel is currently one of the world’s most
practical renewable energy resources. With appropriate feedstock,
this highly desirable alternative fuel provides a more affordable source
of clean and renewable energy. Among all biofuel sources, Jatropha,
dubbed the “dream fuel”, has the advantage of growing in unfavourable
soils, making it non-competitive with food crops for arable land. This is
particularly important to energy-starved developing nations struggling to
produce sufficient quantities of both fuel and food. In addition, biofuel
processed from Jatropha emits negligible greenhouse gases, and Jatropha
trees can capture four tons of carbon dioxide per acre.

Underlining the promising future of Jatropha, in December 2008 a
Boeing 747 was successfully test-flown by Air New Zealand using a 50-50
blend of Jatropha oil and aviation fuel, adding to the extensive uses of
this crop. Subsequently, several other commercial airlines have conducted
test-flights of planes powered by fuels containing Jatropha.

The Group has established pilot bases for its bioenergy businesses in
Hainan, China, and Laos, both of these locations enjoy tremendous
advantages. Hainan’s combination of warm temperatures and substantial
annual rainfall is ideal for the cultivation of Jatropha. Similarly, the climate
of Laos is very suitable for the cultivation of Jatropha. Moreover, Laos has
plentiful supply of inexpensive land and farm labour to support Jatropha
plantations.

An overall positive outlook for our Jatropha curcas-based bioenergy
businesses in Hainan and Laos stems from the convergence of several
factors, including the world’s focus on clean energy, constraints on
supplies of fossil fuel; the advantageous locations of our operations, and
the strong government support we have received.
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The Chairman of Green Global Resources Limited, Mr.
Tse Michael Nam, and Green Global’s newly appointed
Chief Agronomist, Professor Yao Fu De, at his Jatropha
research laboratory.
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CONTINUED ENHANCEMENT OF PROFILE AND
CAPABILITIES

While our achievements during 2008 suggest an encouraging future for
our agro-conservation and bioenergy businesses, in light of the global
financial crisis we intend to be conservative in our operations, investments
and accounting approaches to mitigate risks.

| am delighted to announce the appointment of Professor Yao Fu De as
our Chief Agronomist. A graduate of the University of Massachusetts,
Amherst, in the United States, with a post-doctoral degree in
microbiology, Professor Yao is able to apply the maximum scope of his
experience in advising us on Jatropha plantation matters. Based in China,
Professor Yao is engaged in research on Jatropha and algae for renewable
energy applications.

We are also pleased to report our participation in China Renewable
Energy Society, a prestigious body established under China’s Bioenergy
Association to promote national research, application, education and
management efforts. This body brings together the country’s leading
professionals in a powerful forum for combined research efforts in the
sector. Our acceptance into this body bears testimony to our stature and
will help advance our presence in the industry.

During the year, the Group has also participated as a corporate member
in the International Conference on Bioenergy Technologies (ICBT) 2008
held in Guangzhou, China, as part of our efforts to enhance our industry
profile.

We will continue to build on our existing portfolio of assets and invest in
our green businesses.

APPRECIATION

We have made conscious decisions to restructure, invest in and create
value for our shareholders to offset the unprecedented macro challenges.
Our business re-engineering process could not be successful without the
full support of our devoted and professional team members. In closing,
and on behalf of the Board, | offer my sincere appreciation to our staff,
management team, partners and all others who worked with us during
2008. With talented teams working in each of our businesses, we are
well placed to capitalize on the opportunities and challenges that will
arise in 2009 and beyond.

Tse Michael Nam
Chairman

Hong Kong, 20th April, 2009
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Management Discussion & Analysis
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The Jatropha nursery at the Laos demostration plantation.
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
The Group’s continuing operations reported a turnover of approximately
HK$109,154,000 for the year ended 31st December, 2008 (2007:
approximately HK$66,635,000), despite the severe economic headwinds
generated by the global financial crisis.

The Group’s strategic re-focus on agro-conservation and bioenergy
businesses helped improve its turnover as a result of the new source
of income generated from the sale of Jatropha saplings amounting to
approximately HK$45,833,000 (2007: Nil).

During 2008, the Group derived management services income of
approximately HK$8,287,000 (2007: approximately HK$7,467,000)
from its agro-conservation segment. Although the amount of this
management services income was lower than the amount of minimum
guaranteed income warranted by the guarantors of Green Global Salix
China Limited at the time of the acquisition of that company, because of
such shortfall the guarantors are liable to pay the Group HK$70,000,000
under the guarantee. This will essentially result in a reduction of our
acquisition cost for that company. The agro-conservation and bioenergy
sectors also contributed biological asset gains aggregating approximately
HK$77,802,000 (2007: approximately HK$11,255,000) and operating
profits of approximately HK$15,841,000 before impairments (2007:
approximately HK$3,023,000).
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Management Discussion & Analysis
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Gross profit and gross profit margin decreased to approximately
HK$9,429,000 and 9% from HK$12,398,000 and 19% in 2007
respectively, mainly as a result of the accounting treatment in recognising
the changes in the fair value of the jatropha saplings in the cost of sales.

Even though the Group generated a higher turnover for 2008, the overall
loss for the year from continuing operations amounted to approximately
HK$198,052,000 (2007: approximately HK$41,972,000), primarily as
the result of the impairment of goodwill in respect of the acquisitions of
Green Global Licorice China Limited and Green Global Salix China Limited
amounting to HK$74,039,000 and of intangible assets amounting to
HK$145,823,000. The business values of these two subsidiaries and
the fair value of their intangible assets were based on the valuation
reports issued by Greater China Appraisal Limited (“Greater China”),
an independent professional valuer. The decision to impair the carrying
amounts of the goodwill and the intangible assets was made by the
Board after taking into consideration Greater China’s reports, the failure
to meet the minimum guaranteed income amount guaranteed on the
acquisition of Green Global Salix China Limited, our transition from
harvesting wild to cultivated crops in Inner Mongolia, and the severity of
the global financial and economic crisis.

Loss per share from continuing operations for 2008 was approximately
HK115 cents, compared with a loss of approximately HK47 cents per
share in 2007 (as adjusted for the rights issue and share consolidation).

FINAL DIVIDEND
The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
year ended 31st December, 2008 (2007: Nil).

REVIEW OF CORE BUSINESSES

During 2008, the Group made progress in business and corporate
developments, following its re-focus into the agro-conservation and
bioenergy sectors. The transformation of the Group’s business focus and
direction was accentuated by the Company’s new name, "“Green Global
Resources Limited”, which became effective in April 2008. The new
name signifies our vision for long-term growth and profitability based on
a socially and environmentally sustainable path, one that is also aligned
with government policies worldwide.

The Group's network of partnerships expanded further in 2008 with
the signing of several cooperation agreements with public and private
entities for the joint development of our agro-conservation and bioenergy
businesses.
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Mixed grade licorice harvested, processed and ready for sale.
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Our joint ventures in Hainan and Laos have made good progress in
the cultivation of Jatropha curcas saplings and the subsequent sales of
such saplings to local partners for further cultivation. Transplantations
of saplings by these local partners were conducted successfully in both
Hainan and Laos during the year.

The Group also made steady progress in its agro-conservation business as
it continued to expand its plantation of licorice and salix and transitioned
from harvesting wild to cultivated crops.

AGRO-CONSERVATION

The Group's vehicles for driving the development of its agro-conservation
businesses in Inner Mongolia are Green Global Licorice China Limited and
Green Global Salix China Limited. These two companies are held under
Green Global Agro-Conservation Resources Limited (“Green Global Agro-
Conservation”); together these three companies are referred to as the
GG Agro-Conservation Group.

GG Agro-Conservation Group

It is estimated that desertification as a result of overexploitation and land
mismanagement costs the Chinese government billions of United States
dollars each year. Inner Mongolia, one of the driest locations on earth,
stands on the front line of China’s battle against desertification. This
has prompted the Chinese government to encourage private sector anti-
desertification projects in this region.
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Management Discussion & Analysis

B E S LT

Our partner in Inner Mongolia, A & KB EHEIAPEZEER AR (Inner
Mongolia Tian Lan Technology Sand Control Estate Limited*) (“Tian
Lan”), has entered into an agreement with the Municipal Government
of Hang Jin Qi (#1%858) for the cultivation of 5,000,000 Chinese mu
(~333,000 hectares) of salix between 2008 and 2012 and 200,000
Chinese mu (~13,300 hectares) of licorice between 2008 and 2010 (the
“5532 Project”). Further to this agreement, the Municipal Government of
Hang Jin Qi agreed to assign land use rights to Tian Lan for the cultivation
of salix and licorice, both of which have good commercial value in
addition to being effective in preventing desertification. The Group,
through its wholly-owned subsidiary Green Global Agro-Conservation,
has joined hands with Tian Lan under a Cooperation Agreement (the
“Inner Mongolia Cooperation Agreement”) to implement the 5532
Project.

Upon the commissioning of the 5532 Project, Green Global Agro-
Conservation collaborated with the Academy of Forest Inventory and
Planning (the "AFIP”) for the overall project design. The AFIP, a direct
subsidiary of the State Forestry Administration of China, is a pre-eminent
national research institution engaged in technical project design and
development of national environmental projects. This collaboration will
enhance the status of the 5532 Project and further attests that the plan
meets the ecological conservation and anti-desertification requirements
set by the Company, the Inner Mongolian Government, the Municipal
Government of Hang Jin Qi, and the Chinese National Government.

In recognition of Tian Lan’s achievements and contribution to the
country’s anti-desertification works, the company was named by the
State Forestry Administration’s Anti-desertification office as one of the
“Top 10 Sand Industry Enterprises” in China at China’s First Sand Industry
Summit in August 2008.

* The English transliteration of this Chinese name is for reference only
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Our cooperation partner in the 5532 Project, Tian Lan,
was recognized as one of China’s Top 10 Sand Industry
Enterprises. Mr. Li Hong, the General Manager of Tian
Lan accepting the award.
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Licorice

Licorice is a kind of desert vegetation that is also an essential ingredient
in many traditional Chinese medicines. The multiplex chemistry of licorice
gives it a wide spectrum of properties, for use in a diverse range of food,
candy, cosmetics and other health products. The licorice plant penetrates
deep into the soil, helping to prevent soil erosion and enabling it to
withstand the harsh conditions of desert areas.

Local and national government entities are supportive of the private
sector’s involvements in land management and conservation efforts in
order to prevent unlawful and ecologically harmful practices. Through
the GG Agro-Conservation Group, the Company employs its PPP business
model to assist government authorities in such efforts.

During 2008, the GG Agro-Conservation Group completed the planting
of 50,000 Chinese mu (~3,300 hectares) of licorice (9 months in 2007:
8,000 Chinese mu (~530 hectares)) bringing the total cultivated area to
58,000 Chinese mu (~3,830 hectares).

Salix

Salix, or sand willow, is a low growing shrub which spreads widely
across the ground, and is indigenous to Inner Mongolia. Salix may also
be cultivated, most notably for its erosion control characteristics. The
interlacing roots of the salix plant protect the soil against the erosive
action of wind and water. Easy to cultivate, salix takes root readily from
cuttings.

Workers processing the harvested licorice.
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Salix is @ major raw material for fiber board and paper pulp making,
and a biomass fuel for power plants. Salix is also rapidly expanding as a
lignocellulosic biomass feedstock for synthesizing bio-ethanol fuel. In view
of global concerns over the scarcity of fossil fuel, large scale projects to
support salix development as an energy crop have already been established
in developed countries. In China, salix is increasingly viewed as a viable
renewable resource, as well as an important anti-desertification agent.

During 2008, GG Agro-Conservation Group planted approximately
180,000 Chinese mu (~12,000 hectares) of salix (2007: 200,000 Chinese
mu (~13,300 hectares)) in Inner Mongolia, bringing the total cultivated
area to approximately 380,000 Chinese mu (~25,300 hectares).

OVERALL RESULTS FOR THE AGRO-CONSERVATION
SECTOR

In 2008, the agro-conservation business segment generated income
of approximately HK$8,287,000 (2007: approximately HK$7,467,000)
from the provision of management services for the cultivation of salix
and licorice. In addition, biological asset gains from the cultivation of
licorice and salix amounted to approximately HK$36,930,000 (2007:
approximately HK$7,690,000), as estimated by Greater China, on the
basis of the fair value of these two crops less estimated point-of-sale
costs with reference to the most recent market transaction prices.

Green Global Resources Limited 4% IR &R ER A 7

GPS verification and recording of the salix plantation size.
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BIOENERGY

While a chronic shortage of conventional energy resources is the main
driver behind China’s push for renewable energy, the country is also
making the transition out of environmental concerns. The Chinese
government has pledged to integrate development and conservation,
giving priority to the latter. As such, China’s path for sustainable
development must include energy from renewable resources, which
are abundant and largely untapped in China. Exploitation of biomass
energy has recently commenced, but the pace of adoption is already
noticeable. China’s renewable energy development has grown at annual
averages of more than 20% over the past few years. Other countries are
also pursuing alternative energy sources, driven both by concerns over
greenhouse gas emissions and by continuing high prices of fossil fuels.
India, Australia, Brazil and Kenya are all investing in renewable energy,
and the new Obama administration in the United States has also pledged
to increase efforts to develop sustainable energy sources.

Jatropha seeds contain a large concentration of oil with an ideal
biodiesel profile. Once extracted, the oil can be used as fuel without
further refining, making it an appealing option in the world’s quest for
alternative and renewable fuels. Additionally, as Jatropha is drought-
resistant and can grow on marginal land, it offers the possibility of an
economically, socially and environmentally sustainable contribution to
energy security challenges. It also aligns with the Chinese government’s
alternative energy policy, which prohibits activities that use edible crops as
feedstock or that affect farm produce.

Workers preparing the land for our Jatropha nursery
in Hainan, PRC.
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The Group’s Jatropha curcas-based bioenergy business includes
operations in Hainan through Hainan Venture Zhengke Bioenergy
Development Company Limited* (Bm % & FERIAWEERER A F)
(“Hainan Venture”), and in Laos through Lao Agro Promotion Co., Ltd.
(“Lao-Agro”).

Hainan Venture

To tap the promising market for bioenergy feedstock, Hainan Venture
was established in late 2007 as a 90%:10% joint venture between
the Group and dt B FIERIEHEHBR A A (Beijing Oriental Zhengke
Technology Company Limited*), a PRC company which invests in,
operates and researches into bioenergy businesses. Hainan Venture is
the Group’s vehicle to drive its Jatropha-based bioenergy businesses in
Hainan.

Hainan Venture completed the plantation of Jatropha nurseries covering
an area of approximately 625 Chinese mu (~42 hectares) in 2008 (2007:
150 Chinese mu (~10 hectares)) with technical assistance from the
Sichuan University College of Life Sciences. The saplings in these nurseries
grew well and were qualified for sale after approximately 3 months of
growth. Transplantation of these saplings to larger farm lands was carried
out by the Hainan Partner during the year. These transplanted young
Jatropha trees have already commenced flowering and bearing fruits.

To accelerate its development in China, Hainan Venture has hired
experienced plantation managers to undertake Jatropha cultivation
experiments in a newly established demonstration site in Hainan. We are
confident of the project’s prospects of becoming a showcase for China’s
embrace of renewable energy.
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Jatropha trees in the demonstration plantation site during the dry season.

R R B A R R A IE R ©

* The English transliteration of this Chinese name is for reference only
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Lao-Agro

In 2007, the Group extended its bioenergy business activities from China
to Laos through its 80%-held subsidiary Lao-Agro. Our local partners
include a Laotian enterprise, Charoen Phattana Group, and the Lao
Disabled People’s Association, making this venture another PPP business
model.

On 26th March, 2008, Lao-Agro entered into a Cooperation Agreement
(the “Lao Cooperation Agreement”) with the Lao National Authority
for Science and Technology (“NAST”) to establish three fully-equipped
centers to perform in-depth research and development of Jatropha curcas
for the production of biodiesel, as well as studying the potential use of
other agricultural crops as biofuel.

The project will include a Tissue Culture Center, for which construction
commenced in March 2009, and a demonstration site, which has already
been established to conduct cultivation experiments.

The Company’s presence in Laos via Lao-Agro will act as a platform for
further development and commercialization of Jatropha in Laos and other
Greater Mekong Sub-region countries. It also acts as a social agent to
drive the revitalization of local communities and creation of employment
opportunities.

Laos VIPs visiting our demonstration plantation site — from
left: Ms. Keophayvanh Insixiengmai, Deputy Head of the
Science and Technology Research Institute; Mr. Chatturong
Nakhavith, Member in Charge of Economic Affairs of Lao
Government Secretariat of the Prime Minister's Office;
Mr. Vongphet Xaykeuyachongtoua, President of the Lao
Trade Union; Mr. Khamsing Singhatheb, President of
the Lao Farm Bio-product Association; Dr. Xaysomphone
Phomvihane, Vice President of the National Assembly
of the Lao PDR; Professor Bountiem Phissamay, Minister
to the Prime Minister’'s Office and President of the Lao
National Authority for Science and Technology; Mr.
Khammanh Sayaseng, President of Mekong Agro-Industry
Co., Ltd.; General Phonexay Chaleunsouk, President of Lao
Agriculture Research & Development Association.
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As such, management has met with officials from the northern provinces
of Laos, and representatives of Mekong Agro-Industry Co., Ltd. and China
Overseas Oil & Mineral Resources Investment Limited (CORIL), to discuss
the possibility of expanding our plantation northwards. Initial discussions
have been productive, and we have exchanged ideas on the country’s
implementation of new forestry laws to encourage local participation in
order to improve the quality of living of farmers.

Lao-Agro completed four Jatropha nurseries in three provinces across
the country, covering a total area of approximately 825 Chinese mu (~55
hectares) in 2008 (2007: Nil). These nurseries produced over 14,000,000
saplings during the year which were sold to Lao-Agro’s local partner
for transplantation. Its local partner, under Lao-Agro’s supervision, has
transplanted Jatropha saplings onto an area of approximately 135,000
Chinese mu (~9,000 hectares) (2007: Nil). The young Jatropha trees have
been growing well since their transplantation and are already flowering.

OVERALL RESULTS FOR THE BIOENERGY SECTOR
The bioenergy sector generated revenue of HK$45,833,000 (2007: Nil)
from sapling sales in 2008. The biological asset gains from the cultivation
of Jatropha saplings during the year amounted to approximately
HK$40,872,000 (2007: HK$3,565,000). This biological assets gain was
determined by Greater China based on the fair value of Jatropha saplings
less estimated point-of-sale costs with reference to the most recent
market transaction prices.

SR
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Jatropha saplings being harvested and
processed for transportation and transplantation.
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NON-AGRICULTURAL BUSINESSES

Banking and Finance Systems Integration Services: TopAsia
Computer Limited (“TopAsia”) and its subsidiaries (“TopAsia
Group”)

While the momentum of China’s growth remains relatively stable
compared with many other major economies confronted by the global
financial meltdown, the situation has clearly worsened. In November
2008, the Chinese government announced RMB4 trillion in stimulus
spending over the next two years, followed by the cutting of lending
rates by the biggest margin in a decade. This combination of policy moves
underscores the extent of official concern about the deteriorating global
economy'’s effects on China, as well as the authorities’ determination to
restore confidence in the nation’s economy among investors, consumers
and businesses. However, government officials admitted that the stimulus
measures had so far achieved only limited success and were not enough
to fully counter the downturn.

During the year, China has also been plagued by a number of natural
disasters including severe snowstorms and the Sichuan earthquake. As a
result of this gloomy economic outlook, TopAsia Group faced formidable
challenges and difficulties, and as expected 2008 saw a marked
reduction in the demand for self-service equipment in the banking sector.
Competing manufacturers resorted to price-cutting and extensions of
warranty periods in order to promote their products and meet their sales
guotas. This led to a squeezed profit margin for the business, coupled
with a reduction in sales. The Company’s management believes that this
situation is unlikely to improve in 2009.

In view of the above factors, TopAsia Group has been looking for
alternative products to supplement its ATM and self-service equipment
product range. The frequent occurrences of natural disasters in 2008 have
resulted in a tremendous loss of stored data. As such, Chinese enterprises
are beginning to place more emphasis on information security, integrity
and disaster management. During the year, TopAsia, in cooperation with
the data storage systems vendor company EMC Corporation (“EMC"),
signed a contract to upgrade and maintain the data storage systems of
the Shanghai Post Office. TopAsia and EMC also signed a contract with
Shanghai Securities Central Clearing Company for similar services. A
cooperative effort between TopAsia and IBM to develop data compilation
software has also seen positive results.

Internet security is also a serious concern for the financial industry.
Increasing incidents of Internet crime have led the financial sector to
invest heavily in network security management. TopAsia is cooperating
with Symantec, a leading security products manufacturer, to provide total
security solutions to financial service companies, insurance companies,
foreign exchange trading centers, and other enterprises.
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These new products and services hopefully will help TopAsia Group
endure tough times, however, sales of these products are not expected
to be substantial, because, as a result of the global economic slowdown
many companies are forced to concentrate their available resources into
sustaining their own businesses rather than protecting their data and
information.

The revenue for TopAsia Group for the year decreased by approximately
3% to approximately HK$62,750,000 (2007: HK$64,468,000). This
slight decline was attributable to a decrease in the sales of financial
services products caused by competitive market condition. The direct
and operating costs for TopAsia Group remained high during the year,
resulting in an operating loss of approximately HK$1,913,000 (2007:
approximately HK$1,330,000).

In view of the current global economic concerns, particularly in
the financial services industry, TopAsia Group is expected to face a
challenging business environment in 2009. We will continue to closely
monitor and assess TopAsia Group’s activities and prospects.

OUTLOOK

2008 has been a landmark year for the Group's diversification into the
agro-conservation and bioenergy businesses. These new business streams
have brought new business vigor and growth momentum to the Group in
spite of adverse market conditions.

In 2008 we established important foundations for our bioenergy
businesses in Hainan and Laos. Our local joint ventures made notable
progress in setting up nurseries, planting Jatropha seeds, and successfully
incubating seeds into qualified saplings for sale. The Group intends
to continue to expand its nurseries to ensure a stable and high quality
supply of saplings for sale to and cultivation by its local partners. The
local partners’ successful transplantation of Jatropha saplings during the
year was also encouraging and the Group looks forward to reaping the
benefits of receiving a stable supply of high quality Jatropha seeds that
are currently being cultivated.

During the year we also continued the expansion of our plantation of
salix and licorice in Inner Mongolia, as we transition from harvesting wild
to cultivated crops.

While the global economic outlook is currently uncertain, the Company’s
Board and management believe that the world’s apparently insatiable
appetite for petroleum or its replacements, coupled with increasing
interest in environmentally friendly and renewable fuel resources, will
ensure the long-term growth and sustainability of our business.
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

Net Assets

At 31st December, 2008, the Group recorded total assets of
approximately HK$491,920,000 (2007: HK$520,749,000), which
were financed by liabilities of approximately HK$157,064,000 (2007:
HK$195,399,000) and total equity of approximately HK$334,856,000
(2007: HK$325,350,000). The Group’'s net asset value as at 31st
December, 2008 increased by 3% to HK$332,001,000 as compared to
approximately HK$322,795,000 as at 31st December, 2007.

Liquidity

The Group had total cash and bank balances of approximately
HK$93,754,000 as at 31st December, 2008 (2007: HK$72,939,000). The
net cash balance as at 31st December, 2008 was also HK$93,754,000
(2007: HK$72,939,000), as the Group does not have any bank
borrowings (2007: Nil).

As at 31st December, 2008, the current ratio was 2.53 (2007: 1.47) and
gearing ratio was 0.20 (2007: 0.24) which was defined as the Group’s
convertible loan notes over its equity attributable to equity holders of the
Company.

Charges on Assets
At 31st December, 2008, no assets were pledged to banks to secure
banking facilities (2007: Nil).

Treasury Policies

The Group generally finances its operations with internally generated
resources, proceeds from the disposal of its available-for-sale-investments
and from equity fund raising activities. All financing methods, including
equity, debt and other means, will be considered so long as such methods
are beneficial to the Company’s shareholders as a whole. Subsidiaries
in the PRC use internally generated resources to finance their working
capital requirements. Bank deposits are mainly in Hong Kong dollars and
Renminbi.

Contingent Liabilities and Capital Commitments
The Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31st December,
2008.

The Group had capital commitments for the acquisition of intangible assets
which were contracted but not provided for totaling HK$14,751,000
(2007: Nil) and other commitments for an investment in a cooperation
project which were contracted but not provided for totaling
HK$23,400,000 (2007: Nil).
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Management Discussion & Analysis

B E S LT

Foreign Exchange Exposure

For the year ended 2008, the Group mainly earns revenue in Renminbi
("RMB") and United States Dollars (“USD"”) and incurs costs in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$"), RMB and USD. Although the Group currently does
not have any foreign currency hedging policies, it does not forsee any
significant foreign currency exposure in the near future since the HK$ and
USD are pegged.

The Group also does not expect the appreciation of the RMB against the
HK$ to have any material adverse effect on the operation of the Group
as the RMB is expected to move within narrow extends to the HK$.
However, any permanent or significant changes in the pegged system or
the exchange rates of RMB against HK$, may have possible impact on the
Group’s results and financial position.

Employee and Remuneration Policies

As at 31st December, 2008, the Group employed approximately 200 full-
time members of staff in the Mainland China, Hong Kong and Laos. The
Group remunerates its employees based on their performance, working
experience and the prevailing market price. Other employee benefits
include mandatory provident fund, insurance and medical coverage,
training programs and share option scheme.
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Corporate Information
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Tse Michael Nam (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Puongpun Sananikone

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Lim Yew Kong, John

Mr. Albert Theodore Powers

Mr. Pang Seng Tuong

QUALIFIED ACCOUNTANT AND COMPANY
SECRETARY
Ms. Ng Bee Ching, Jenna

REGISTERED OFFICE
Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
9th Floor, Wincome Centre

Nos. 39-41 Des Voeux Road Central

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
5th Floor Standard Chartered Bank Building
4-4A Des Voeux Road Central

Hong Kong

Bank of China (Hong Kong)
2A Des Voeux Road Central
Hong Kong

SOLICITORS

Michael Li & Co.

14th Floor, Printing House
6 Duddell Street, Central
Hong Kong
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AUDITORS

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
16th Floor, United Centre

95 Queensway

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

The Bank of Bermuda Limited

Bank of Bermuda Building

6 Front Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Tengis Limited

26th Floor, Tesbury Centre

28 Queen's Road East

Hong Kong

WEBSITE

http://www.greenglobal-resources.com

Green Global Resources Limited 4% IR &R ER A 7

574 L
ERFA(BEB)SAEBFBRA R
Bk

& $EBI5T

#1618

FERMEBRERBFE

The Bank of Bermuda Limited
Bank of Bermuda Building

6 Front Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

FERMELERBFRSE

HEEERER AR
Bk
ERRNBR285
SEER L2618

Hut

http://www.greenglobal-resources.com



Management's Profile
EENEBEABEN

The Board of Directors — from left: Mr. Lim Yew Kong, John; Mr. Puongpun Sananikone; Mr. Tse Michael Nam; Mr. Pang Seng Tuong;
Mr. Albert Theodore Powers.
ZFEEHE - £#£A : Lim Yew Kong, John J£4 » Puongpun Sananikone Jt4 » FiF)F 564 © Pang Seng Tuong %t 4 M Albert Theodore Powers 554 ©

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Tse Michael Nam, aged 51, is the Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer of the Company. Mr. Tse has had over 20 years of experience in
the agricultural, cultivation and farming industry. Mr. Tse has held key
management positions in several agricultural companies as well as being a
technical advisor to various organizations and governmental bureaus such
as Hawaiian Agronomic (International) Inc., the Thai Trade Commission
and projects funded by multinational organizations such as the Asian
Development Bank (“ADB"). Mr. Tse holds a Bachelor of Science degree
in Biological Science & Marine Biology from the University of California,
Berkeley and a Master of Business Administration degree from the
University of San Francisco. Mr. Tse is responsible for the Group’s overall
performance and strategic direction.

Mr. Puongpun Sananikone, aged 64, is a Deputy Chairman and an
Executive Director of the Company. Mr. Sananikone is an experienced
international development economist and business executive whose
career has spanned many countries throughout the Asia-Pacific region.
Mr. Sananikone has been professionally active in China and Southeast Asia
for over two decades. Mr. Sananikone is currently president of Pacific
Management Resources (“PacMar, Inc.”) (1987-present), a Hawaiian-
based multinational consulting group assisting international funding
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Management'’s Profile
EENEEBABEN

agencies and private sector clients in project identification, planning
and development. Under his guidance, PacMar Inc. completed a large
number of projects in the agriculture and rural development sectors for
the ADB, the World Bank, and the United States Agency for International
Development (USAID) in various Asian countries, and major public and
private sector enterprises in China and other Asia-Pacific nations. Mr.
Sananikone, a recipient of the 2003 University of Hawaii Distinguished
Alumni Award, holds a Bachelor or Arts in Economics from the University
of Hawaii; a Master Of Arts in Economics from the University of Colorado,
and has completed specialised post-graduate training in macro and
natural resource economics at Colorado State University. Mr. Sananikone
is the Chairman of the Board of Governors of the East-West Center
Honolulu.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lim Yew Kong, John, aged 47, is an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company. Mr. Lim has extensive private equity investment
experience, having managed several private equity funds covering
primarily the ASEAN region since 1991. Prior to that, he worked in
Dowell Schlumberger in the United Kingdom and Arthur Andersen &
Co.; London. Mr. Lim graduated with a Bachelor's Degree in Economics
from the London School of Economics and Political Science in the United
Kingdom. He is a qualified chartered accountant from the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales.

Mr. Albert Theodore Powers, aged 56, is an Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Company. Mr. Powers is the Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer of the Allied Pacific Group, a diversified
investment and advisory group based in Hong Kong. Mr. Powers has
32 years of business and legal experience in a wide range of corporate,
commercial, hospitality, gaming and real estate activities. Mr. Powers has
particular experience in investment transactions in Greater China and Asia,
where he has resided and worked for the past 26 years. Prior to joining
the Allied Pacific Group, Mr. Powers practiced law in New York City, San
Francisco and Hong Kong and was the Hong Kong senior and managing
partner for several of the world’s leading law firms, including Shearman &
Sterling and Gibson, Dunn & Crutcher. Mr. Powers is licensed to practice
law in New York, California, Colorado, and Hong Kong. Mr. Powers
holds a Bachelor of Arts degree from the University of Denver; a Master
of Business Administration degree from Imperial College London; a Juris
Doctor degree from the University of Pennsylvania Law School; and a
Master of Laws in Taxation degree from the New York University Law
School.
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Mr. Pang Seng Tuong, aged 42, is an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company. Mr. Pang has more than 10 years of experience
in investment banking and investments. Mr. Pang is the founder and
managing partner of Pinetree Capital Partners Pte Ltd, a private equity
fund management company. Prior to setting up Pinetree Capital Partners
Pte Ltd in mid-2006, Mr. Pang co-founded Westcomb Financial Group Ltd
in 2000, one of the first boutique investment banks in Singapore, which
is listed on the Singapore Stock Exchange. Mr. Pang holds a Bachelor of
Science degree (Highest Honours) in Astro & Aeronautical Engineering
from the University of lllinois at Urbana-Champaign under a scholarship
from a Singapore Government-linked company and subsequently under a
double scholarship from the University, he obtained a Master of Science
degree in Mechanical Engineering. He was the winner of the prestigious
Sword-of-Honour as well as the Letter of Commendation, and held the
rank of Major while in military service in Singapore.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chu Lik Chung assumes the overall management responsibility
for the Group’s banking and financial peripheral product offering and
servicing network in China. Mr. Chu is a graduate of the Eastern China
Normal University, Shanghai with a diploma in Chinese language and
literature. Mr. Chu has more than 15 years of IT experience and joined
the Group in June 2000.

Mr. Ophad Phissamay is the Group’s Country Representative in
Laos, and is specifically responsible for directing and managing the
Group’s Laos agricultural operation. Mr. Phissamay has over 10 years
of experience in directing, managing and administering projects and
operations for large organizations in Laos, including Lao Airlines and the
Department of Civil Aviation of Lao PDR. Mr. Phissamay holds a Master
of Science degree in Aeronautical Operations from the National School
of Civil Aviation, Toulouse, France; and a Master of Science degree in
teaching Mathematics and Computer Science from Lenin Pedagogical
University, Moscow, Russia.

Ms. Ng Bee Ching, Jenna is the Group's qualified accountant and
company secretary. She is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and CPA Australia. Ms. Ng has been in the
accounting and corporate finance arena for more than 15 years. Prior
to joining the Group, Ms. Ng held various management positions with
companies in Singapore, Hong Kong and Australia.
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Report of the Directors
SRERE

The Board of Directors (the “Directors”) of the Company is pleased
to present their report and the Audited Financial Statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31st
December, 2008.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. As discussed
in the Chairman’s Statement and the Management Discussion and
Analysis which were included in the Company’s 2007 Annual Report, the
Company re-positioned itself in 2007 to become more focused on agro-
conservation and bio-energy businesses. During 2008, the Company
concentrated on the expansion of its businesses of agro-conservation and
the cultivation of raw materials for the bio-energy industry. In 2008, the
Group was also involved in the distribution of information technology
products and the provision of computer technology services. Details of
the material activities of the Group’s principal subsidiaries are set out in
Note 37 to consolidate financial statements. No significant changes in the
nature of the Group’s principal activities occurred during 2008 except for
the discontinuation of the real estate consultancy services as explained in
Note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS

The Group’s results for the year ended 31st December, 2008 and the
state of affairs of the Company and of the Group at that date are set out
in the Financial Statements on pages 48 to 133.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following is a summary of the published consolidated results and the
assets, liabilities and minority interests of the Group, prepared on the
basis set out in the notes to the Financial Statements. This summary does
not form part of the audited financial statements.
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RESULTS =&
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
—EENFE —TTLF —ZTTRFE —ZTTRF —ZTITNHF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHxT FHEIT FHEIT FHET FHEIT
TURNOVER e
Continuing operations BB R 109,154 66,635 58,740 128,884 237,841
Discontinued operation EERIEET 569 5,617 - 96,224 -
109,723 72,252 58,740 225,108 237,841
(LOSS) PROFIT BEFORE TAX B AT (518 ) s A
Continuing operations FIBISE TS (228,105) (40,763) (11,633) (12,406) (29,755)
Discontinued operation R IEETE (1,271) 4,715 - (27,110) -
(229,376) (36,048) (11,633) (39,516) (29,755)
TAX FiE 30,053 (1,209) 1,642 1,673 (175)
LOSS BEFORE MINORITY K ERRE (199,323) (37,257) (9,991) (37,843) (29,930)
INTERESTS ARS8
MINORITY INTERESTS DERR R S 1,417 (422) - 2,171 3,077
NET LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO S fE(L F 518
SHAREHOLDERS (197,906) (37,679) (9,991) (35,672) (26,853)
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND MINORITY INTERESTS SE B8EBRIVBEBREES
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
—EENFE —2THF —ZTTRFE —ZTTRF —ZTINHF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHxT FHEIT FHET FHET FHET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS IEREEE 274,583 406,367 48,880 106,388 86,924
CURRENT ASSETS REVEE 217,337 114,382 190,519 96,480 238,526
CURRENT LIABILIITES mEIAE (85,754) (77,732) (68,407) (47,349)  (189,819)
NET CURRENT ASSETS mEEERE 131,583 36,650 122,112 49,131 48,707
TOTAL ASSETS LESS BELER
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEEE 406,166 443,017 170,992 155,519 135,631
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES EREas (71,310)  (117,667) - (210) (487)
MINORITY INTERESTS DHRR RS (2,855) (2,555) - - (4,454)
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY &R Al
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY =B A
FE(L R 332,001 322,795 170,992 155,309 130,690
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Report of the Directors
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PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the plant and equipment of the Company and
of the Group during the year are set out in Note 17 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital and share
options during the year, together with the reasons for such movements,
are set out in Notes 27 and 30, respectively, to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and of the Group
during the year are set out in Note 36(b) to the consolidated financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
page 51, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31s t December, 2008, the Company had no retained profits available
for cash distribution or distribution in specie. Subsequent to year end,
the Company carried out a capital reorganisation pursuant to which the
share premium account amounting to approximately HK$526,100,000
was cancelled and transferred to the contributed surplus account of
the Company. Although under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda,
the Company’s contributed surplus of approximately HK$39,431,000
may not be distributed, as part of the capital reorganisation part of the
contributed surplus was set off against the Company’s accumulated
losses as at 30th June, 2008. Further details of the capital reorganisation
are set out in Note 39 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-
Laws or the laws of Bermuda, the jurisdiction in which the Company is
incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a
pro rata basis to its existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or
sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
Sales to the Group's five largest customers accounted for approximately
60% of the Group’s total sales in 2008.

Purchases from the Group'’s five largest suppliers accounted for 29% of
the total purchases for in 2008 and purchases from the largest supplier
included therein amounted to 12% of the Group's total purchases for the
year.

None of the Directors, any of their associates, or any of the substantial
shareholders of the Company (which are disclosed to the Directors) had
any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers and suppliers.

DIRECTORS
The Directors of the Company during 2008 and up to the date of this
report were as follows:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Tse Michael Nam (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Puongpun Sananikone (Deputy Chairman and Executive Director)

Mr. Chan Tze Ngon
(resigned 1st March, 2008)

(Former Chairman)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Lim Yew Kong, John

Mr. Albert Theodore Powers
(appointed 1st March, 2008)

Mr. Pang Seng Tuong
(appointed 1st March, 2008)

Mr. Tai Benedict
(resigned 1st March, 2008)
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In accordance with Bye-Law 111(A) of the Company’s Bye-Laws and
the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”) contained
in Appendix 14 of the Rules (the “Listing Rules”) Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”), Mr. Tse Michael Nam and Mr. Puongpun Sananikone will
retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting. Being
eligible, each of Mr. Tse Michael Nam and Mr. Puongpun Sananikone will
offer himself for re-election as an Executive Director.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the current Directors and of the senior
management of the Group (the “Management”) are set out on pages 25
to 27 of this Annual Report.

DIRECTORS'’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No Director had a material beneficial interest, either directly or indirectly,
in any contract of significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

At 31st December, 2008, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and Chief Executive Officer of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFO")), as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified
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HREERRBEFASRESR - HMFEE

&Puongpun SananikonefL 4 & B & BRI E
BETARITES -

EFEREREEARZEE

ARREFEERAEESRERAR([ER
ABDZ BESNAFRE25EHE27A -

EERaNzHER
BEBEEEAR R SEA MM B R RRF ARG
VAHAKEXBEEAREZANOT  HEE
KEEBEBEEAE S

EERITTERERNIG - HRKGRE
GZHEZRRE

RZZFEZENFT_A=1+—8B ARAEEK
TTHRARNARRRERBEE (EEREF R
HIE R0 (1B 5 R ETEIRG] ) EXVER) Z B D
*H%ﬁﬂx@&@%ﬂfﬂ B’BEARRRIEREZF NS
‘EW%WU%’SSZ1%25\?_52%&5%)5%5% HARIE

MABEFETESFXINRE #E'J((T?+

to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code #EUJ)E%D PN SRR I ) Ny =R
for Securities Transactions by directors of Listed Companies (the “Model T :
Code"), were as follows:
(i) Long position in the shares (i) RoozHe
Approximate
percentage of issued
share capital as at
31st December, 2008
No. of HR-ZBENF
Name of Director Nature of interest shares held Position +=-A=+—H82
EEnE ERME FrislRaEE = ERITRABNES L
Mr. Tse Michael Nam Beneficial owner 100,000,000 Long 3.94%
HEFELE E=EAA e
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(ii) Long position in the underlying shares

(i) HERD2FR

Approximate
percentage of issued
share capital as at

No. of 31st December, 2008
underlying ER=ZZFENF

Name of Director Nature of interest shares Position +=ZHA=+—HZ

EEgR EEME HEROEE =) EERTRASNEIL

Mr. Tse Michael Nam Beneficial owner 25,348,000 Long 1.00%

HEF LA EnEB A (Note 1) e

(Bfaz1)
Mr. Puongpun Sananikone Beneficial owner 25,348,000 Long 1.00%
Puongpun Sananikone %t 4 ExnEEA (Note 2) 5]

(Hfat2)
Mr. Albert Theodore Powers Beneficial owner 10,000,000 Long 0.39%
Albert Theodore Powers % 4= BEXHEAA (Note 3) e

(Hfat3)
Mr. Lim Yew Kong, John Beneficial owner 9,000,000 Long 0.36%
Lim Yew Kong, John%t4E EnEB A (Note 4) e

(Biz4)
Mr. Pang Seng Tuong Beneficial owner 9,000,000 Long 0.36%
Pang Seng Tuong4E 4 EnEB A (Note 5) 5=}

(BaE5)

Notes: Pt sE

1. Mr. Tse Michael Nam, an Executive Director, held share options 1. BRITERSEFEESBEARABRE
of the Company entitling him to subscribe for 1,009,645 Shares, BN PIARBESBAD0.6518TT
9,021,930 Shares and 15,316,425 Shares at a subscription price of 0.240 7% JT % 0.100 /& 7T R i 1,009,645
HK$0.651, HK$0.240 and HK$0.100 per Share respectively. % ~9,021,930/% )2 15,316,425 8% 17

2. Mr. Puongpun Sananikone, an Executive Director, held share options 2. #f7E EPuongpun Sananikone L £#H A
of the Company entitling him to subscribe for 608,220 Shares, AREBERE BRI HNRBESRR
9,123,300 Shares and 15,616,480 Shares at a subscription price of 70.651/8 7T + 0.240% 7 % 0.1008 TR
HK$0.651, HK$0.240 and HK$0.100 per Share respectively. #£608,2200% ~ 9,123,3008% ;215,616,480

A&t -

3. Mr. Albert Theodore Powers, an Independent Non-Executive Director, 3. BMIFHITESAlbert Theodore Powersst
held share options of the Company entitling him to subscribe for ERAARFIERE - BEDHIARBEE
1,216,440 Shares, 1,317,560 Shares and 7,466,000 Shares at a F (7 0.240/% 7T * 0.100/8 JT ££0.100
subscription price of HK$0.240, HK$0.100 and HK$0.100 per Share BT REE 1,216,440 % ~ 1,317,560 8 &
respectively. 7,466,000 f2 17 ©

4. Mr. Lim Yew Kong, John, an Independent Non-Executive Director, 4. BMIFBITEELim Yew Kong, Johnftt
held share options of the Company entitling him to subscribe for HAEARNRIBBE  AHEDHIAREE
608,220 Shares, 1,925,780 Shares and 6,466,000 Shares at a H 7 0.355/8 7T * 0.10078 JT ££0.100
subscription price of HK$0.355, HK$0.100 and HK$0.100 per Share 78 7T 3R B 608,220 A% + 1,925,780 & &
respectively. 6,466,000 f2 17 ©

5. Mr. Pang Seng Tuong, an Independent Non-Executive Director, 5. B IEBITEFPang Seng Tuong t AR A

held share options of the Company entitling him to subscribe for
1,216,440 Shares, 1,317,560 Shares and 6,466,000 Shares at a
subscription price of HK$0.240, HK$0.100 and HK$0.100 per Share
respectively.

ARRERE - BRI FIAREESRRR
#30.240% 7T ~ 0.1007%8 7T }2.0.100/8 7T
881,216,4400% ~ 1,317,5600% }.6,466,000
RERAD ©
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In addition to the above, as at 31st December, 2008, certain Directors
have non-beneficial personal equity interests in certain subsidiaries held
for the benefit of the Company solely for the purpose of complying with
the minimum company membership requirements.

Except as disclosed above, as at 31st December, 2008, neither the Chief
Executive Officer nor any of the Directors of the Company had or was
deemed to have any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) (i) which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which
they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO);
or (i) which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein; or (iii) which were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Except as disclosed above and in Note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements, at no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in the Company granted to any of the
Directors or their respective spouses or children under 18 years of age, or
were any such rights exercised by any of them; or was the Company, or
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors
to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Concerning the share options granted during the year to the Directors
and employees as detailed above and in Note 30 to the consolidated
financial statements, the Directors do not consider it appropriate to
disclose any theoretical value of the options granted because, in the
absence of a readily available market value of the share options in the
ordinary shares of the Company, the Directors were unable to arrive at an
accurate assessment of the value of the share options.

Green Global Resources Limited £k B8 IRERE R AR A A
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’' AND OTHER

PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN

SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

(i) Persons who have an interest or short position which is
discloseable under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO and Substantial Shareholders
So far as is known to the Directors, as at 31st December, 2008, the
following persons (not being Directors or the Chief Executive Officer
of the Company) had, or were deemed to have, interests or short
positions in the shares or underlying shares which are required to
be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or who were
directly or indirectly interested in 10% or more of the nominal
value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all
circumstances at general meetings of any member of the Group:

(i) Interests in the shares and underlying shares

FERFER A A TR B RAAMBR 5
ZHBRHRXE

() BEARBRSRAERMNEXVEE
2R3N MRB 2 EBIRBEZALIR
FERR
BEEMHM R_TENF+_A=1—
B THAL(AFARAEFTHITHA
BORBORAEEROT - BAELERS
BARBEES LPEERPIEXVEE2 N30
BB IR SRR AR R B M B SR P I B 2 M AR B
KR - REZRKREEEBN AR AR
MERAEAREEERAXNERRZERAE
FORZAETERIRAEE10% A L2 #

N2
=

() WP RIEEK D #r

Approximate

No. of percentage of issued
shares and/or share capital as at
Name of underlying 31st December, 2008
substantial shares held HR-ZBEENGF
shareholder Nature of Interest FERH K = Position +=A=+—H2
TERREER BB EEME HERGOEE ¥R CRTREAENESH
Integrated Asset Management Beneficial owner 1,144,366,573 Long 45.15%
(Asia) Limited (Note 1) BB A e
Integrated Asset Management
(Asia) Limited (#77F 1)
Mr. Yam Tak Cheung Interest of 1,144,366,573 Long 45.15%
(Note 1) controlled corporation He
EEELEE Hat 1) R EE RS
Notes: FiaE -
1. Integrated Asset Management (Asia) Limited is wholly and 1. Integrated Asset Management (Asia)

beneficially owned by Mr. Yam Tak Cheung.

Limited i fFEE L2 E B R
F=
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EEoRE

(i) Interests in shares of associated corporations of the Company

Name of subsidiary

MEAREE

Name of entity

EREE #A

BMC Software (China) Ltd. BMC Software (HK) Ltd.

L: represents a long position in the securities

Except as disclosed above and so far as the Directors are aware, as at 31st
December, 2008, no other party had any interest or short position in the
shares, the underlying shares or debentures of the Company which would
be required to be disclosed to the Company under provisions of Division
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which would be required, pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to herein.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Throughout the year ended 31st December, 2008, the Company has
complied with the code provisions and recommended best practices of
the Code except for certain deviations. Details of corporate governance
are set out in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” in this
Annual Report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE REVIEW

The Company established an audit committee (the “Audit Committee”)
on 12th June, 1999 with clear written terms of reference. For the year
ended 31st December, 2008 and as at the date of this report, the
Audit Committee was comprised of three members, all of whom were
Independent Non-Executive Directors. The composition of the Audit
Committee as at the date of this report was Mr. Lim Yew Kong, John,
(Chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr. Albert Theodore Powers and Mr.
Pang Seng Tuong.

Green Global Resources Limited £k IR E R AR A7)
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The Audit Committee meets at least twice a year to review the annual
and interim results and the accompanying auditor’s report, the
accounting policies and practices adopted by the Company, and the
financial and internal control systems of the Company.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group’s Audited Financial
Statements for the year ended 31st December, 2008, including the
auditor’s report thereon, and has submitted its views to the Board of
Directors.

AUDITORS

The audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended
31st December, 2008 have been audited by SHINEWING (HK) CPA
Limited, who will retire and, being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
Mr. Tse Michael Nam
Chairman

Hong Kong 20th April, 2009
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ate Governance Report

The Board of Directors and Management of the Company are highly
committed to maintaining good corporate governance practices and
transparency in fulfilling their corporate responsibility and accountability
to the Company’s Shareholders. The Board and Management recognize
that the maintenance of good corporate governance practices is an
essential factor in achieving financial success and enhancing shareholder
value.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE ON CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

(a)

(b)

(c)

Corporate Governance Practices

Throughout the year ended 31st December, 2008, the Company has
complied with the code provisions and recommended best practices
of the Code, except for certain deviations as set out below. The
Board will continue to review and monitor the Company’s corporate
governance practices to ensure compliance with the Code.

Director’s Securities Transactions

The Model Code has been adopted as the code for Directors’
securities transactions for the Company. After having made specific
enquiry of all the Directors, each of the Directors confirms that he
has complied with the Model Code for the year ended 31st December,
2008.

Board of Directors

Currently, the Board is composed of five members comprising two
Executive Directors (including the Chairman) and three Independent
Non-Executive Directors. The biographical details of the current
members of the Board are set out on pages 25 to 27 of the Annual
Report.

The Board is tasked with the responsibility of directing and
supervising the Company’s businesses and affairs and promoting
its success and growth. The Board is collectively responsible for the
management and operations of the Company and is responsible for
directing and supervising the overall management of the Company
with regards to the implementation and maintenance of internal
control procedures and ensuring compliance with relevant statutory
requirements, the Stock Exchange Listing Rules and other rules and
regulations.

The day to day management of the Company is the responsibility of
the Management of the Company.
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The Board meets regularly. During the year, six regular Board
meetings were held. Notices for regular Board meetings were given
to all Directors at least fourteen days prior to the meetings.

Prior to each Board meeting (for regular meetings, at least three
days prior), the Chairman, with the support of the Company
Secretary, ensures that every Director has been properly briefed
on issues and provided with the agenda and accompanying Board
papers containing adequate information to enable them to make
informed decisions at the meeting. Every member of the Board has
an opportunity to propose matters in the agenda for discussion at
each Board meeting.

Minutes of Board meetings and meetings of committees are taken
by the Company Secretary and maintained at the Company’s
premises. Minutes of the Board and committee meetings record in
sufficient detail the matters considered by the Board or committee
and decisions reached, including any concerns raised by the Directors
or dissenting views expressed. Drafts and final versions of minutes
are sent to all Directors for their comments within a reasonable
time after the Board meetings are held. Every member of the Board
is entitled to inspect Board papers and related materials and has
unrestricted access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary to ensure that Board procedures, and all applicable rules
and regulations, are followed. Where queries are raised by any
of the Directors, responses are provided as promptly and fully as
possible. The Directors may also seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances, at the expense of the Company.
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TPERERME

The attendance of each of the Directors at regular Board meetings REEESTCDE  BREECEEN

and meetings of the Audit and Remuneration Committees is set out FMEZEe@RHERNOT

below :

No. of meetings attended/held
HEBITEBERE
Audit Remuneration

Directors Board committee Committee

BEE E=xg ERZEES FHZEES

Executive Directors

BITES

Mr. Tse Michael Nam 6/6

A EF A

Mr. Puongpun Sananikone (Note 1) 6/6

Puongpun SananikoneZt 4 (477t 1)

Mr. Chan Tze Ngon (Note 2) 0/6

BRF A (A at2)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

BIFHITES

Mr. Lim Yew Kong, John 6/6 2/2 1/1

Lim Yew Kong, John%t 4

Mr. Albert Theodore Powers (Note 3) 6/6 2/2 171

Albert Theodore Powers%t 4 (#77#3)

Mr. Pang Seng Tuong (Note 4) 6/6 2/2 I7Al

Pang Seng Tuong?c 4 (A7:t4)

Mr. Tai Benedict (Note 5) 0/6

B A (HaE5)

Notes: B EE -

1. Mr. Puongpun Sananikone was re-designated as an Executive Director 1. Puongpun Sananikoneft £ 8 —ZFZTNF
with effect from 1st March, 2008. —A—BRATANTES -

2. Mr. Chan Tze Ngon resigned as an Executive Director with effect from 1st 2. BRFBREEB_ZTTN\F=A—BEEHE
March, 2008. HITESF -

3. Mr. Albert Theodore Powers was appointed as an Independent Non- 3. Albert Theodore Powers’c £ B — T )\F
Executive Director with effect from 1st March, 2008. A AREZERBIIIFNTES -

4. Mr. Pang Seng Tuong was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive 4.  Pang Seng Tuongt B =TT N\F=HA
Director with effect from 1st March, 2008. —HRELZERBIIIRITES -

5. Mr. Tai Benedict resigned as an Independent Non-Executive Director 5. BUWELAFB-_TT)\F=ZA-HEEHE
with effect from 1st March, 2008. B IENITES ©
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(d)

There were six regular Board meetings held during the year of which
two were for the approval of the interim and annual results of the
Company and the others were to discuss and approve the entering
into of material agreements and transactions as well as to review
the effectiveness of the financial and internal control systems of the
Company. The attendance rate of each of the Director at the Board
meetings was 100%.

The Company maintained an appropriate level of insurance cover
in respect of legal action against the Directors and officers of the
Company and its subsidiaries throughout the year ended 31st
December, 2008.

An updated list of the Company’s Directors and key Management
members including a description of their roles and functions is
maintained on the Company’s website.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Under Code provision A.2.1, the roles of the Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer (“CEO") should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. During the entire year ended 31st
December, 2008 and continuing to the date of this report, both
roles were performed by Mr. Tse Michael Nam. The Board considers
Mr. Tse's experience and knowledge crucial in managing and
executing the transformation of the Company and its subsidiaries
into an agro-conservation and bio-energy conglomerate.

The Board is also confident that Mr. Tse is capable of fulfilling his
responsibilities as Chairman of the Board, including ensuring that
the Board operates effectively and discharges its responsibilities,
ensuring good corporate governance practices and procedures
are established, and providing effective communication with the
Company’s Shareholders and that views of the Shareholders are
communicated to the Board as a whole.

The Board does not believe that the current situation will impair
the balance of power and authority between the Board and the
Management and does not currently propose to separate the
functions.

(d)

FR - BFEGARBTARESZS0E
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- B R AR i M HLERT L E R K
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(e) Independent Non-Executive Directors

()

During the year, the Company has been in compliance with Rules
3.10(1) and (2) of the Listing Rules by having at all times at least
three Independent Non-Executive Directors on its Board and at
least one who has the appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

As at the date of this report, the Company is also in compliance with
Rules 3.10(1) and (2) of the Listing Rules.

Each of the Independent Non-Executive Directors was appointed
for an initial term of not more than two years from the date of his
appointment. Upon the expiry of the initial term, the appointment
may be renewed for another term of not more than two years. In
accordance with the Bye-Laws of the Company, every Director of
the Board (including the Independent Non-Executive Directors) is
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election by the Company’s
Shareholders at least once every three years.

Each of the Independent Non-Executive Directors meets the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
and the Company considers each of them to be so. The Company
has received from each of the Independent Non-Executive Directors
an annual confirmation as to his independence.

Remuneration Committee

The Company’s Remuneration committee (the “"Remuneration
Committee”) was established in June 2005 with specific written
terms of reference detailing the Committee’s role and authority.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for ensuring formal and
transparent procedures for developing remuneration policies and
overseeing the remuneration packages of the Directors and senior
management and making recommendations to the Board in respect
of the same. In fulfilling its functions, the Remuneration Committee
takes into consideration factors such as salaries paid by comparable
companies, respective time commitment, and responsibilities of the
Directors and Management and whether the remuneration packages
are competitively attractive to retain the Executive Directors and
senior Management. The Remuneration Committee members may
consult the Chairman of the Board about their proposals relating
to the remuneration of the Executive Directors and have access
to sufficient resources including professional advice if considered
necessary. No director can, however, approve his or her own
remuneration.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 and as at the date of
this report, the Remuneration Committee was comprised of three
members, all of whom were Independent Non-Executive Directors.
As at the date of this report, the Remuneration Committee was
comprised of Mr. Pang Seng Tuong (Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee), Mr. Lim Yew Kong, John and Mr. Albert Theodore
Powers.

The Remuneration Committee meets at least once each year and it
met on 21st August, 2008 to review the remuneration policy and
structure and determine the annual remuneration packages of the
Directors and the senior management and other related matters.

Nomination Committee

The company did not establish a nomination committee. The Board
considers that the appointment and removal of Directors are the
collective decision of the Board and thus does not intend to adopt
the recommended best practice under Code A.4.4 to establish a
nomination committee.

Where vacancies on the Board exist, the Board will carry out the
selection process by making references to the skills, experience,
professional knowledge, personal integrity and time commitments
of the proposed candidates, including the independence status in
the case of an independent non-executive Director, the Company’s
needs and other relevant statutory requirements and regulations.

During the year under review, one Board meeting was held to
consider the appointments of Mr. Albert Theodore Powers and Mr.
Pang Seng Tuong as Independent Non-executive Directors and Mr.
Puongpun Sananikone’s redesignation as an Executive Director by
going through the selection process as stated above.

Auditors’ Remuneration
The auditors remuneration for the year ended 31st December, 2008
was as follows:

(9)
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Nature of work Amount

THEME k|
HK$
BT

Audit services 890,000

FEIZARTS

Non-audit services 125,700

FEZRYG
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Audit Committee

The Company’s Audit Committee (the “Audit Committee”) was
established in June 1999 with clear written terms of reference.
The primary duties of the audit committee include making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment, reappointment
and removal of the external auditors, approving the remuneration
and terms of engagement of the external auditors, reviewing and
monitoring the external auditors’ independence and objectivity and
the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with applicable
standards, monitoring the integrity of the Company’s financial
statements, annual report and accounts, half-year report and
accounting policies, as well as overseeing the Company’s financial
controls, internal control systems and risk management systems.

For the year ended 31st December, 2008 and as at the date of this
report, the Audit Committee was comprised of three members, all of
whom were Independent Non-Executive Directors. The composition
of the Audit Committee as at the date of this report was Mr. Lim
Yew Kong, John (Chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr. Albert
Theodore Powers and Mr. Pang Seng Tuong. Mr. Lim Yew Kong,
John, the Chairman of the Audit Committee is a qualified chartered
accountant from the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales. None of the members is a partner or former partner of
SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited, the Company’s external auditors.

The Audit Committee has unrestricted access to the auditors of the
Company, the Directors, the Company’s qualified accountant, and
other members of Management and met with the auditors once
during the year ended 31st December, 2008.

During the year, the Company reappointed Messrs. SHINEWING (HK)
CPA Limited as auditors of the Company.

The Audit Committee met twice during the year ended 31st
December, 2008 to review the annual and interim results and the
accompanying auditor’s report, the accounting policies and practices
adopted by the Company, and to review the financial and internal
control systems of the Company.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group’s audited financial
statements for the year ended 31st December, 2008 including the
auditor’s report thereon and has submitted its views to the Board.

Green Global Resources Limited £k B8 IRERE R AR A A
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Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements
The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation
of the Financial Statements of the Company and that the Financial
Statements are prepared in accordance with statutory requirements
and applicable accounting standards. It is also the responsibility
of the Directors to ensure the timely publication of the Financial
Statements of the Company.

The statement of the auditors of the Company, SHINEWING (HK)
CPA Limited, on their reporting responsibilities in respect of the
Financial Statements of the Company is set out on pages 46 and 47.

The Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge,
information and belief, having made all reasonable enquiries, they
are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

Internal Controls

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for ensuring that a
sound and effective internal control system is maintained within the
Company and its subsidiaries so as to safeguard the Company’s assets
and its Shareholders’ investments. The Directors conduct annual
reviews of the effectiveness of the system of internal controls as
well as the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of
staff of the accounting and financial reporting functions, and their
training programmes and budget.

Pursuant to provision C.2.6 of the Code, the Board reviewed the
need for an internal audit function and considered it appropriate
to outsource the function. Accordingly, SHINEWING Risk Services
Limited was engaged in October 2008 to carry out an internal
audit review of the Company and its subsidiaries for the financial
year ended 31st December, 2008. The review covered all material
controls including financial, operational and compliance controls
and risk management functions of the Company. SHINEWING Risk
Services Limited completed its internal audit review and reported its
findings to the Board. Their review did not uncover any significant
areas of concern which may affect Shareholders.

The Board considers the internal control systems of the Company
effective and the resources, qualifications and experience of the
accounting and financial reporting functions, adequate for the
period in review.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B AZE AR S

faikPia

Shine‘ZOZnﬁ

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
16/F., United Centre
95 Queensway, Hong Kong

TO THE MEMBERS OF GREEN GLOBAL RESOURCES LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Green Global
Resources Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred as the “Group”) set out on pages 48 to 132, which comprise
the consolidated balance sheet as at 31st December, 2008, and the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This
responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal
control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair presentation
of the consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that
are reasonable in the circumstances.

Green Global Resources Limited 4k B IRERE RARA A
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31st December, 2008 and
of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Pang Wai Hang

Practising Certificate Number: PO5044

Hong Kong
20th April, 2009
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 HZE -—ZTZENFE+-A=+—HI-FE

2008 2007
—EEN\F T LF
Notes HK$’'000 HK$'000
Pt EE FET FH&T
Continuing operations BEREEL
Turnover S 9 109,154 66,635
Cost of sales and services rendered SHE R RIS ALR AR (99,725) (54,237)
Gross profit EF 9,429 12,398
Other operating income Has s e 9 11,553 13,482
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HERHEERE 2 Wi
investment - 21,844
Gain arising from changes in fair value ~ &¥&&E 2 A ES R G
less estimated point-of-sale costs of ﬁﬁ%%ﬁﬁk$ﬁﬁ§$2%f\?&
biological assets 19 77,802 11,255
Selling and distribution expenses HENDIHEER (3,803) (3,860)
Administrative expenses 1TEE A (58,299) (46,157)
Other operating expenses Hih& &R (20,841) (5,939)
Profit from operations 4R BT 10 15,841 3,023
Impairment loss recognised R EREEE
in respect of goodwill (74,039) (40,771)
Impairment loss recognised WRER EEREEIE
in respect of intangible assets (161,876) (1,173)
Finance costs RUE AR 11 (8,031) 1,842)
Loss before taxation %R AT E 1R (228,105) (40,763)
Income tax credit (expense) FrEHiEe(ZH) 12 30,053 (1,209)
Loss for the year from RECEEB  FERE
continuing operations (198,052) (41,972)
Discontinued operation BRIEEK
(Loss) profit for the period/year from B4R IEEF 2 B 13
discontinued operation FE(ER) RN (1,271) 4,715
Loss for the year FEEE (199,323) (37,257)
Attributable to: =
Equity holders of the Company RABIERTA A (197,906) (37,679)
Minority interests DR R S (1.417) 422
(199,323) (37,257)
(Loss) earnings per share BR(EE) &R 14
Basic (HK cents) EAR(BAL)
- Continuing operations —FEREER (114.61) (47.46)
— Discontinued operation —BERIEEE (0.74) 5.28
From continuing and REFBELEEBR
discontinued operations BRI (115.35) (42.18)

Green Global Resources Limited 4k B IRERE RARA A



Consolidated Balance Sheet

HeBERER

As at 31st December, 2008 R —ZZN\&F+_-HA=+—H

2008 2007
—EENF —EELF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
{h=s FHET TET
Non-current assets FREBEE
Plant and equipment W= K R A 17 12,371 8,230
Deferred plantation expenditure IRIETEE R 18 113,676 33,000
Deposit for plantation expenditure BEAYETS 25,155 34,808
Biological assets EYEE 19 48,446 8,231
Intangible assets B A E 20 57,284 165,225
Deposit paid for acquisition of WHEE EER] €
intangible assets 9,265 -
Goodwill RS 21 7,800 156,873
Loan advanced to a minority m—BLHREREER 22
shareholder 586 -
274,583 406,367
Current assets RBEE
Inventories FE 23 259 5,192
Biological assets EYEE 19 = 3,840
Trade and other receivables 25 REMEW IR 24 123,324 32,411
Bank balances and cash RITHEBREIRS 25 93,754 72,939
217,337 114,382
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B o5 REMENRIE 26 71,010 70,623
Income tax liabilities FriStiasE 14,744 7,109
85,754 77,732
Net current assets REBEEFE 131,583 36,650
406,166 443,017
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
mEBEERER

As at 31st December, 2008 R—ZZN\&FE+_-H=+—H

2008 2007
—EENF —EELF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5T FHBT FET
Capital and reserves BEARR#E
Share capital R& A 27 253,485 103,526
Reserves HE 78,516 219,269
Equity attributable to equity holders of — ZRAEHERS A A (GRS
the Company 332,001 322,795
Minority interests DR R 2,855 2,555
Total equity R 334,856 325,350
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Convertible loan notes AR E R ERR 28 67,683 75,878
Deferred tax liability EIEFIERE 29 3,627 41,789
71,310 117,667
406,166 443,017

The consolidated financial statements on pages 48 to 132 were approved  Z48F 132 B 2 iAW HHERR ST NFEMA
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 20th April, 2009 =+ HAKHEEE SR ERSERE  WHAT

and are signed on its behalf by : BEERREE
Mr. Tse Michael Nam Mr. Puougpun Sananikone
AEFEEE Puougpun Sananikone st 4
Director Director
EF EF
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 &% —

ZT\F+-_A=+—HILFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

idated Statement of Changes in Equity

ROREENEAEL
Exchange Convertible ~ Share  Statutory
Share  Share Contributed translation ~ Other ~ bonds  options  surplus Acumulated Minority
capital premium  surplus  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  losses Total interests Total
[
E hEx  BRE iRES SRR
k& RGEE BABE HERE EURR i R OERE ZREE it 5 3t
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Thr TEr  TExr  TEr  TExr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEnr  TER
(Note)
(BsE)
At 1st January, 2007 RZF5+E-f-A 67,500 342,547 (19 1132 21,659 - 1,505 - (263332) 170992 - 170,992
Reserve released on disposal HERERTHEE - - - - (1,659 - - - - (21659 - (1659
Exchange difference arising on REBNERELL
translation of overseas operation EREE - - - 2,465 - - - - - 2,465 - 2,465
(Loss) profit for the year £ (BB) &7 - - - - - - - - (37679 (37679 0 (31,257
Appropriation of profit BAsE - - - - - - - 576 (576) - - -
Total recognised income and ERERBUAR
expenses for the year BRUE = - - 465 (21,659) - - 576 (38,255  (56,873) 42 (56451)
Issue of convertible loan notes KUBRERZ - - - - - 29205 - - - 9205 - 1925
Issue of shares upon RIATEREIRA
- placement of shares -RERR 27,000 112,400 = = = = = = - 139400 - 139400
- conversion of convertible loan notes - BTRRETE 3880 18217 - - - (535 - - - 16739 - 16739
~ exercise of share options ~{TiERERE 5146 5233 = = = - (2769) = - 7610 - 7610
~ transaction costs attributable to ~B1ROEEZ
issue of shares RPA - (2670 - - - - - - - (2670 - 2610
Recognition of equity-settled share BARAEERGAT
based payments - - - - - - 183n - - 183N - 183N
Capital contribution from minarity HBRADHRRTE
shareholders of subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - - 2133 2133
At 31st December, 2007 RZBTLETZA=F-H 103526 475727 (19 3,597 - 23867 17,108 576 (301,587) 322,79 2555 325350
Exchange difference arising on HERNEBEEL
translation of overseas operation EFL%%’E = - - 300 - - - - - 305 157 328
(Loss) profit for the year i) &7 = = = - - - - - (197906) (197.906)  (1,417) (199,323)
Appropriation of profit %\J Y EE - - - - - - - 274 (274) - - -
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMBAR - - - 7 = = = = = 7 = 7
Total recognised income and ERERBUAR
expenses for the year BRLE - - -3 - - - 274 (198,180) (194524)  (1,260) (195,784)
Issue of shares upon RIATSERIRA
- placement of shares -RERR 19900 29850 - - - - - - - 49,750 - 49750
- conversion of convertible loan notes - RETRRENE 337 154% - - - (4469) - - - 14264 - 14264
~ exercise of share options ~frieiEhE 80 85 = = = = (45) = = 120 = 120
- rights issue —HR 126,742 10,139 - - - - - - - 136881 - 136,881
~ transaction costs attributable to ~HRHERZ
issue of shares SHHA - (5197 - - - - - - - (519) - (519
Recognition of equity-settled share EARAEERDER
based payments - - - - - - 7912 - - 7912 - 7912
Capital contribution from a —FHERA
minority shareholder of a subsidiary —HOERRTE - - - - - - - - = - 1560 1,560
At 31st December, 2008 RZZZN\ET-F=1—H 253485 526,100 (19 6,979 - 19,398 24,975 850 (499,767) 332,001 2,855 334,85

Note: Subsidiaries in the People’s Republic of China have appropriated 10% of the
profit to the statutory surplus reserve which is required to be retained in the
accounts of the subsidiaries for specific purposes.

iz : RPZEARAFBEZHBRRERENZ10%

BAEERRDTERE - BES

KR AR E Y

BATIRE AEREME
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
SFeEEERER

For the year ended 31st December, 2008 HZ—ZZT N\F+_A=+—HI-FE

2008 2007
—EENF T LF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt aE FET FA&TT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REER
Loss before taxation BRAATEE (228,105) (40,763)
(Loss) profit before tax for B4R I FERE 2 R A
discontinued operation (EB18) %5 (1,271) 4,715
(229,376) (36,048)
Adjustments for : MFIEIBEELFE
Amortisation of intangible assets Em A EEH 4,894 2,571
Bad debt directly written off BHiEMEEER = 4,257
Depreciation e 3,358 1,285
Finance costs RUE A 8,031 1,842
Gain arising from changes in fair value EYEE A FESERMAE
less estimated point-of-sale costs of HE B AN PTE A& 2 Wi
biological assets (77,802) (11,255)
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HERHEERE 2 W
investment = (21,844)
Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary —[E I B A BIEUH s
EEzKa (283) -
(Gain) loss on disposal of subsidiaries HERBATIEL Y
(Yean ) Es 18 (169) 1
Gain on disposal of plant and equipment HEME MR BEE 2 Wi (79) (30)
Loss on disposal of plant and equipment HEME MREEE 2B 104 71
Impairment loss recognised REERESE
in respect of goodwill 74,039 40,771
Impairment loss recognised HRELEERERE
in respect of intangible assets 161,876 1,173
Impairment loss recognised WRE S ERFIRREEE
in respect of trade receivables 20,841 2,296
Impairment loss recognised wREFEREBE
in respect of inventories 1,413 =
Interest income T 2T A (1,272) (1,987)
Share-based payment expenses Rt E R 7,912 18,372
Waiver of trade and other payables B 5 R EAMENFIA R R (592) -
Operating cash flows before RetEBEESEEA
movements in working capital KEREME (27,105) 1,475
Decrease in inventories FERLD 3,854 4,279
Decrease in trade and other B 5 N H A e WK IE R
receivables 2,840 3,886
Decrease in trade and other B 5 N H A FE A FRIE R
payables (5,395) (12,169)
Increase in biological assets EYEES M (868) (275)
Cash used in operations E ik (26,674) (2,804)
PRC enterprise income tax paid B BTSN (474) (1,038)
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES &2 & ¥ AR & 545 (27,148) (3,842)
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2008 2007

—EENFE ZETF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
{h=a FET TET
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEH
Payment for deferred plantation FHEEREE 7 ST
expenditure (49,153) (33,541)
Deposit for plantation expenditure ~NREEEYES (25,155) (34,808)
Acquisition of intangible assets WS (51,206) =
Deposit paid for acquisition of NKBERETYEERS
intangible assets (9,265) —
Acquisition of plant and equipment BEME MR E (7,793) (8,127)
Loan advanced to a minority shareholder [A—& D ERERIREER (1,560) -
Decrease in other time deposits with BARIHEA=@ANEZ
maturity of more than three months HEmEEBERoRd
when acquired 9,081 1,281
Proceed from disposal of subsidiaries HEMB R R TS FIE
(net of cash and cash equivalents (MMBREEZRE &
disposed of) REEEY) 32 3,784 248
Interest received BUF B 1,246 1,987
Proceeds from disposal of HERE &R ETEEIE
plant and equipment 81 30
Acquisition of subsidiaries (net of WEEHT B AR (FIBREBAZIRE
cash and cash equivalents acquired) RIESZEY)) 31 - (139,191)
Proceeds from disposal of HE R HEREMERIE
available-for-sale investment - 67,578
Decrease in pledged time deposits B E EBE R = 15,624
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES  REZB AR S TE (129,940) (128,919)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES RMEEE
Proceeds from rights shares HRR PSR I8 136,881 =
Proceeds from issue of shares BT TS RIE 49,750 139,400
Loan raised from a substantial shareholder B —ZF ERREEF 2 EX 25,000 -
Contribution from minority shareholders >R+ & 1,560 2,133
Proceeds from exercise of share options  7{# B B& 4 P15 5118 120 7,610
Repayment of loan from a BEA—REIEZER
substantial shareholder (25,000) -
Expenses on issue of rights shares BITHRR D ER (5,197) =
Expenses on issue of shares TR HE R - (2,670)
Interest paid ERFLE (465) -
NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES ®&EEBFERSTE 182,649 146,473
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND ReRESEEYEMER
CASH EQUIVALENTS 25,561 13,712
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FHZHERBEELZEY
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 31,553 16,705
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE IEERSFH TR
RATE CHANGES 1,676 1,136
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRZEESRBEESZEY
AT END OF THE YEAR 25 58,790 31,553
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GENERAL

Green Global Resources Limited (the “Company”) is incorporated in
Bermuda as an exempted company with limited liability. The shares
of the Company are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The addresses of the registered office and principal place of business
of the Company are disclosed in the Corporate Information section
to the Annual Report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$"). Other than those subsidiaries established in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") whose functional currency is
Renminbi (“RMB”) and the subsidiary incorporated in Lao People’s
Democratic Republic (“Laos”) whose functional currency is United
States Dollars (“USD"), the functional currency of the Company and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) is HK$.

As the Company is listed in Hong Kong, the directors of the
Company consider that it is appropriate to present the consolidated
financial statements in HKS$.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. During
the year, the Group was principally involved in the distribution
of information technology products, agro-conservation and the
cultivation of raw materials for the bio-energy industry.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
In the current year, the Group has applied the following new
amendments and interpretations (“new HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
which are or have become effective.

Hong Kong Accounting Reclassification of Financial Assets
Standard (“HKAS") 39 &

HKFRS 7 (Amendments)

HK(IFRIC) — Interpretation
("INT"™) 11

HKFRS 2 — Group and Treasury Share
Transactions

HK(IFRIC) = INT 12 Service Concession Arrangements

HK(IFRIC) — INT 14 HKAS 19 — The Limit on a Defined
Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding

Requirements and their Interaction

Green Global Resources Limited 4k B IRERE RARA A
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(continued)

The adoption of the new HKFRSs had no material effect on how
the results and financial position for the current or prior accounting
periods have been prepared and presented. Accordingly, no prior
period adjustment has been required.

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
standards, amendments or interpretations that have been issued but

are not yet effective.

HKFRSs (Amendments)
HKAS 1 (Revised)
HKAS 23 (Revised)
HKAS 27 (Revised)

HKAS 32 & 1 (Amendments)

HKAS 39 (Amendment)

HKFRS 1 (Revised)

HKFRS 1 & HKAS 27
(Amendments)

HKFRS 2 (Amendment)
HKFRS 3 (Revised)
HKFRS 7 (Amendment)

HKFRS 8
HK(IFRIC)-INT 9 and

HKAS 39 (Amendments)

HK(IFRIC)-INT 13

HK(IFRIC)-INT 15

HK(IFRIC)-INT 16

HK(IFRIC)-INT 17

HK(IFRIC)-INT 18

Improvements to HKFRSs!

Presentation of Financial Statements?2

Borrowing Costs?

Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements3?

Puttable Financial Instruments and
Obligations Arising on Liquidation?

Eligible hedged items3

First-time Adoption of Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards?

Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary,
Jointly Controlled Entity
or Associate?

Vesting Conditions and Cancellations?

Business Combinations3

Financial Instruments: Disclosures —
Improving Disclosures about
Financial Instruments?

Operating Segments?

Embedded Derivatives®

Customer Loyalty Programmes*

Agreements for the Construction of
Real Estate?

Hedges of a Net Investment in a
Foreign Operation®

Distribution of Non-cash Assets to
Owners3

Transfers of Assets from Customers’
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(continued)

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2009
except the amendments to HKFRS 5, effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1st July, 2009.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2009.
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July, 2009.
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July, 2008.
5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st October, 2008.
6 Effective for annual periods ending on or after 30th June, 2009.

7 Effective for transfers of assets from customers received on or after 1st
July, 2009.

The application of HKFRS 3 (Revised) may affect the accounting
for business combination for which the acquisition date is on or
after the beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning
on or after 1st July, 2009. HKAS 27 (Revised) will affect the
accounting treatment for changes in a parent’s ownership interest
in a subsidiary. The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of the other new and revised standards, amendments or
interpretations will have no material impact on the results and the
financial position of the Group.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for biological assets and certain financial
instruments, which are measured at fair values, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

(a) Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities (including special
purpose entities) controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries).
Control is achieved where the Company has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to
obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated income statement from
the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of
disposal, as appropriate.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(a)

(b)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into
line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are
eliminated on consolidation.

Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries
are presented separately from the Group’s equity therein.
Minority interests in the net assets consist of the amount of
those interests at the date of the original business combination
and the minority’s share of changes in equity since the date of
the combination. Losses applicable to the minority in excess of
the minority’s interest in the subsidiary’s equity are allocated
against the interests of the Group except to the extent that
the minority has a binding obligation and is able to make an
additional investment to cover the losses.

Business combinations

The acquisition of businesses is accounted for using the
purchase method. The cost of the acquisition is measured at the
aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets
given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity instruments
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree,
plus any costs directly attributable to the business combination.
The acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities that meet the conditions for recognition under HKFRS
3 “Business Combinations” are recognised at their fair values
at the acquisition date.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an asset and
initially measured at cost, being the excess of the cost of the
business combination over the Group’s interest in the net
fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities recognised. If, after reassessment, the Group's interest
in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities exceeds the cost of the
business combination, the excess is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

The interest of minority shareholders in the acquiree is initially
measured at the minority’s proportion of the net fair value of
the assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business represents the
excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s interest in the
fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities of the relevant business at the date of acquisition.
Such goodwill is carried at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses.

Capitalised goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
presented separately in the consolidated balance sheet.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill arising
from an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the acquisition. A
cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment annually, and whenever there is an
indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising
on an acquisition in a financial year, the cash-generating unit
to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that financial year. When the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying
amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit first,
and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata on the basis of
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment
loss for goodwill is recognised directly in the consolidated
income statement. An impairment loss for goodwill is not
reversed in subsequent periods.

On subsequent disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit,
the attributable amount of goodwill capitalised is included in
the determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

Investments in subsidiaries
Investments in subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
balance sheet at cost less any identified impairment losses.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite useful
lives are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible
assets with finite useful lives is provided on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives (see accounting policy in
respect of impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
below).
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e)

(f)

(9)

Intangible assets (continued)

Intangible assets acquired separately (continued)

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured at the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognised in the consolidated income statement when the asset
is derecognised.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
identified and recognised separately from goodwill where they
satisfy the definition of an intangible asset and their fair values
can be measured reliably. The cost of such intangible assets is
their fair value at the acquisition date.

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets with finite
useful lives are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for
intangible assets with finite useful lives is provided on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.

Plant and equipment
Plant and equipment are stated at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of plant
and equipment over their estimated useful lives and after taking
into account their estimated residual value, using the straight-
line method.

An item of plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the item) is included in the consolidated income statement in
the year in which the item is derecognised.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the
consolidated balance sheet when a group entity becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial
assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are added
to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(g) Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into one of the two
categories, including loans and receivables and available-for-
sale financial assets. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period.

Interest income is recognised on an effective basis for debt
instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivables (including loan advanced to
a minority shareholder, trade and other receivables and bank
balances and cash) are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any identified impairment losses
(see accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets
below).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated or not classified as financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, loans and receivables or held-to-
maturity investments.

At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition,
available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value.
Changes in fair value are recognised in equity, until the
financial asset is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, at
which time, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in
equity is removed from equity and recognised in profit or loss
(see accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets
below).
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(g) Financial instruments (continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets (continued)

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured and derivatives that are linked
to and must be settled by delivery of such unquoted equity
instruments, they are measured at cost less any identified
impairment losses at each balance sheet date subsequent to
initial recognition (see accounting policy on impairment loss on
financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at
each balance sheet date. Financial assets are impaired where
there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial
asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets
have been affected.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment below its
cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or

e default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade and
other receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are subsequently assessed for impairment on a
collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio
of receivables could include the Group’s past experience of
collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed
payments in the portfolio past the average credit period of
90 days, observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 HZ —ZZ \F+_A=+—HI-FE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(g) Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment
loss is recognised in profit or loss when there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of
return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will not
be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade and other receivables, where the carrying
amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are
recognised in profit or loss. When a trade and other receivables is
considered uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written
off are credit to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment losses was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit
or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at
the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments
will not be reversed in profit or loss in subsequent periods.
Any increase in fair value subsequent to impairment loss
is recognised directly in equity. For available-for-sale debt
investments, impairment losses are subsequently reversed if an
increase in the fair value of the investment can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the recognition of the
impairment loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(g) Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the group after deducting all of its
liabilities. The Group’s financial liabilities are generally classified
as other financial liabilities.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade and other payables are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.

Convertible loan notes

Convertible loan notes issued by the Group that contain
both the liability and conversion option components are
classified separately into respective items on initial recognition.
Conversion option that will be settled by the exchange of a
fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed
number of the Company’s own equity instruments is classified as
an equity instrument.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability component is
determined using the prevailing market interest of similar non-
convertible debts. The difference between the gross proceeds
of the issue of the convertible loan notes and the fair value
assigned to the liability component, representing the conversion
option for the holder to convert the loan notes into equity, is
included in equity (convertible bonds reserve).
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(g) Financial instruments (continued)

Convertible loan notes (continued)

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the
convertible loan notes is carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. The equity component, representing
the option to convert the liability component into ordinary
shares of the Company, will remain in the convertible bonds
reserve until the embedded option is exercised (in which case
the balance stated in convertible loan notes equity reserve will
be transferred to share premium). Where the option remains
unexercised at the expiry date, the balance stated in convertible
loan notes equity reserve will be released to the accumulated
losses. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss upon
conversion or expiration of the option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible loan
notes are allocated to the liability and equity components in
proportion to the allocation of the gross proceeds. Transaction
costs relating to the equity component are charged directly to
equity. Transaction costs relating to the liability component
are included in the carrying amount of the liability portion and
amortised over the period of the convertible loan notes using
the effective interest method.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets.
On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised directly in equity is recognised in profit or
loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(h) Biological assets

()

()]

(k)

Biological assets are living plants involved in the agricultural
activities of the transformation of biological assets for sales,
into agricultural produce or into additional biological assets.
Biological assets are measured at fair value less estimated point-
of-sale costs at initial recognition and at each balance sheet
date. The fair value of biological assets is determined based on
either the present value of expected net cash flows from the
biological assets discounted at a current market-determined
pre-tax rate or the market price with reference to the species,
growing condition, cost incurred and expected yield of the
crops.

The agricultural produce is initially measured at fair value less
estimated point-of-sale costs at the time of harvest. The fair
value of agricultural produce is measured at the market prices
in the local market. The fair value less estimated point-of-sale
costs at the time of harvest is deemed as the cost of agricultural
produce for further processing.

The gain or loss arising on initial recognition of biological asset
at fair value less estimated point-of-sale costs is recognised in
the consolidated income statement for the period in which it
arises.

Deferred plantation expenditure

Deferred plantation expenditure is stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment.
Amortisation is charged to the consolidated income statement
on a straight-line basis over the period of thirty years.

During the plantation period, the amortisation charge provided
for deferred plantation expenditure in respect of the plantation
of Licorice and Salix is capitalised as part of the costs of the
biological assets of Licorice and Salix.

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out method.

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
with finite useful lives other than goodwill (see the
accounting policy in respect of goodwill above)

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If the recoverable amount of an asset is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k)

U]

(m)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
with finite useful lives other than goodwill (see
the accounting policy in respect of goodwill above)
(continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of
its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
goods sold and services provided in the normal course of
business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

(i)  Sale of goods
Revenue from sales of goods is recognised on the transfer
of risks and rewards of ownership, which generally
coincides with the time when the goods are delivered to
customers and title has passed.

(i) Service income/management fee income/consultancy
service income
Income is recognised when services are provided.

Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable.

(i)

Equity settled share-based payment transactions
Share options granted to employees

The fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the grant date is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share options reserve).

At each balance sheet date, the Group revises its estimates of
the number of options that are expected to ultimately vest.
The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is
recognised in profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to
share options reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share options reserve will be
transferred to share premium. When the share options are
forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at the
expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share options
reserve will continue to be held in share options reserve.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(m) Equity settled share-based payment transactions

(n)

(continued)

Share options granted to business associates

Share options issued in exchange for services are measured
at the fair values of the services received, unless the fair value
cannot be reliably measured, in which case the services received
are measured by reference to the fair value of the share options
granted. The fair values of the services received are recognised
as expenses, with a corresponding increase in equity (share
options reserve), when the counterparties render services,
unless the services qualify for recognition as assets.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated
income statement because it excludes items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it
further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance
sheet date.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax base used in the
computation of taxable profit, and are accounted for using
the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(n)

(o)

Taxation (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each
balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset is
realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited to profit or loss,
except when it relates to items charged or credited directly
to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in
equity.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the
rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
At each balance sheet date, monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the
balance sheet date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value
that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise,
except for exchange differences arising on a monetary item
that forms part of the Company’s net investment in a foreign
operation, in which case, such exchange differences are
recognised in equity in the consolidated financial statements.
Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items carried at fair value, are included in profit or
loss for the period.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(o)

(p)

(a)

(s)

Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the balance sheet date, and their income and
expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for the
year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the
period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising,
if any, are recognised as a separate component of equity (the
exchange translation reserve). Such exchange differences are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which the foreign
operation is disposed of.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessess. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to enter into an
operating lease are recognised as a reduction of rental expense
over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised as income over the periods
necessary to match them with the related costs. Grants related
to depreciable assets are presented as deferred income and are
released to income over the useful lives of the assets. Grants
related to expense items are recognised in the same period
as those expenses are charged in the consolidated income
statement and are reported separately as “other operating
income”.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit scheme and
the defined contribution schemes are charged as an expense
when employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised as and included in finance
costs in the consolidated income statement in the period in
which they are incurred.
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4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in Note 3, the directors of the Company are required to
make estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.

Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet
date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial

year.

(a) Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation
of the value-in-use of the cash-generating units to which
goodwill has been allocated. The value-in-use calculation
requires the Group to estimate the future cash flows expected
to arise from the cash-generating unit and a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value. Where the actual
future cash flows are less than expected, a material impairment
loss may arise. As at 31st December, 2008, the carrying
amounts of goodwill was approximately HK$7,800,000. Details
of impairment testing on goodwill are set out in Note 21(b).

(b) Depreciation of plant and equipment

Plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives, after taking into account of
their estimated residual values. The determination of the useful
lives and residual values involve management’s estimation.
The Group assesses annually the residual value and the useful
life of the plant and equipment and if the expectation differs
from the original estimate, such a difference may impact the
depreciation in the year and the estimate will be changed in the

future period.

(c) Impairment loss recognised in respect of trade

receivables

The Group performs ongoing credit evaluations of its
customers and adjusts credit limits based on payment history
and the customer’s current credit-worthiness, as determined
by the review of their current credit information. The Group
continuously monitors collections and payments from its
customers and maintains a provision for estimated credit
losses based upon its historical experience. Credit losses have
historically been within the Group'’s expectations and the Group
will continue to monitor the collections from customers and

maintain an appropriate level of estimated credit losses.
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4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(continued)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(9)

(h)

Impairment of plant and equipment

The impairment loss for plant and equipment are recognised
for the amounts by which the carrying amounts exceed
their recoverable amounts, in accordance with the Group'’s
accounting policy. The recoverable amounts of plant and
equipment have been determined based on value-in-use
calculations. These calculations require the use of estimates
such as the future revenue and discount rates. No impairment
was provided during the year.

Impairment of intangible assets

The Group determines whether an intangible asset is impaired
at least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the
value-in-use of the cash-generating units to which the asset
is allocated. Estimating the value-in-use requires the Group to
make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the
cash-generating unit and also to choose a suitable discount rate
in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. A
change in the estimated future cash flows and/or the discount
rate applied will result in an adjustment to the estimated
impairment provision previously made.

Fair values of biological assets

The Group’s management determines the fair values less
estimated point-of-sale costs of biological assets on initial
recognition and at each balance sheet date with reference to
market prices, cultivation area, species, growing conditions,
cost incurred and expected yield of the crops.

Impairment of inventories

The management of the Group reviews an aging analysis at
each balance sheet date, and makes allowance for obsolete
and slow-moving inventory items identified that are no longer
suitable for sale. The management estimates the net realisable
value for finished goods based primarily on the latest invoice
prices and current market conditions. The Group carries out an
inventory review on a product-by-product basis at each balance
sheet date and makes allowance for obsoletes items.

Estimation of current and deferred income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in various jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the provision
for income taxes. There are transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. The Group recognises liabilities
for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters are different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the current and
deferred income tax provisions in the period in which such
determinations are made.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE —ZTZTN\F+-_A=+—HILFE

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to stakeholders through optimisation of the debt and equity
balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior
year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which
includes convertible loan notes disclosed in Note 28, cash and
cash equivalents and equity attributable to equity holders of
the Company, comprising issued share capital and reserves. The
directors of the Company review the capital structure periodically. As
a part of this review, the directors of the Company consider the cost
of capital and the risks associates with each class of capital. Based
on the recommendations of the directors, the Group will balance
its overall capital structure through the payment of dividends, new
share issues and share buy-backs as well as issue of new debt or the
redemption of existing debt.

BXmrEE
AEBEZEREREERRAKERNMAE
EROAHELE  ANEBELLEBKR
SECBRERBEBEFRRT -

AEENERRBERRER (BENKTE28
BENAREERZER)  ReRReEFE
YRR REERRE ARG ERE (B2 %7
AR - NARES TR EANE
B EREREREARARESEEEN
HAZER  AKERZEREST 2R
BRSBTS D 12 B8 LA R 3
BEBLBERAEHAFHELREER
R -

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS eI R
Categories of financial instruments ERMIANSE
2008 2007
—2EBN\F ZETLF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FH&T
Loans and receivables (including cash BN EW FRE
and cash equivalents) (BIERERREEEY) 217,664 105,350
Financial liabilities at amortised cost S EE &R HERA) 138,693 146,501
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES MR EE B R R B R

AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include loan advanced
to a minority shareholder, trade and other receivables, trade and
other payables and convertible loan notes. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated
with these financial instruments include market risk (currency risk
and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on
how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.
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7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)
(a) Currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from sales or purchases by several subsidiaries
of the Company in currencies other than those subsidiaries’
functional currencies. In addition, certain portions of the
financial assets are denominated in currencies other than HKS$.

The following table shows the Group’s exposure at the
balance sheet date to currency risk arising from transactions or
recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a currency other
than the functional currency of the entity to which they relate.

7. MERRBREEERERBEE@W)

(a)

B ER
AEERHARZFEREAR - ZFEAR
L= RANCIE A= PN PN
ZHEEEB AN ERHE L RBRE
o ltsh  ERMEESTRDLETT
PIONEEEEE -

= GE

TRETAEERLE

EHEEUNER
HAMREEEIINEBEE 2R 55

EEREELREMELERRR -

As at As at
31st December, 2008 31st December, 2007
RZZBENF RZZELF
+=A=+-8 +=A=t-A
RMB’'000 usD’000 RMB'000 UsD’'000
AR%ETR FTET ARETR TEx
Assets BE 8,161 75 - -

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy. However, the management monitors foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis
The Group is mainly exposed to the currency of RMB and USD.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5%
increase and decrease in HK$ against the relevant foreign
currencies. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding
foreign currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their
translation at the year end for a 5% change in foreign currency
rates. A positive number below indicates a decrease in loss
where HK$ strengthen 5% against the relevant currency. For
a 5% weakening of HK$ against the relevant currency, there
would be an equal and opposite impact on the loss, and the
balances below would be negative.

ASKEE B ESEEIPER - A
o EREEEINERRE - WNFE
R E B EASMNERE

AEEIZEHARBERETEERE

G o
2

TRANAREEE T ARREINE LT
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TXIESFBR BT AAEING Tt
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 HZ —ZZ \F+_A=+—HI-FE

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

AND POLICIES (continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

OBJECTIVES 7. MERREEHABRREER @)

Currency risk (continued) (a) EX¥=E (&)
RMB usbD
AR¥E Ex
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENE CZZTtF CZBENF CZITTLH
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHEr FTAT TAET FTAT
Impact on loss for the year FREBZSE (463) - (29) -
Interest rate risk (b) FlZ== b
The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation AEBEE T BIRITEHR 2 AFEF
to fixed-rate bank balances (see Note 25 for details of these KRR (ZEGFR B RMFE25) -
deposits).
The Group currently does not have an interest rate hedging 7N £5 B 35 IR 3 A A AA) A1 R ET R BUR o
policy. However, the management monitors interest rate N BEEERNENERRNE
exposure and will consider hedging significant interest rate DR E EEHRE R EE g o
exposure should the need arises.
Credit risk (c) EERR

Credit risk refers to the risk that debtors will default on their
obligations to repay the amounts owing to the Group, resulting
in a loss to the Group. The maximum exposure to credit risk
in the event that the counterparties fail to perform their
obligations at end of the financial year in relation to each class
of recognised financial assets in the carrying amount of those
assets as stated in the consolidated balance sheet.

The Group has no significant credit risks as it has policies in
place to ensure that sales of products and services are made
to customers with appropriate credit history. The Group
has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy
counterparties and obtaining substantial collateral, where
appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss
from defaults, The Group only transacts with entities with good
repayment history.

The Group does not have any other significant concentration
of credit risk. Trade receivables consist of a large number of
customers, spread across diverse industries and geographical
areas.
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7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

(c)

(d)

Credit risk (continued)

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group's
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its financial liabilities. For non-derivatives
financial liabilities, the table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the
earliest date on which the Group will be required to pay. The
table includes both interest and principal cash flows.

7. MERBREEERERBEE @)
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(d)

EEmE (&)

R R 5% 779 BB R (E BT R
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE —ZTZTN\F+-_A=+—HILFE

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)
(d) Liquidity risk (continued)

7. MERBREEBRRBE@W)

(d) REBES @M (E)

Liquidity risk tables TEBNE LR RS
Weighted Within ~ More than More than
average 1 year 1yearbut 2 years but Total Carrying
effective oron less than less than undiscounted amount at
interest rate demand 2 years 5years  cash flows 31st December,
R+=A
MEF —£R —FHE MENL  AEEES =t-H
BRRIE FEER  ERWER  EREFER REAE HELH
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B TABT TAT TET AT AT
2008 ZEEN\E
Non-derivative financial ~ FEfTE2RER
liabilities
Trade and other payables B 5 R AN FIE 0.70 71,510 = = 71,510 71,010
Convertible loan notes ARERZE 9.75 - - 79,650 79,650 67,683
71,510 - 79,650 151,160 138,693
2007 S 3
Non-derivative financial ~ {744 RAE
liabilities
Trade and other payables &5 K E {1 E A - 70,623 - - 70,623 70,623
Convertible loan notes HRERERE 9.75 - - 98,000 98,000 75,878
70,623 - 98,000 168,623 146,501
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BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS
Business segments

For management purposes, the Group is currently organised into
five (2007: six) operating divisions — agro-conservation, bio-energy,
banking and finance systems integration services, software solutions
for banks and the public sector, and IT management and support.

Principal activities are as follows:

Agro-conservation

Agricultural cultivation and land conservation

Bio-energy - Cultivation of raw materials for the bio-energy

industry

Banking and finance
systems integration
services

Provision of system integration, software
development, engineering, maintenance
and professional outsourcing services for
banking and finance, telecommunications
and public sector clients

Provision of software solutions for banks and
public sectors concentrating on the banking,
e-commerce and public sectors with a business
focus on e-business operations and online
marketplaces

Software solutions for
banks and the
public sector

IT managementand -
support

Provision of IT management and support
services to small and medium-sized property
agents

The Group was also involved in the provision of real estate
consultancy services for the Shanghai property market. That
operation was discontinued on 31st March, 2008 (see Note 13).

In determining the Group’s geographical segments, revenues are
attributed to the segments based on the location of the customers,
and assets are attributed to the segments based on the location of
the assets.

8.
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SEEME - AKREB D AR EES
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EEXRBUT

BERE - REBENIHRE

EWRER - AMRRITEEERR

RITRERER - REZGEK  BHEH

SRS B I8 RERE
FRRITERERE -
BEAXRARERER
PRAEZRIMIIRE

BIRRAEH - AAEFREEBREL

FAERZ MG REBEE 2R

RERRIR F ETHERORE
FRBIRAE A BRIR
nE

AR ER Rk AN ERBRAE
AMRER R SRRE

AEBENGETR LBYETHRHEE T
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8. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS 8. ¥ RMESS @)
(continued)
(i) Business Segments (i) E=HKDIZL
The following tables presents revenue, result and certain asset, TREVAEBEBLLZWA - ¥
liability and expenditure information for the Group’s business ENETEE  AENMASZER -
segments.
Continuing operations Discontinued operation
RASERE BRIEER
Banking and Software solutions
finance systems for banks and T management Real estate
Agro-conservation Bio-energy integration services  the public sector and support Subtotal consultancy service Consolidated
#ReR BARARERRH Eink
BERE 2] FARAER BRZEHERGR EERRE it FHERRRY ]
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 207 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 207
ZBRNE CERE CERNE CTRCF CERNE CTE(F CEBNE CRRCF RRNE SRR CEIRNE CTRLF CRRNE CER(E CERNEF CRRE
HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKFOOO ~ WKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKY000 ~ HKS'000  HKS'000 ~ WKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HK$'000  HKS'000
Tén TEr TR T TR Thr  TEn  TEr TR TR TEm TR TR A TEm TEn
For the year ended BETZR
31st December ST-ALLER
TURNOVER gxE
Sales to external customers— NIEE(EZ
e - - b3 - R0 g 5 57 - 095 6663 9 5o 1093 M
RESULTS E4
Seqment results AzE 5600 12703 15935 3800 (34 %) (1) )] 44 (4626) 39661 9184 (1) 473 3838 13897
Unalocated incorne FARMA 176 B 1 AR ¥ B3V
Unallocated expenses FARSH (25.58)  (31.882) = - (558) G188
Impairment loss BEAERRERE
recognised in respect
of goodwill (74,039) - - - - - - - - () (1a039)  (12772) - - (039 (1271)
Unallocated impaiment ~ RETEERE
loss recognised LRATER
in respect of goodwil - (279%) - - - (79%)
Impairment los BERapEE
recognised i respect FBEE
of intangible assets (145,83) - (16,083 - - - - - - (LIB) (16187 (1173) - - (161876)  (1173)
Finance costs HENAR 6031) (188 - - (803) (188
(Loss) profit before taxation B30 (&5 18) A (28105 (40763)  (1.2711) 4715 (29376)  (36,048)
Income tax credit(expense)  FTERES (1) 3003 (1,209 - - 008 (1209
(loss proftfor theyear' % /&n(8)
period begd (198050  (41972)  (1211) 475 (199323)  (37257)
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BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS

(continued)
(i) Business Segments (continued)

8. XERBMESEB (W)
(i) ¥BoIHAE)

Continuing operations Discontinued operation
b5 BEES BRIEER
Banking and Software solutions
finance systems for banks and IT management Real estate
Agro-conservation Bio-energy integration services  the public sector and support Subtotal consultancy service Consolidated
#RER BORARSHRH &g
RERE L34 FRERRHE ERZBABARR EERRE it BHERRRE ]
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 207 2008 2007
ZEINE CISE CEINE CIRGE CBRNE CTTHE C33NE C3T0E CEBNE CRSCE CEIRNE CTRUE CERNE DRt CERNE RRE
HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK§'000
Ten TEr TR T TR Thr  TEn TEr TR TR TEn TR T TR TEm TEn
As at 315t December M-A=t-A
ASSETS gz
Segment assets AEE 17687 364731 81,030 41621 2459% 31011 69 69 892 218 3424 437650 - 8745 UL 44639
Unallocated comporate assets #AEAEEE 167646 7435 - - 167646 743%
Total assets BEEE 491920 512,004 - 8745 491920 520749
LIABILITIES Bf
Segment liabilites AHEE (10,888) (19) (983 (50) (46,951 (41,45 (103) (126) 1) (807)  (68,026) (42,420) - (5489)  (68,026)  (47,909)
Unallocated corporate L1
[iabiltes (89,038)  (147,490) - - (89038 (147490)
Total liabilties ] (157,064)  (189910) - (5489 (157,064)  (195,3%9)
For the year ended HETZA
315t December =T-BLEE
Other segment information EfbA%5&#
Deprecition and fERES
amortisation 4,945 2054 2147 107 W 38 - = i) 676 1363 3 95 n 7458 3504
Unallocated amounts FOEEE 19 26 - - 19 26
8,157 3483 9 n 8,252 385%
Loss on disposal of HERER G
plant and equipment EEER - - - - - - - - 104 - 104 - - 55 104 5
Unallocated amounts FOEEE - 16 - - - 16
104 16 - 5 104 n
Capital expenditure BHY = 193 5,539 6,675 3 B - = - = 5,882 709 3 416 5905 7515
Unallocated amounts RORLE 2756 887 - - 2,75 87
8,638 1986 3 416 8,661 8402
Bad debts directly writen off - ERHHEE - - - - - - - - - - L - - -4
Unallocated amounts FOELE - 216 - - - 216
- 4257 - - - 4257
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE—ZTZN\F+-A=+—HILFE

8. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS

(continued)

(i) Business Segments (continued)

8. RERMES@)

() XB2EME)

Continuing operations Discontinued operation
5 B BREER
Banking and Software solutions
finance systems for banks and T management Real estate
Agro-conservation Bio-energy integration services  the public sector and support Subtotal consultancy service Consolidated
#ReR BORARSERH EHH
BERE AR FREREE ERZRABARR EERRE it FHERRRE ]
2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 207 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
CISCE ZEENE CERCE CEBNE CTTE CRBN\E CRRE CEBNF CRTE CBRNF CTIRCE C3RNE IRME IERENE CERE
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'00
Tén  Thn Thr TAm TEr TR TR TR TEr T TR TEn TR T TEn
For the year ended BETZR
315t December =T-BLEE
Impairment loss recognised in 577
respect of inventories g - - 1413 - - - - 1413 - - 1413
Impairment loss ecognised in - 22 5N
respect of trade receivables  FUER(ERE - 18518 233 1,06 - - - 20,841 1,06 - 50 20,841 2%
Gainon disposalof plantand - EBE Rikla
equipment & - - (19) - - - - (19) - - (19) -
Unallocated amounts KOELE - (30) - - (30)
(19) (30) - (19) (30)
Waiver of trade and other ~ BZREH
payables FEfFEER = = - - - (%) (592) = = (592)
Unallocated gan on HENBAEE
disposal of subsidiaries LR (169) - - (169)
Unallocated oss on HE-BHEAA
disposal of a EEIAAR
subsidiry FR ) 1 ) i 1
Unalocated gain on ~FHEAREH
Qeregitraion of a EEIAAR
subsidary e (283) - s (283)
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BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS
(continued)
(ii) Geographical Segments
The following table presents revenue and certain assets
and expenditure information for the Group’s geographical

8. RERMESE W)

(i) HESE
TRBIIAEE R B2 RARETA
EEFAZ AR -

segments.
Hong Kong Elsewhere in the PRC Laos Consolidated
B FEEMLE £ e
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
“EEN\F -TTHE ZEBN\F -—TTHE ZBENF —TTLF ZBENE _TTif
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
THER Thx TR TAT THT TEL THER TAT
Segment revenue AEHRA
Sales to external MSEEP
customers ez e 571 572 95,253 71,680 13,899 - 109,723 72,252
Segment assets PEHEE 2121 68 284,455 438,033 37,698 8,294 324,274 446,395
Other segment A HER
information
Capital expenditure BRRAX 541 886 3,255 7,516 4,865 - 8,661 8,402

Revenue from the Group’s discontinued operation was derived
mainly from the PRC.

AEEERIEEBREEAZWAETEREF
o
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 HZ —ZZ \F+_A=+—HI-FE

9. TURNOVER AND OTHER OPERATING INCOME
Turnover represents invoiced value of sales, net of returns, discounts
allowed and sales taxes where applicable and providing computer
technology and real estate consultancy services. Revenues recognised
during the year are as follows:

Continuing operations

9.

EXTRAEMEERLS
EXBERCEER(CHREE - 0 RH
ER(ER)) BT R BRI R E A
BRR% < BRE - A FEERZWAN

T

Discontinued operation

Consolidated

RFELEEK BRALEER o)
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
“ERNE  CETLE RN\ _ITLFE BB\  _FTLF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THT THT TR THT
Turnover o
Sale of saplings HERH 45,833 = - = 45,833 =
Sale of goods HEEM 35,559 43,247 - - 35,559 43,247
Rendering of computer IR E ISR RS
technology services 27,762 23,388 - - 27,762 23,388
Rendering of real estate R E R R R
consultancy services - = 569 5,617 569 5,617
109,154 66,635 569 5,617 109,723 72,252
Other operating income Fuk e
Interest income MEKA 1,271 1,985 1 2 1,272 1,987
Government grants LR - 158 - = - 158
Gain on disposal of HEBERREES
plant and equipment 2 79 30 - - 79 30
Gain on disposal of LEMNBAREAE
subsidiaries pdl6: 169 - - - 169 =
Gain on deregistration of —RNE RS
a subsidiary Az e 283 - - - 283 -
Exchange gain, net B 5 a5 5 R 871 3,485 - 280 871 3,765
Consultancy service income BRI BRI ES - - - 8,000 - 8,000
Management service income ‘& 12 R iz 8,287 7,467 = = 8,287 7,467
Sundry income HIBUA 1 357 - - 1 357
Waiver of trade and B5REM
other payables BT ER R 592 = - = 592 =
11,553 13,482 1 8,282 11,554 21,764
Total revenues WA sz 120,707 80,117 570 13,899 121,277 94,016

Green Global Resources Limited £k 53R ERE R AR A A



10. PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS

Continuing operations

10. EERF

Discontinued operation

Consolidated

BELEER BRILER RE
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
“EENFE C—ZT+F CZBENF C—ZT+F CZEENF C—ITTtF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR T THx T TR T
Profit from operations RN BB -
has been arrived at
after charging:
Auditor's remuneration ZEREE
- current year —REE 900 750 15 50 915 800
— overprovision for —BASEBE
pervious years B = (25) - _ _ (25)
900 725 15 50 915 775
Amortisation of B EERH
intangible assets 4,894 2,571 - = 4,894 2,571
Bad debts directly BEEMEER
written off - 4,257 - - - 4,257
Costs of inventories sold BEEHFERA 85,037 42,354 - - 85,037 42,354
Depreciation neE 3,263 912 95 373 3,358 1,285
Directors’ emoluments =M (HzE16)
(Note 16) 6,121 4,588 - - 6,121 4,588
Impairment loss recognised  #tHI A SHER A 2
in respect of inventories BRFERE
(included in cost of sales) jpiel 1,413 = = = 1,413 =
Impairment loss recognised — FLHI AE & & E H
in respect of trade ZERB M
receivables (included TR EEE
in other operating
expenses) 20,841 1,706 - 590 20,841 2,296
Loss on disposal of HE—RBAR
a subsidiary EEZER = 1 - - - 1
Loss on disposal of plant HERE KR BEE
and equipment ZIER 104 16 - 25 104 71
Payments under operating Bt RIEF
leases in respect of REMETIE
land and buildings 2,184 1,785 487 1,905 2,671 3,690
Staff costs (excluding BIRAKN(TEE
directors’ emoluments) EE )
(Note 15) (KtzE15) 16,577 15,662 1,119 2,399 17,696 18,061
Share-based payment BRI ER
expenses (business (XBHEATL)
associates) 5,367 17,217 - = 5,367 17,217
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE—ZTZTN\F+-A=+—HILFE

11. FINANCE COSTS 1. HERE
2008 2007
—EEN\F —EEAF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
From continuing operations REFFELEER
Interest expenses on: MERX :
— effective interest expense on — AR EREE B
convertible loan notes (Note 28) FEFAZ (FFE28) 6,069 1,842
— loan from a substantial shareholder ——REERREHER 263 -
— other payables — E fth e FRIR 699 -
— imputed interest expense on —A—B P BRRIRHIEAIH L S
non-current interest-free loan ERzmENERAZ
advanced to a minority shareholder 1,000 -
8,031 1,842
12. INCOME TAX (CREDIT) EXPENSE 12. i8R (B & ) H
2008 2007
—EEN\F —EEAF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
From continuing operations REFFEREER
Hong Kong Profits Tax EBNISH
- current —BNEA 1,359 -
— overprovision in previous years —BEFEBERE (69) =
PRC Enterprise Income Tax RIS FTISER
— current —BNEA 7,003 1,200
— (over) underprovision in previous years —BAFE(RERE BETRE (457) 9
Tax in other jurisdiction EAth R AR IE
- current —BNEA 273 -
8,109 1,209
Deferred tax (Note 29) RAER IR (FEE29) (38,162) =
(30,053) 1,209

(ii)

On 26th June, 2008, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed
the Revenue Bill 2008 which reduced corporate profits tax rate
from 17.5% to 16.5% effective from the year of assessment
2008/2009. Therefore, Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at
16.5% of the estimated assessable profit for the year ended
31st December, 2008.

Hong Kong Profits Tax has not been provided for in the
consolidated financial statements as there was no estimated
assessable profit derived from Hong Kong for the year ended
31st December, 2007.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates
prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

Green Global Resources Limited £k 53R ERE R AR A A

(i) RZEBEENFEXA=-+,B  FF
MEERE(CCEENFRAKLE
2 BEEFNERREH7.5%FK
£165% A-ZTE)\ ZTETHF
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B2 _ZZEN\F+_A=+—BHLHF
fE 2 (T E R BB FIA16.5% 5T & »
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12. INCOME TAX (CREDIT) EXPENSE (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

On 16th March, 2007, the PRC promulgated the Law of the
PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “New Law") by Order No.
63 of the President of the PRC. On 6th December, 2007, the
State Council of the PRC issued Implementation Regulations
of the New Law. Under the New Law and Implementation
Regulation, the Enterprise Income Tax rate of the Group's
subsidiaries in the PRC was reduced from 33%/27% to 25%
from 1st January, 2008 onwards. The relevant tax rates for the
Group's subsidiaries in the PRC ranged from 15% to 25% (2007:
15% to 33%).

In accordance with the relevant regulations, approvals from
relevant local tax bureaus and Foreign Enterprise Income
Tax Law in the PRC, one subsidiary (2007: two subsidiaries)
operating in the PRC is entitled to exemption from PRC
Enterprise Income Tax in the first two years from the first
profit-making year, followed by a 50% reduction of PRC
Enterprise Income Tax for the next three years and thereafter,
preferential treatments which are subject to the relevant law
and regulation.

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the (loss)

12. BERIESR )3T (W)

(iii)

(iv)

R-ZEZ+FE=A+NH HEHEBE
FREFESEIRBHHREDCEMSE
FOR(THBAD) - R LF+—
A7B - REBRSEREMFEEAER
AN - BEFHERERMA - B =
TENF—A—Bi  REBRFEH
ZHBARDEMERERHIZ%,
27%ME25% o ANEB R E 2 B
AR BBEHRENF15%E25%(—F
T 15%%33%) ©

RIBBEMRA - 7 RIEHEE 23X
RABISNERRMABHIA - ARE—
RARPEKEZMBAR(ZTT L
F: MEMEBRE) AR A ExE N F
BT EMFERR AP EDER
B AATRER =FBERH50%
PEEEMREN  MERZIREGESR
A BRERRERPAR S o

FREAAEH S BRER S W R 2 FRTLAT (&

profit before taxation per the consolidated income statement as B R FERAT ¢
follows:
Continuing operations Discontinued operation Consolidated
REREXK BRILER RE
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
“BENE C—ETTLHF CZBENE C—TTLH ZBENf C—TTLF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THT THT TR THT

(Loss) profit before taxation %Al (E518) & Fl (228,105) (40,763) (1,271) 4,715 (229,376) (36,048)
Tax (charges) credit at rates  3REBE R (&8 %A

applicable to (loss) profits BRREHEZ

in the countries concerned  FRIE(Z H )% (42,430) (6,444) (313) 849 (42,743) (5,595)
Tax effect of income not BAEZHBAZ

subject to tax nBTE (4,679) (2,543) - - (4,679) (2,543)
Tax effect of expenses not A/ fNFE% 2

deductible for tax purpose  BiBFE 9,434 9,721 313 = 9,747 9,721
Effect of tax exemptions RYHEHBAR

granted to PRC subsidiaries ~ FiIEZi%E 2 &2 - = - (849) = (849)
Tax effect of tax losses and AR HEBER

deductible temporary AMHEREES

differences not recognised ~ Z it E 8,148 507 - - 8,148 507
Utilisation of previously BALAIARER

unrecognised tax losses MIBE#R - (1) - _ _ (41)
(Over) underprovision in BEFE(BREE)

previous years BETR (526) 9 - = (526) 9
Income tax (credit) expense  EEFTEH

for the year (Be)TH (30,053) 1,209 - - (30,053) 1,209

Details of deferred taxation are set out in Note 29.

BIETRIRF B R M 29 -
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 HZ —ZZ \F+_A=+—HI-FE

13. DISCONTINUED OPERATION

On 3rd March, 2008, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement for the sale of the entire issued share capital in Grand
Panorama Limited and its subsidiary, Conity Investment and
Consultants (Shanghai) Company Limited (“GP Group”) to an
independent third party. The disposal was completed on 31st March,
2008, on which date control of GP Group passed to the acquirer.

GP Group is engaged in the provision of real estate consultancy
services for the Shanghai property market and the segment of real
estate consultancy services was regarded as discontinued operation
accordingly during the year ended 31st December, 2008.

The results of discontinued operation for the period/year are as
follows:

13. E#IERH

R-BEENF=ZA=H " A&EBEIYE
Eipa o m— BB E =5 HE Grand
Panorama Limited X EK{EB R~ 7 /8B Al
KEBABERAR(IGPER]) 2 2HE
BIIRA - ZBEHER-_ZEZENF=A
=t+—HEK  *5EREBBGPEEZ
THER XU A o

GPEENRER EEMEM HIRHEFEHER
MRS ZER - Bt - EHERBB RS S
BPREZE—_FZENF+_A=+—HLHF
EWRBERIEER -

AR FEERIEEBZEEWT

1/1/2008 to 1/1/2007 to

31/3/2008 31/12/2007

—E2BN\F T LF

—A—B=% —H—H=ZE

—E2EN\F ZETLF

=A=t+-B +=A=+-8

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FH&TT

Turnover — real estate consultancy services & 258 — 5= b &= Ea [ IR 7% 569 5,617

Cost of sales SHE RN (778) (3,309)

Gross (loss) profit (EB)EF (209) 2,308

Other operating income HAbas & e 1 8,282

Selling and distribution expenses HE NS IHE R (23) (926)

Administrative expenses 1THE R (1,040) (4,359)

Other operating expenses Hibh & & & H - (590)

(Loss) profit for the period/year RAalERFEA

attributable to equity holders of FEMG AR, FE

the Company (&1 )& A (1,271) 4,715

Green Global Resources Limited £k 53R ERE R AR A A



13.

14.

DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continued) 13. ERLLRFB )
1/1/2008 to 1/1/2007 to
31/3/2008 31/12/2007
—EENF —ERLEF
—A—B=%E —HA—H=Z
—EENF —ETEF
=A=+—H +=—A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FAT
Net cash inflow from operating activities R 7 e AR 112 4,918
Net cash outflow from investing activities & EE 2 IR SR T F5E (22) (413)
Net cash outflow from financing activities — RIE&E EE 2 IR R IF5E - (4,353)
Total cash inflow WEMABEE 90 152
No income tax charge or credit arose on gain on disposal of real estate o 5 b E B P AR 7% 0 BB R AR 2 W I 4
consultancy service segment. EEFERI KR -
The carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities of the GP Group at GPEEREEEREERABKEER
the date of disposal are disclosed in Note 32(a). FMi3E32(a) i 5 -
(LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE 14. 8K (GIR)2F
From continuing and discontinued operations REFESEXEBRRCRIEER
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share attributable REERRNTERFBEABRLERERK
to the equity holders of the Company for the year is based on the BEEIE R A T EURRTE
following data:
2008 2007
—EENF —ETAF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FAT
Loss [E518
Loss for the year attributable to RARERFTFEA
the equity holders of the Company IR ARFEEEE (197,906) (37,679)
2008 2007
—EENE —EELE
Number of shares 215 g B
Weighted average number of BREANEE 2 L@ ME
ordinary shares for the purpose of 5 R% ER
basic loss per share 171,563,235 89,332,080
The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose R EGREREER 2 E@mRINETH
of basic loss per share has been adjusted for the rights issue and BREEDRRR=_ZEZENFNANBR=
consolidation of shares on 8th August, 2008 and 9th March, 2009, ZEENF=ZANBZ2HERERG & A
respectively. o
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 HZ —ZZ \F+_A=+—HI-FE

14. (LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued) 14.

From continuing operations

The calculation of the basic loss per share from continuing
operations attributable to equity holders of the Company for the
year is based on the following data:

=i (BiR) B2 @)
REFHELEER
AERARNRERTAARGRAFEL
BEKZEBREREBRTVIZATBUIES

=
Ft

2008 2007
—EENF ZETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FAT
Loss for the year attributable to RArlE=TE ARG
equity holders of the Company REFFHE (197,906) (37,679)
Less: (loss) profit for the period/year from i « ANA Bk A AE(L
discontinued operation attributable ERIEER IR FE
to equity holders of the Company (E518)a A (FizE13)
(Note 13) (1,271) 4,715
Loss for the year for the purpose of SEICEETS
basic loss per share from BREARBE
continuing operations FEEE (196,635) (42,394)

The denominators used are the same as those detailed above for
basic loss per share.

From discontinued operation

Basic (loss) earnings per share for discontinued operation was
HKO0.74 cents per share (2007: earnings HK5.28 cents), based on
the loss for the year from the discontinued operation attributable to
the equity holders of the Company of approximately HK$1,271,000
(2007: profit HK$4,715,000) and the denominators detailed above
for basic (loss) earnings per share.

No diluted loss is presented for the year ended 31st December, 2008
and 2007 as the exercise of the share options and the conversion of
the convertible loan notes during the year had an anti-dilutive effect
on the basic loss per share.

Green Global Resources Limited £k 53R ERE R AR A A

AN RE ARG EERERERE
MR -

RECKRIEEK
BRARREEFEAREERIEERZF
EEEL1,271,0008 (22 £F : &
#14,715,0007% 70) & _EXFrsF i & RER
(BE)BAFASH:TE  BERIEEKZ
BIREAR (E18) B AFR0. 748U ==
THF - BR5.288() ©

MR ERITEBRE R LR RRERE
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15. STAFF COSTS (EXCLUDING DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) 15. BT R&(ASEETEMHL)
Continuing operations Discontinued operation Consolidated
BELEER BRILER sy
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
ZEENE C—TETtF ZBEN\E _—ITTtHF CZBENF C—TTtF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET TER FET TER FET
Wages and salaries TIENHs 15,379 13,069 1,100 2,365 16,479 15,434
Retirement benefit schemes  R{KBFIETEIE T
contribution 893 1,835 19 34 912 1,869
Share-base payments R 305 758 - - 305 758
16,577 15,662 1,119 2,399 17,696 18,061

The subsidiaries in Hong Kong operate defined contribution
schemes which are available to qualified employees. The assets of
the schemes are held separately from those of the subsidiaries in
independently administered funds. Monthly contributions made
by the subsidiaries are calculated based on certain percentages of
the applicable payroll costs or fixed sums as stipulated under the
relevant requirements, as appropriate.

Pursuant to the regulations of the relevant authorities in the PRC,
the subsidiaries of the Group in this country participate in respective
government retirement benefit schemes (the “Schemes”) whereby
the subsidiaries are required to contribute to the Schemes to fund
the retirement benefits of the eligible employees. Contributions
made to the Schemes are calculated based on certain percentages
of the applicable payroll costs as stipulated under the requirements
in the PRC. The relevant authorities of the PRC are responsible for
the entire pension obligations payable to the retired employees. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to the Schemes is to pay
the ongoing required contributions under the Schemes.

The retirement benefit schemes contribution represent gross
contributions by the Group to the Schemes operated by the relevant
authorities of the PRC and the defined contribution schemes
operated in Hong Kong.

Details of the Company's share options granted to the employees of
the Group are set out in Note 30.

REB 2 FENB R RIEEE RN E
HAEBRERSM - sTEIEELKE R R
ZERESDFABUERESKHA  -WEBA
AEARERFMA 2 ETEDLIEY
PRI AR R AR E /] B A B E sRER SR (3%
ERER) °

RETEEEERZR  AEBE 2+ E
B /B8 2 B 78 2 0 48 B8 IR AT AR PR 48 A 5 8
(T&zFatdl]) - WERBARFZFT
BEHER - BRAEREER 2 BRIKENIR
HEE - ARFAEEL ZHRTRHTE
EPIRTRZ ERF MR 2E T B o LE
- -PHREHERBEARKEENE
FRREEYE - AEEHZEE 22—
BEERABEXNZETEMREZ K -

BABNGFEHRFEAREATREHE
REEZZEFFERNREBBEF I ETRH
AT BIE D 2 L3R4 -

AR TFTAEBREES 2EREFBER
BIEE30 °
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE—ZTZTN\F+-A=+—HILFE

16. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ emoluments

(a)

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the seven (2007:
eight) directors were as follows:

For the year ended 31st December, 2008

16. EEREREEARME

ExmE
ENREMREE(ZTTLF : \B)
BEEMeAREINMT

BE-TE/\FT-A=t—ALF
&

Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefit
and other Discretionary schemes  Share-based
Fees benefits bonus  contribution payments Total
¥4 28R REEHN
ok Hit @A BEwa AR REAR HE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FiEx TEr TEx TER FEr FEr
Executive directors HTES
Mr. Tse Michael Nam  #{@84 - 2,645 - 12 829 3,486
Mr. Chan Tze Ngon BIREE
(resigned on (RZZTN\F
1st March, 2008) =A—HEI) - 122 - 2 - 124
Mr. Puongpun Puongpun
Sananikone Sananikone’t £
(re-designated from (R=ZENF
independent non- =R—B
executive director to AT
executive directoron  EEH(T
15t March, 2008) RMTES) 25 650 - - 842 1,517
Independent BUFHTES
non-executive
directors
Mr. Lim Yew Kong, John  Lim Yew Kong, JohnZt & 150 - = = 154 304
Mr. Tai Benedict BELE
(resigned on (R=ZENF
1st March, 2008) =A—HEf) 25 = = = - 25
Mr. Albert Theodore Albert Theodore
Powers Powers 7t &
(appointed on (RZZZNF
15t March, 2008) =A—REZf) 125 - - - 216 341
Mr. Pang Seng Tuong  Pang Seng Tuong?t 4
(appointed on (RZZENF
15t March, 2008) =R—BEZf) 125 - - - 199 324
450 3,417 - 14 2,240 6,121

Green Global Resources Limited 4k B IRERE RARA A



16. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’'S 16.EERERETEAESHME W)
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued) (a) EEM2 ()
For the year ended 31st December, 2007 HE-_ZZE+HF+-_A=+—BItHF
g
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefit
and other Discretionary schemes  Share-based

Fees benefits bonus  contribution payments Total

e RER RINER
He HitER MERA TR R g
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TER TER TER TER TAR

Executive directors HTES
Mr. Tse Michael Nam SEELE

(appointed as (RZTZ+F-R+=A
chairman on EZRRERR

12th February, 2007 R-ZT+E=f—AH
and re-designated as BT ATHELR)

Chief Executive Officer

on 1st March, 2007) - 2,294 - 11 201 2,506
Mr. Chan Tze Ngon BraLE

(resigned on (M=ZZN\F=F—BEA)

1st March, 2008) - 991 - 12 - 1,003
Mr.TangKing Hung ~ f&itses

(resigned on (R-ZZ+E=f—BEML)

1st March, 2007) - 149 - 2 - 151
Independent BUFHTES

non-executive

directors

Mr. Lim Yew Kong, Lim Yew Kong, John%E £
John (appointed on (RZE2tF

12th February, 2007)  —A+-REZ{T) 132 - 75 - 75 282
Mr. Puongpun Puongpun SananikoneZt 4

Sananikone (R=TE+F

(appointed on tA-BEZER

1st July, 2007 and RZEZN\F=A—H

re-designated as AEBRTER)

executive director on

1st March, 2008) 75 = 75 = 121 271
Mr. Tai Benedict HlErE

(resigned on (RZZTN\F

st March, 2008) =P—BE#H) 150 - 75 - - 225
Mr. Fu Yan Yan BRMEE

(resigned on (R=Z2Zt5E

30th June, 2007) AA=THET) 75 - - - - 75
Ms. Wang Xi Ling FERRT

(resigned on (RZ2TtF

30th June, 2007) NA=THEE) 75 - - - - 75

507 3,434 225 25 397 4,588
No directors waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during HE-ZEZ ) \FR-ZFZTLF+ A
the two years ended 31st December, 2008 and 2007. =+—RIEMEFE  MESENE
KRIBHETAME -

Discretionary bonus was determined with reference to MIBIEA 2 ZEREBKLEXEE - @R
the Group's operating results, individual performance and FREAR AL ETE R EIEET -

comparable market statistics.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE—ZTZTN\F+-A=+—HILFE

16. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
EMOLUMENTS (continued)
(b) Senior management’s emoluments
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, two (2007: two) were directors of the Company whose
emoluments are set out in the above. For the year ended 31st
December, 2008, the emoluments of the three (2007: three)

16. EEREREEARME (W)

(b) EREBAEME
AEELABESFMALBELRLT]
MEER(ZZTLF  mRB)  KF
ZMEFRBHERLEX - BE-_ZTTN
FTZA=Z+—HIFE - ER=%

highest paid individuals were as follows: BRIMAT(ZZTLF : =R)2
BT -
2008 2007
—EENF —TT+F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET F&T
Salaries, allowances and e o R REMBEA
other benefits 2,088 2,031
Retirement benefit schemes RINEFIEF IR
contribution 35 24
Share-based payments AR 15X 171 404
2,294 2,459
Their emoluments fall within the following bands: BE 2SN TATEHE :

Number of individuals

A
2008 2007
—EEN\E —EELF
Emoluments band i< & &
Nil - HK$1,000,000 T ITE 1,000,000/ 7T 2
HK$1,000,001 — HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 T2 1,500,0007 7T 1 1
3 3

(c) No emoluments have been paid by the Group to any directors
or the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of the
office during the two years ended 31st December, 2008 and
2007.

Green Global Resources Limited 4k B IRERE RARA A
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17. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. BE R ek s

Furniture,
fixtures
Nursery Leasehold and office Motor
farms improvements equipment vehicles Total
& BE
HE ®ER
HE NEEE WAERE Jat:d a5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx TERT TEx TER THET
CosT BAE
At Tst January, 2007 R-EZ+F-HF-H = 1,401 15,995 1,167 18,563
Exchange realignment I 5 - 18 139 49 206
Additions NE 6,400 688 512 527 8,127
Disposals HeE - (189) (193) (280) (662)
At 31st December, 2007 RZET+F
+-A=1+—-H 6,400 1,918 16,453 1,463 26,234
Exchange realignment I 5 R 411 4 100 54 569
Additions NE 4,290 180 616 2,707 7,793
Disposals HeE - - (766) (308) (1,074)
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAA - (469) (777) = (1,246)
At 31st December, 2008 RZZETN\F
+-A=1+—-H 11,101 1,633 15,626 3,916 32,276
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION ZRINE
At Tst January, 2007 R-EZ+F-H-AH = 1,130 15,013 1,041 17,184
Exchange realignment bE AR = 4 81 41 126
Provided for the year FREE 107 485 519 174 1,285
Eliminated on disposals HERHE - (173) (138) (280) (591)
At 31st December, 2007 R-ZT+F
+-A=1+—-H 107 1,446 15,475 976 18,004
Exchange realignment bE AR 6 1 78 50 135
Provided for the year FRER 2,111 301 351 595 3,358
Eliminated on disposals HERHE - - (660) (308) (968)
Eliminated on disposal of HERBA R E
subsidiaries - (337) (287) = (624)
At 31st December, 2008 RZZETN\F
+-A=1+—-H 2,224 1,411 14,957 1,313 19,905
CARRYING AMOUNTS RESH
At 31st December, 2008 RZZEEN\F
+-A=1+—-H 8,877 222 669 2,603 12,371
At 31st December, 2007 RZZT+F
+-A=1+—-H 6,293 472 978 437 8,230
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17. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

The above items of plant and equipment are depreciated on a

straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:

Nursery farms
Leasehold improvements

10% to 33'/,%

331/, % or over the lease terms,
whichever is shorter

Furniture, fixtures and

17. BRE R B fis (&)

A LB KR BIR B A B BEIRIA T F X

T -

[E]E
HEMEEKE

B BERE

10%%33"/,%
33, % HEH -
NS E R

office equipment 20% to 33'/,% NP REHRBE  20%ZE33/,%
Motor vehicles 33,% HE 33'/,%
18. DEFERRED PLANTATION EXPENDITURE 18. ;B EFEEMZ
2008 2007
—EENFE —EELF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
COST A{E
At 1st January Hn—A—H 33,541 -
Additions NE 83,961 33,541
At 31st December R+—_A=+—H 117,502 33,541
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION E=5g: 1
At 1st January Hn—A—H 541 -
Provision for the year (Note 19) FREE(EE19) 3,285 541
At 31st December nt+—A=+—H 3,826 541
CARRYING AMOUNTS RE£HE
At 31st December R+=—B=+—H 113,676 33,000

Green Global Resources Limited 4 &3 ERE R A 7

The deferred plantation expenditure is amortised on a straight-line
basis over its estimated useful lives of the relevant plants of 30 years.

BREEERAS N AAREYN G ERE
HI305F A - NEAVEHH -



19. BIOLOGICAL ASSETS

19. £ EE

Saplings of
Licorice Salix Jatropha Total
HE b i e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHT FHT FHT
At 1st January, 2007 R-ZEEL+F—H—H - - = =
Amortisation of deferred plantation PR TR F S 4
expenditure (Note 18) (Hf3%18) 392 149 = 541
Additions NE - - 275 275
Changes in fair value less estimated NEELBR G
point-of-sale costs THE B A 6,079 1,611 3,565 11,255
At 31st December, 2007 RZZET+FE+_A=+—HB 6471 1,760 3,840 12,071
Amortisation of deferred plantation IR TR B S B 8
expenditure (Note 18) (PFfF5E18) 2,436 849 = 3,285
Exchange realignment [ H A2 - - 247 247
Additions NE = - 868 868
Harvested as agricultural produce 2 UK - - (45,827) (45,827)
Changes in fair value less NEEZBR AR HE A
estimated point-of-sale costs 31,007 5,923 40,872 77,802
At 31st December, 2008 RZEZENF+_A=+—H 39914 8,532 - 48,446
2008 2007
—EENF ZETLF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FH&TT
Analysed for reporting purposes as BRI
Current assets MBNEE = 3,840
Non-current assets EMENEE 48,446 8,231
48,446 12,071
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 HZ —ZZ \F+_A=+—HI-FE

19. BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (continued)

(a)

Licorice is a bearer biological assets and is a perennial herb
of the Febaceae family (a flowering plant). Main roots of the
Licorice can normally be harvested in 3 to 4 years, and the
remains of roots re-establish themselves in the soil.

Salix is a bearer biological assets and is a medium to large
size deciduous tree. Salix are very cross-fertile and numerous
hybrids can occur, both naturally and in cultivation. Salix can
normally be harvested in 3 years and can regenerate themselves
after harvest.

Saplings of Jatropha is a consumable biological assets. Planted
from seeds, they mature into saplings within 3 to 4 months,
ready to be sold for transplantation as a whole. Jatropha
saplings will grow into Jatropha trees which harvesting period
will be over 30-years. The seeds of the Jatropha contain high
levels of oil which can be extracted and processed into bio-
diesel.

At 31st December, 2008, the above biological assets are
immature.

The fair value less estimated point-of-sale costs of licorice, salix
and saplings of Jatropha is determined based on the valuation
reports issued by Greater China Appraisal Limited (”Greater
China"”), an independent professional valuer not connected
with the Group, with reference to the most recent market
determined prices, species, growing condition, cost incurred
and expected yield.

The quantity and amount of biological assets is measured at fair
value less estimated point-of-sale costs during the year were as
follows:

19. £ 9 EE(|)

(a)

HEREEUAMEE - BHRWH
(—BRIEEY)  "REFLEELE
Yo HENEIRATAN=ZENFA
WE - BB T 2REBENLIEPEN
B

PUREEUEYNEE  BHALSD
Ao DUHLREREERR - YA A
ARBBBEETHIEES BE -
DY —RAI R = FAUE - RUEIR
TR B LR -

RS i BB E B E o M
mEERERAEEER=ZM@EA
HEF A BRHEEBE A o fiva
HRAMEEEZ - WE & HBIA30
F o EASEREMIE - AIREELR
TR SH

R-ZZFZNF+-A=+—8 Lt

HE - DU RRE & < 2 FERE
FHHERA - THIRREANE E R
MEZBUEXMAEMEETERR
AE(DEEFEDBLZEERER
S2ERORTHEE mE  E=MNR
N BEEZKARFARWRERE

9 AT 3 8 B AT
B EMAENERSENT ¢

2008 2007

—EENE ZTTAF
Quantity Amount Quantity Amount
s Kt HE T
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHT
Licorice HE 2,424 tonsMf 39,914 433 tonsM 6,471
Salix D 45,520 tonslif 8,532 9,167 tonsM 1,760
Saplings of Jatropha R & - - 150 mu@El 3,840
48,446 12,071

Green Global Resources Limited £k 53R ERE R AR A A



20. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 20. |ILBEE
Licorice Jatropha
and salix seeds
collection and Computer  harvesting
cultivation rights software rights Total
HER
DIBER iRk
TR BB e e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHETT FET F&T FHETT
CosT B AE
At 1st January, 2007 RZZEZE+F—H—H - 1,796 - 1,796
Exchange realignment P& 5 AR - 124 - 124
Acquired on acquisition of U BB BT B X RIS TS A AR
subsidiaries 167,156 - - 167,156
At 31st December, 2007 R-ZBZE+EFE+=-_A=1+—8 167,156 1,920 - 169,076
Exchange realignment [E % - 123 - 123
Addition INE - 58,829 58,829
At 31st December, 2008 RZBENF+=-A=+—H 167,156 2,043 58,829 228,028
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION REBHERAE
AND IMPAIRMENT
At 1st January, 2007 RZTL+F—H—H - 100 - 100
Exchange realignment [E 5, % - 7 - 7
Impairment loss recognised FARRRERE
in the year - 1,173 - 1,173
Provided for the year FNEE 1,931 640 = 2,571
At 31st December, 2007 R-EBEZT+FE+-A=+—H 1,931 1,920 - 3,851
Exchange realignment [E 5 % - 123 - 123
Impairment loss recognised FARRAEEE
in the year 145,823 - 16,053 161,876
Provided for the year FREE 4,894 = = 4,894
At 31st December, 2008 RZZEZENF+-_A=+—H 152,648 2,043 16,053 170,744
CARRYING AMOUNTS RESHE
At 31st December, 2008 RZEENF+-_A=1—H 14,508 - 42,776 57,284
At 31st December, 2007 R-EZE+F+-_A=+—-H 165,225 - - 165,225

The licorice and salix collection and cultivation rights and Jatropha
seeds harvesting rights have finite useful lives and are amortised on
a straight-line basis over twenty-nine to forty-six years.

Licorice and salix collection and cultivation rights

As at 31st December, 2008, the directors of the Company
conducted a review of the Group’s collection and cultivation rights
and impairments were made based on the valuation exercise
conducted by Greater China, for the purpose of assessing the
recoverable amounts. Accordingly, impairment loss of approximately
HK$145,823,000 (2007:Nil) has been recognised.

H & R UL R Ko m AT SR UG BB B
EAMEREY  WIREREEA—TNEF
ENFEE -

HERDHWERIZEE
R-BEZENF+_A=+—H  ARQF
BEERBEETEETZHE  BHA
EEINERIFEEZTRE S ELE
TTRER S - AR ERBEEIEBLY
145,823,000 L (Z T F : &) -
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20. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Licorice and salix collection and cultivation rights (continued)
The recoverable amounts of the collection and cultivation rights for
licorice and salix were determined from value-in-use calculations, as
extracted from Greater China’s valuation report for the recoverable
amounts as at 31st December, 2008. The Group prepared cash
flow forecast from the most recent available financial budgets and
extrapolated over the remaining life of the licorice and salix collection
and cultivation rights. In preparing the forecasts, management made
references to the capacity of the plantation area presently available
for plantation, and the modified licorice and salix’s growth data per
unit of plantation area compiled by the State Forestry Administration
in Inner Mongolia Province. The key assumptions for the value-in-
use calculation were those regarding discount rates and anticipated
changes to future selling prices, as follows:

— Management used a discount rate which is derived as the
Company’s cost of capital, representing the expected return
on the Company’s capital, and assigned the discount rates of
38.29% and 35.70% for licorice and salix, respectively (2007:
Both were 30.66%).

—  Future selling prices were estimated with reference to existing
and past quoted commodity prices of the forestry industry.

Computer software

During the year ended 31st December, 2007, the directors of the
Company considered that it is unlikely that the computer software
will have any future value-in-use and therefore the carrying
amount of this computer software in the amount of approximately
HK$1,173,000 was fully impaired.

Jatropha seeds harvesting rights

As at 31st December, 2008, the directors of the Company
conducted a review of the Group’s Jatropha seeds harvesting
rights and impairments were made based on the valuation exercise
conducted by Greater China, for the purpose of assessing the
recoverable amounts. Accordingly, impairment loss of approximately
HK$16,053,000 has been recognised.

The recoverable amounts of Jatropha seeds harvesting rights were
determined from value-in-use calculations as extracted from Greater
China’s valuation report for the recoverable amounts as at 31st
December, 2008. The Group prepared cash flow forecast from the
most recent available financial budgets and extrapolated over the
remaining life of the Jatropha seeds harvesting rights. In preparing
the forecasts, management made references to the capacity of
the plantation area presently available for plantation, and the
modified Jatropha's growth data per unit of plantation area. The key
assumptions for the value-in-use calculation were those regarding
discount rates and anticipated changes to future selling prices, as
follows:

— Management used a discount rate which is derived as the
Company's cost of capital, representing the expected return on
the Company's capital, and assigned a discount of 24.29%.

—  Future selling prices were estimated with reference to existing
and past quoted commodity prices of the forestry industry.

Green Global Resources Limited &k 2IRERE R B R A A

20. |EEE (|)

HERDHIWE RS EE ()
HERDYIUE K ISEE 2 /TR E & 58D
LERBEFENAEE - BRKEEE
AEER_—_ZEEN\F+_A=1T—"HZA
WESBEERS ARBUSTHHE

bl 5 B 2 B A5 TR A L0 T
iﬁﬁf’ﬁﬂj?ﬁé mEETRERR - R
HEAE - ERECSLZARAHER L
BERBEEARBREIMNEREANH
BN SEEREEN 2B REE -
AEEREZEZRE/ TR ERLR
KREBEMES

77

TE]
A

- BB AEARBESKAME
HZBRE - —HARMAEER
ZEHEE  MEERDPEE R
FEEZETCMIRED R A38.29%
&3570%(:3 TE+F BB
30.66%) ©

- AREBLLEMERBAR RBEFR
#&ﬁuuﬁ*ﬂﬁu‘l’

BT

BE—FTLFEF=A=+—ALFE.
A AEFRAE BT A gL A
AR (PR B8 - SRR R I 4

1,173,0005%7%%31%1&@ °

i B U R
ATTEENE+_A=+—HILEE K
NABEERBEEETFEETZMHEE  FH

$%zmﬁ*ﬂ¥w&*jﬁ&ﬁﬁ%@§%a :

& i /e R E E 1 4916,053,0008 T (==

THFEE)

R AT SR UAE 2 AT IR () & RE DR (E A EE
AENEERE - BREEEENERN
TENF+-_A=+—HZAKREEEL
BRE - AN B DA AT HY IR 51 U
ZHBBENER T FHELHES - RH
AenEA - RERERE  SEED
2= | g Al &1 2 E 8 A A A S
REEEEEEU  BEEE -t EER
%Z%xfﬁ”‘“%—l—@]ﬁﬁfﬁ?&*XEF%E

- EEERBEARRNEEKAMEH
ZEBRE - A—MARER 2 BHM
- MR REEZ R ERBE RS
24.29% -

- ARREELSEMERAEFBEM
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21. GOODWILL AND IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON 21. B2 EREmaSREAIR

GOODWILL
(a) GOODWILL (a) BHE
HK$'000
FHIT
COST RAME
At 1st January, 2007 R-ZEEL+F—H—H 45,805
Avrising on acquisition of Lk BE B B A BB Pl EE AR Rk AR
subsidiaries 151,839
At 31st December, 2007 RZEZ+HF+-_A=+—H 197,644
Adjustments to consideration @7t AU BB R (B
for acquisitions in prior (BE&E)
periods (Note) (70,000)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AT (33,033)
At 31st December, 2008 RZEZENF+_A=+—H 94,611
IMPAIRMENT BE
At 1st January, 2007 RZEZT+F—H—H -
Impairment loss recognised in  F AERBEEE
the year 40,771
At 31st December, 2007 RZEZ+F+_A=+—H 40,771
Impairment loss recognised in G A REZ IR EEE
the year 74,039
Eliminated on disposal of BB A B RS 8
subsidiaries (27,999)
At 31st December, 2008 R-EENF+_-_A=+—H 86,811
CARRYING AMOUNTS H&E
At 31st December, 2008 R-_ZEENF+=—_B=+—H 7,800
At 31st December, 2007 R-EEL+EFE+=-_RA=+—H 156,873

Particulars regarding impairment testing on goodwill are

disclosed in Note 21(b).

Note: The goodwill was adjusted in the amount of approximately
HK$70,000,000 attributable to the adjustment to consideration
paid (Note 31b) after the profit guarantee for Green Global
Salix was not met as at 31st December, 2008. Details of this
particulars had been set out in the Company’s announcement

dated 8th April, 2009.

BB E R A 2 B EE21(b)

EEO

e RZFENF+=A=1T—8"
Green Global Salix7R BE 3K 2 F %
B MBUESMNKEAZ(ME
31b) fE L 2 © &E#970,000,0007%8
TLETTHE - BHFIBHNAAR
AfA—TSTAFEFNANBZA
ﬁfﬁ o
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21. GOODWILL AND IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON 21. B8RS REIR @)

GOODWILL (continued)

(b) IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL (b)
For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill set out in
Note 21(a) has been allocated to four individual cash generating
units (2007: four). The carrying amounts of goodwill (net of
accumulated impairment losses) as at the balance sheet date
allocated to these units are as follows:

EERER R

RETRERR - 21 #ESIZ
BEEIEEMNE(ZFZTEF 0
BE)BUREELEN - RNEE
BEZRE TR (R RRERR)
BATEMNED

2008 2007
—EENF —ET+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
IT management and support: BRI EB RS E
— Acacia Asia Partners Limited —Acacia Asia Partners Limited
("Acacia”) and its subsidiary ([Acacial) M EME A7)
("Acacia Group”) ([Acaciae & ) = -
Real estate consultancy service: [ Hb 2 R R AR TS
— GP Group —GPEE - 5,034
Agro-conservation: BERS :
— Green Global Licorice China Limited —Green Global Licorice China
(formerly known as “Huge Value Limited (BT Huge Value
Development Ltd.”) Development Ltd. )
("Green Global Licorice”) ([ Green Global Licorice ) - 29,578
— Green Global Salix China Limited — Green Global Salix China
(formerly known as “Quest Limited (AT ##E[ Quest Asia
Asia Development Limited”) Development Limited |)
("Green Global Salix") (I Green Global Salix]) - 114,461
Bio-energy: EWIREIR
— Lao Agro Promotion —Lao Agro Promotion
Co., Ltd. Co., Ltd.
(“Lao-Agro”) ([Lao-Agro]) 7,800 7,800
7,800 156,873
During the year ended 31st December, 2008, the Group REBE-_ZEENFE+-_A=+—HII&E
recognised impairment losses of approximately HK$74,039,000 B AEBEDHUEGreen Global Licorice
in relation to the goodwill arising from the acquisition of Green K Green Global SalixFiE A g & @A mEE
Global Licorice and Green Global Salix. B5184974,039,00055 7T ©
During the year ended 31st December, 2007, the Group Br—Ezt+F+-_A=+—BIL&EE
recognised impairment losses of approximately HK$40,771,000 A ANEBE G EAcaciaE B R GPEEFT
in relation to the goodwill arising from the acquisition of Acacia EACE  FEZRA40,771,0000 7T 25
Group and GP Group. B -

Green Global Resources Limited £k 53R ERE R AR A A



21. GOODWILL AND IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON 21. B2 RmeRENR @)
GOODWILL (continued)

(b) IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL (continued) (b) BEREAHR(E)

IT management and support:

In view of the operating landscape for Acacia’s business has
become increasingly difficult, with the PRC Government's
imposition of austerity measures and higher operating
requirements for brokerages. In view of the plunging number
of transactions and negative prospects, the directors of the
Company is seriously assessing the future viability of Acacia
and considers that the carrying amount of the goodwill arising
from acquisition of Acacia in the amount of approximately
HK$12,772,000 was fully impaired for the year ended 31st
December, 2007.

Real estate consultancy service:

As at 31st December, 2007, in view of the current and future
business prospects and financial situation of GP Group, the
current slow down in the property agency market in the PRC,
the stringent austerity measures that have been imposed by
the PRC government, and the future capital requirements
of GP. With the current focus on agri-business, the directors
of the Company considered that it is in the interests of the
Company and the shareholders as a whole to reallocate its
resources towards the agri-business activities of the Group,
which the directors of the Company consider to have better
future prospects, therefore on 3rd March, 2008, the Group
entered into a sale and purchase agreement for the disposal of
GP Group for a consideration of approximately HK$4,267,000
(equivalent to RMB4,000,000). With reference to the sales
considerations, the directors of the Company considered that
the carrying amount of goodwill arising from acquisition of
GP Group in the amount of approximately HK$27,999,000
was recognised as impairment loss for the year ended 31st
December, 2007.

GP Group was disposed on 31st March, 2008.

BRI EERSIE
BB A AL I T M T IR i &
RESLLPIE  BfFAcaciatEE ¥
BRI ERBEAREE - ERRFHH
SRETE - MNERTSEX AT
BEHFEHTHAcaciak R EE
BN WARAEREZE-ZZTLF+=
=t+—BItFEBWKEAcaciaFTE
EZEERESEER12,772,0004 7T
2 EURE ©

EHE RS -
R-ZBE+E+_A=+—H Z&
BIGPEEREB R ARNEBRIIZ X
BN - FEYERENBEERS
WAE - qﬂlﬁkﬁ%ﬁﬁm%fwﬁ’]?%ﬁaﬁ
e LARGPHIARKRE S B K ¢
MEREEREHSEBELEHE
REW KRREERE BERE
EP%xJ\ﬁﬂJ%%’*EHIJ%@1$E@$%
BEEEL TAARAERBRREZ
Bz - At RZZTEENE=
A=H AKETEEWmzANR
B 44,267,000 T(HER AR
4,000,0007T) HEGPEE - 2
ERE ARAREFATREE-ZT
T+FE+-_A=+—HILtFEEBK
BGPEEFEA A ERESBEY
27,999,00078 TTHER AR AR 18 °

GPEBER -_ZTTN\F=A=1+—H
HE -

Agro-conservation BERE
For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE_ZZN\F+_A=+—HILF
g

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that, in
light of the failure to meet the minimum guaranteed income
amount guaranteed on the acquisition of Green Global Salix,
the transition from harvesting wild to cultivated crops in Inner
Mongolia, the severity of the global financial and economic
crisis and based on the business valuation reports for Green
Global Licorice and Green Global Salix as at 31st December,
2008 issued by Greater China, the recoverable amounts of
Green Global Licorice and Green Global Salix are less than
their respective carrying amounts as at 31st December, 2008,
accordingly impairment losses of approximately HK$29,578,000
and HK$44,461,000 are made, respectively.

ARABEERE @ ENREERNE
Green Global SalixFF{RE 2 SR U A
RE2EE  RATHBE W T £z
BIEERESR RSB R EBH
B EBRBEEETFER -T2
NF+= A =+—H5Green Global
Licorice &2 Green Global Salix3% 1 7
SIEERE - # Green Global Licorice
&Green Global SalixZ AT 4 [0] & 581K

REZER_ZEZENF+_A=+—
EIZEEETE At 5 B E L R E BB
#7 29,578,000 & 7T K 44,461,000 /%
— -
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21.GOODWILL AND IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON
GOODWILL (continued)
(b) IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL (continued)

Agro-conservation (continued)
For the year ended 31st December, 2007

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that, based
on the business valuation reports for Green Global Licorice and
Green Global Salix as at 31st December, 2007 issued by Greater
China, the business values of these subsidiaries exceed their
carrying amount in the consolidated balance sheet as at 31st
December, 2007 and therefore no impairment loss is necessary.

Green Global Licorice and Green Global Salix

The recoverable amounts of Green Global Licorice and Green
Global Salix are determined from value-in-use calculation
as extracted from Greater China’s valuation report for the
recoverable amounts as at 31st December, 2008. The Group
prepared cash flow forecast derived from the most recent
available financial budgets and extrapolated over the following
five years. In preparing the forecasts, management made
references to the capacity of the plantation area presently
available for plantation, and the modified Licorice and Salix’s
growth data per unit of plantation area complied by State
Forestry Administration of the Hang Jin Qi in Inner Mongolia
Province. The key assumptions for the value-in-use calculation
were those regarding discount rates and anticipated changes to
future selling prices, as follows:

— Management used a discount rate which is derived as
the Company’s cost of capital, representing the expected
return on the Company’s capital, and assigned discount
rates of 36.29% and 33.70% (2007: Both are 28.66%) to
Green Global Licorice and Green Global Salix, respectively.

—  Future selling prices were estimated with reference to
existing and past quoted commodity prices of the forestry
industry.

Bio-energy

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that, based
on the business valuation reports for Lao-Agro as at 31st
December, 2008 and 31st December, 2007 issued by Greater
China, the business value of this subsidiary exceeds its carrying
amount in the consolidated balance sheet as at 31st December,
2008 and 31st December, 2007 and therefore no impairment
loss is necessary.

Green Global Resources Limited 4k 2IRELE R AR A A)

21. B R EREER®)
(b) FEERER ()

BERE (&)
HE_ZTLF+_HA=1T—HIHF
E

RKRRIEERA  BEBZETER
—EEL+F+-H=+—H3Green
Global Licorice &2Green Global Salix
M EBHERSE  ZEWBRFIZ
HEEEBHEAR_ZEZLF+H
—t—H&HRaEEAERERE -
it BB VE R EESIE o

Green Global Licorice &2Green Global
Salix

Green Global Licorice &2Green Global
Salix 2 AJ Bl ¢ FEILFEABEFEE
E o BREBERENEER_ZEZN
F+ZA=t+—RAzUkEeEHE
s AEESBTEIH M RE
BERARRAFE2HE - GRESR
T80 - RETBRE - BEELEH
BRI S 2 B A E pE LA S8 AR
ARG EMBELBERMNERTEE
EEBMN 2 EETHE RDUIERE
Bo-AEERECEEREA T
MR ERRREBEBES 2R

- EEERBAEARARESKA
FrisH 2 BRIRE - BlI—F QA&
& 2 JEHIEIFR © ™ Green Global
Licorice X Green Global Salix
ZIEEMBE XS B /536.29%
833.70%(ZFT+F 54
28.66%) °

- ARKREEBESEMERRABNB
EFT R BB R G5

EVREIR

RRABEERR  BBEEFTENRZ
TEN\F+_A=Z+—BR-_ZTTt
F+ - H=+—H5Btlao-Agro® i 2
EHHERS - EMBARCEHEE
BBREHARZZEZNGFTZA=1+—
BE—ZZE+F+_A=+—H%&
BEABXRCEEE  BALEEER
IEEIE o



21. GOODWILL AND IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON 21. B8RS REIR @)
GOODWILL (continued)

(b) IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL (continued) (b) EEBRERNE (&)

Bio-energy (continued) EYBENR (&)

The recoverable amount of Lao-Agro is determined from the Lao-ArgoZ AT Bl & 58 Ty iz FEE
value-in-use calculation as extracted from Greater China’s FTEAET c B EEEFERR
valuation report for the recoverable amount as at 31st —EENF+_A=1t—HBZzAYME
December, 2008. The Group prepared cash flow forecast SREMGERS  NEBUSITEME
derived from the most recent available financial budgets CHBEENRFE 2 HERER SR
and extrapolated over five years. In preparing the forecasts, SR - RETERE  EEEEL2ZE
management made references to the capacity of the plantation A HEE s mREE RiEE R
area presently available for plantation, and the modified SREEARSM MRS - STEF
Jatropha’s growth data per unit of plantation area. The key REBzEEZREA TR ERR
assumptions for the value-in-use calculation were those REETBEEE)

regarding discount rates and anticipated changes to future
selling prices, as follows:

- Management used a discount rate which is derived as — BEEHBAARFELRNARE
the Company’s cost of capital, representing the expected BB R Al —EARERY
return on the Company’s capital, and assigned a discount TEHARIZR + MlLao-Argo.Z ¥ & Af
of 24.95% (2007: 22.13%). BERRB2495%(ZTZLF:

22.13%) °

—  Future selling prices were estimated with reference to — RKEBNIHNREMERBELRBE
existing and past quoted commodity prices of the forestry PR mmBA&hEt o
industry.

22.LOAN ADVANCED TO A MINORITY 22.A—&VBBHIBHES
SHAREHOLDER

2008 2007
—EENF ZTTLF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FH&T
USD 200,000 repayable in 2013, BR-E—=F
unsecured {88 2200,000% T -
and non-interest bearing AEEENRE S 586 -
The effective interest rate on the loan to a minority shareholder is MABRREEERZCERMN XS
22.72%. 22.72% °
23. INVENTORIES 23. %K
2008 2007
—EENF —TT+F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FH&T
Information technology products BEEE 2 EAEHESRS
held for resale, at cost YRR AR 259 5,192
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24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 24. B 5 R H B RIE
2008 2007
—EENE —ETTLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHEIT
Trade receivables H 5 W FRIE 92,188 69,024
Less: Impairment losses recognised B ERERBEEE (60,153) (43,876)
32,035 25,148
Prepayment, deposit and other receivables  FE{FRIE ~ 324 Ko £ jiE W 5008 91,289 7,263
Total trade and other receivables B 5 REMERFIEERE 123,324 32,411

The Group normally grants to its customers credit periods ranging
from 30 days to 180 days which are subject to periodic review by

management.

(a)

Green Global Resources Limited 4k B IRERE RARA A

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables at the balance
sheet date, net of impairment losses recognised was as follows:

AREB—RETEFIOAEI1B0KRTE
ZEH  THEERETEHERS -

(a)

REER - NREERRMEBERZ
B P RUGRIERRE DI -

2008 2007

ZBENF —ETAF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FAT

Within 90 days 90K A 26,209 18,902
91 days to 180 days 91 RE180K 1,768 2,600
181 days to 365 days 181 K&E365XK 3,034 3,477
Over 365 days 365 KA = 1,024 169
32,035 25,148

The movements in provision for impairment losses of trade

(b)

B 5 W IRR (B & 18 # e 2 2

receivables were as follows: ™
2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&T FET
At 1st January »w—H—H 43,876 41,461
Exchange realignment PEE 5, S £ 166 119
Recognised during the year FRHER 20,841 2,296

Eliminated on disposal of subsidiaries/ H&EHB AR, —EHEA R

deregistration of a subsidiary B 5 i A i £ (4,730) -
At 31st December Rt+=—_A=+—H 60,153 43,876




24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(@

At 31st December, 2008 and 2007, the analysis of trade
receivables that were past due but not impaired are as follows:

24. R R AP R IR (|)

(0

RZEENFR_ZFEELF+ A
=+—H G siEEREZEHEK
FIELHOT ¢

Past due but not impaired

Neither past BRERAE

due nor 9110180 181 to 365 1to2
Total impaired <90days days days years

A 91% 181Z
e TERE <90K 180K 365% 1226
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THT THT THT THT
31st December, 2008 —TENFF+-A=+—H 32,035 25,216 2,771 321 2,703 1,024
31st December, 2007 —FTLE+-A=+—H 25148 14,438 5,581 1,483 3,477 169

Trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a wide range of customers who has no recent history
of default.

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that has a good track
record with the Group. Based on past experience, management
believes that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect
of these balances as there has not been a significant change
in credit quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.

The fair values of the Group’s trade and other receivables at the
balance sheet date approximated to the corresponding carrying
amounts due to their short-term maturities.

Included in trade receivables are the following denominated in
a currency other than the functional currency of the entity to
which they relate:

I 8 B TR R 2 B 5 R WG IR T
HETMENRECRZEPAR -

EEHEERE 2 E 5 R IA T
—HEAEEEERIRFLE LB
VYEFEH REBSELR AARE
EBRUWESAEHRERIDAAIA
R REEEREZFERT
ENEFELRERE - AREWER
HZEBHRTBEEMEAS -

AEBZE 5 MEMEKFKIRGNE
HRIH  wEREERZAFER
HEREESEEE -

B 5 RWFIRBRE T AEERAEY
BEERINEBEE 2708 ¢

2008 2007
—EENFE T F

‘000 000

Fx Tt

RMB AR 8,161 =

Annual Report 2008 &-5f



106

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR B R MY ot

For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE—ZTZTN\F+-A=+—HILFE

24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 24. B 5 R HMEIWKRIE (@)

(e) Included in other receivables is an amount of approximately (e) K fib fE W 3k 18 B 15 A WK B8 Green
HK$70,000,000 which was attributed to the adjustment to Global SalixZ @ FI{REARALEZE] - M
consideration paid (Note 31(b)) after the profit guarantee for R-ZZEZNF+_A=+—HBHHAEE
the acquisition of Green Global Salix was not met as at 31st B 2 £ 58 £970,000,0007% 7T (Bt
December, 2008. F31(b)) °

25. BANK BALANCES AND CASH 25. BRITHBRRIEE

2008 2007
—EEN\F —ETLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Bank balances and cash SRITHEBREIRE 58,790 31,553

Other time deposits with original maturity of BARRIEHE A=A
more than three months when acquired PA bz B EERTFRR 34,964 41,386
93,754 72,939

Less: Other time deposits with a maturity of

B BARZIHAA=EA

more than three months when acquired LA £ 2 B 5E HATR 3K (34,964) (41,386)
Cash and cash equivalents e RIREZEY 58,790 31,553
Bank balances and cash/other time deposits BITEBRERS HitEHERK
At the balance sheet date, about 56% (2007: 92%) of bank REER - RITEHREIBEPL56% (=
balances and cash was denominated in RMB. RMB is not a freely THF Q2% UNARBE - ARBIIE

convertible currency.

BEREBREE -

Bank balances and other time deposits carry interest at an average 1T A A N A A TE BAE R TS ) R

market rate of 1.67% (2007: 2.26%).

1.67%(ZZFFLF 1 2.26% )T B

The fair values of the other time deposits and bank balances at the AR H b TE HATF KR IRITAE SR S A A B
balance sheet date approximated to the corresponding carrying B MARBEEB 2 A FEEEERE®

amounts due to their short-term maturities.

Green Global Resources Limited 4k B IRERE RARA A

BRE o



26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

26. RA R A MPEFHRIF

2008 2007
—E2EN\F T LF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FATT

Trade payables =0 ANEeE
— third parties —F=% 1,425 1,198
— minority shareholders —DBRE R 325 325
1,750 1,523
Accrued expenses and other payables ezt E A R EH tEAIE 69,260 69,100
71,010 70,623

B 5 R R Z Bk i 0 AT 40

The ageing analysis of the trade payables at the balance sheet date
was as follows:

- %
B
o
I

2008 2007

—E2BN\F e

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHET FH&TT

Within 180 days 180K - -
181 days to 365 days 181 KE365K 227 81
Over 365 days 365K 1,523 1,442
1,750 1,523

As at 31st December, 2008, included in other payables is an RZZEZENFF+ZA=+—8 ' EfjE

R IE 910,000,000 T ( — BT L4 ¢
18,000,000 7T ) ¥& Bt U B8 Green Global
LicoricefE M 2 EIER B (FE R HIE31(@a)) °
S BEIYEER - BIRERKEERIFRT
TSRS o

amount of approximately HK$10,000,000 (2007: HK$18,000,000)
which represents deferred consideration payable in relation to the
acquisition of Green Global Licorice as set out in Note 31(a). The
amount is unsecured, repayable on demand and carries interest at
prevailing market rate.

R-FEZLF+_A=1+—H %8R
EEM  RERAREBREER -

As at 31st December, 2007, the amount was unsecured, non-
interest bearing and repayable on demand.

The fair values of the Group’s trade and other payables at the REE B 5 R EH MR FRIERE A
balance sheet date approximated to the corresponding carrying B WMEARGBEB AT EEEERES
amounts due to their short-term maturities. #HRE o
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27. SHARE CAPITAL 27. &
Number
of shares Amount
R EE ok |
HK$'000
FET
Ordinary share of HK$0.10 each HHREE0. 108 T2 Filmik
Authorised: EE
At 1st January, 2007 R=ZEZ+F—HF—H 1,000,000,000 100,000
Increase in authorised share capital SETERAIE AN (BIEET)

(Note 1) 2,000,000,000 200,000
At 31st December, 2007 NR-_EE+F+=—_A=+—H 3,000,000,000 300,000
Increase in authorised share capital SEE R A I (BIEE2)

(Note 2) 5,000,000,000 500,000
At 31st December, 2008 R-EENF+_-_A=+—H 8,000,000,000 800,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRAR
At 1st January, 2007 R=ZEZ+F—HF—H 674,998,552 67,500
Issue of shares upon: AT 7 EEETRG ¢

Placement of shares (Note 3 & 4) Bo & B 1n (BtsE3 % 4) 270,000,000 27,000

Exercise of share options (Note 5) TR R AR (P 5E5) 51,460,000 5,146

Conversion of convertible loan notes R E R EE (M5E6)

(Note 6) 38,800,705 3,880
At 31st December, 2007 RZZEELF+-_A=+—H 1,035,259,257 103,526
Issue of shares upon: B R7IEIBEI T ¢

Placement of shares (Note 7) BeERD (MI3E7) 199,000,000 19,900

Exercise of share options (Note 8) FT{E R AR AE (BT sE8) 800,000 80

Conversion of convertible loan notes BB AEE R EE (M3E9)

(Note 9) 32,363,315 3,237

Issued on right issue (Note 10) AR ETT(FFEE10) 1,267,422,572 126,742
At 31st December, 2008 RZEZENE+-_A=1+—H 2,534,845,144 253,485

Green Global Resources Limited £k 53R ERE R AR A A



27. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes:

1.

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 26th March, 2007 for
the increase of the authorised share capital of the Company from
HK$100,000,000 divided into 1,000,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.10 each to HK$300,000,000 divided into 3,000,000,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.10 each by the creation of an additional 2,000,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each.

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 21st July, 2008, the
shareholders of the Company approved the increase in authorised
share capital of the Company from 3,000,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.10 each to 8,000,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each by
the creation of an additional 5,000,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10
each.

On 22nd January, 2007, pursuant to a placing and subscription
agreement with VC Brokerage Limited, the Company placed out
110,000,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the Company at
a price of HK$0.22 per share to independent third parties. A sum of
approximately HK$23,880,000 net of placement expenses was raised
and used as working capital of the Group.

On 15th June, 2007, pursuant to a placing and subscription agreement
with Citic Securities Corporate Finance (HK) Limited, the Company
placed out 160,000,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the
Company at a price of HK$0.72 per share to independent third parties.
A sum of approximately HK$112,850,000 net of placement expenses
was raised and used as working capital of the Group.

For the year ended 31st December, 2007, 42,200,000 share options
were exercised at a price of HK$0.15 each, 2,660,000 shares at
HK$0.233 each and 6,600,000 shares at HK$0.10 each resulting in the
issue of 51,460,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the Company.

On 24th October, 2007, the convertible loan note holders converted
HK$22,000,000 convertible loan notes into 38,800,705 ordinary shares
of HK$0.10 each in the Company at a conversion price of HK$0.567.

On 25th February, 2008, pursuant to a placing and subscription
agreement with Integrated Asset Management (Asia) Limited
(“Integrated Asset”), the Company placed out 199,000,000 new
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the Company at a price of HK$0.25
per share. A sum of approximately HK$49,750,000 was raised and used
as working capital of the Group.

For the year ended 31st December, 2008, 800,000 share options
were exercised at a price of HK$0.15 resulting in the issue of 800,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the Company.

27.BB&E &)

Bt -

1.

BE—ER-_ZTETLtF=ZA=-+H
BBZEBREER  BEBBINEM
2,000,000,0000% FAXFEI{EO0. 10/ T2 il
8% - #&7AA R]E E IR 7K B9 100,000,000 7
7t (% 41,000,000,000 0% & A% & {£0. 1055
JT 2 3@ A% ) 1 N 2 300,000,000 7T (2
#$3,000,000,000/% F X EEO0. 108 L 2 &
AR ©

BE—HER-_ZEZENFLtA-_+—HA
BrERRER  AQRBREIESS
FEHNE H0'5,000,000,000 A% 5 IE E E0.10
BT ZEBE  BEAABETRAS
3,000,000,000/% Z I EI{EO. 108 T2 & il
A% 4% 40 = 8,000,000,000 A% & A% T 50.17
TLZ EAR o

R-ZZ+F—A-_+—H - REHRER
BEARABE L ZRERRERE
RAEEFAR0.22BIL 2B MBULE=
77 B2 110,000,000 I & A {EH0.1078 7T
ZANRIFEBR - MBREERAZRES
#923,880,000%8 L 2 KIEE AEAEE &
BESD -

R-_ZEZLFRNATHA  RBREEPESE
HmE(BB)ARARGI N2 S MRE
W AEBEIRER0.72B T ZER  H
M 5 = 5 B2 & 160,000,000 A% & IS &
0. 10 L2 AR RIFN LA - MR SR
X 1% %1549112,850,000/8 T 2 S IBC A
EREBEEESD -

REBEE_TET+tF+_A=+—8It#F
JE + 42,200,000 B B2 #& - 2,660,000 17
& A% # 1 6,600,00015 B AR # £ Rz & &
0.15%8 7T * BA%0.233/% 7T X &A%0.107% 7T
ZERITE - EEEE1T51,460,0000% &%
EE0. 10 T2 AN A R @A -

R-ZET+FE+A-+ME - AJHRE
REEFAEARLBRES7TE T #
22,000,000 70 2 AT A IR B SR 2 8 K
38,800,705 F AR EI{E0. 1078 0 2 A A A
LRAR o

RZZEZENF-_AZ+HAB BEHE
Integrated Asset Management (Asia)
Limited ([ Integrated Asset]) &l 3 2 Fd &
RRERZE - AARIREAR0.25B T 2B
1% - A2 =75 B 199,000,000 A% &
FEEE0. 1078 T2 AR B #T LA - 1k
fid & [ 3 12 £ 15 4949,750,00078 7T, 308
EREREEZEES

REE-_TTZNF+-_A=+—HBIF
&+ 800,00017 BE AR 1Z0.15B T 2 B
171F - B 1T800,000 % &A% EI{E0.10
BILZARNE LR
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Iy =

27.

28.

Green

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes: (continued)

9.  On 16th January, 2008, a convertible loan note holder converted
HK$18,350,000 convertible loan notes into 32,363,315 ordinary shares
of HK$0.10 each in the Company at a conversion price of HK$0.567.

10. Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 8th August, 2008, a
rights issue of 1,267,422,572 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in
the Company was issued at a price of HK$0.108 each (the “Rights
Issue”). A sum of approximately HK$131,680,000 net of expenses was
raised and used in the Argo-conversation and Bioenergy segments for
plantation expenditure and nursery establishment.

11. All the ordinary shares issued during the two years ended 31st
December, 2008 ranked pari passu with the then existing ordinary
shares in all respects.

CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES

During the year ended 31st December, 2007, pursuant to the
acquisition of the entire issued share capital of Green Global Salix,
the Company issued zero-coupon convertible loan notes as partial
settlement of the acquisition consideration. The convertible loan
notes have an aggregate principal amount of HK$120,000,000 and
are denominated in HK$. The notes entitle the holders to convert
them into ordinary shares of the Company at any time between
the date of issue of the notes and their settlement date on 1st
October, 2010 in multiples of HK$1,000,000 at a conversion price of
HK$0.567 (subject to adjustments) per convertible loan note.

On 8th August, 2008, the Company completed the Rights Issue.
Pursuant to the terms of the convertible loans, the conversion price
per share and the number of conversion share after the Rights Issue
was 173,152,174 exercisable at HK$0.46 per convertible loan notes.

The shares to be issued and allotted upon conversions shall rank pari
passu in all respects among themselves and with all other ordinary
shares in issue by the Company on the date of such allotment and
issue.

The convertible loan notes contain two components, liability and
equity elements. The equity element is presented in equity heading
("convertible bonds reserve”). The effective interest rate of the
liability component is 9.75%.

Global Resources Limited £ IR E R B R A A

27.

28.

& (&)

BiaE - (48)

9. RZZZN\FE—AF+B —RABK
BEREEFAARLIRE0567ET © 1
18,350,000/ 7T 2 AJ R B TR Z 1K 5 A
32,363,315 B REE0.10E T 2 A A A
TRAL o

10. ME-—EBERZ-ZZETENFENANBBRBZ
LRFBR AR AIEITHE - BERK
0.108 % 7T 2 B 1% 817 1,267,422,572 %
EREEOI10B T2 AR A A% (4
f& 1) o BRF 218 E15%7131,680,000/%8
TLZFEE AR BERE £/ R AEMEE
RO EMEEER S ARET B E -

1. BE-_ZZN\F+_A=+—HLEREF
ERTzhBELEARES T EEER 2R
BT MR =ERRER -

AR ERRE
REE-_ZTEZELF+_A=+—HLF
B NAF U EGreen Global Salix® &6
BEITRABITESEBABRBREREE - I
ERBUMERE D - TRKRERERR
R4 %E/4120,000,000/87C © LABTTEHE ©
EESAEATRERRTHEHRELEE A
—ZE-FF+A—H) L BHEREMR
M REMHABRREREZIE0.5678 T 2R
# B (7] F#8%) 51,000,000 7T 2 5 &%
Z RSB AR R LB

RZZEZENFNANB » NARFEKH
f% o IRIZATARR E R Z G - HIRE TR
HRER SRR MHEE £173,152,1740% -
AR S5 PR E R EIE0.4678TTIT{E -

BASL IR AS T 31T ML 2 B Rt 2 7]
FEABEZELRBTREHERETZAR
AIAEEMEBRES T mEE G R E
%lJ o

TR ERRE - DRRRE
KIEmDmEBD - AN NAEes T 25 ([ 7]
BEESFE])  AERIZCBERNER
9.75% °

k@



28.

29.

CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES (continued) 28. Al R R T (@)
The movement of the liability component of the convertible loan FANTBMRERZEREETL D 2 EEH
notes for the year is set out below: Ul
2008 2007
—EENF T LF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Carrying amount at 1st January R—AR—BZEA$E 75,878 -
Issue of convertible loan notes FABITITRREREE
during the year - 90,775
Effective interest expenses (Note 11) R B W (MFE11) 6,069 1,842
Conversion during the year FRH B (14,264) (16,739)
Carrying amount at 31st December Rt+—A=+—BzZEE<5 67,683 75,878
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY 29. REREAE
The following is the deferred tax liability recognised and movements AEERBEFEEOEAYELRIEAE
thereon during the current and prior years: RAAEZEHMT :
Collection
and
cultivation
rights
WERIEERE
HK$'000
FH&TT
At 1st January, 2007 R-EZE+F—H—H =
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 31) W RE b A R (PR EE31) 41,789
At 31st December, 2007 R-EZ+F+_-_A=+—H 41,789
Credit to consolidated income statement  FREF ALZA = E
for the year (38,162)
At 31st December, 2008 R-_BENF+-_A=+—H 3,627
At the balance sheet date, the Group has unused tax losses of REER  NEBBARSAHKIBEEIEY
approximately HK$21,729,000 (2007: HK$21,714,000) available 21,729,000 L( ZFZF+4F : 21,714,000
for offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been BTT) - ATREEERIOEN o AR AREE
recognised in respect of the remaining tax losses due to the TEARRFERR » Bt I R E AR R IR
unpredictability of future profit streams. The tax losses may be B RRELEHRIEEE - HIBEER &R
carried forward indefinitely. 4 o
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29.

30.

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY (continued)

At the balance sheet date, the Group has deductible
temporary differences of approximately HK$77,901,000 (2007:
HK$44,158,000). No deferred tax assets have been recognised in
relation to such deductible temporary difference as it is not probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary difference can be utilised.

Under the New Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries from 1st
January, 2008 onwards (the “Post-2008 Earnings”). As at 31st
December, 2008, deferred taxation has not been provided for in the
consolidation financial statements in respect of temporary difference
attributable to the “Post-2008 Earnings” as the Group is able to
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and
it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

The Company’s current share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was
adopted by the shareholders on 30th May, 2002 for the primary
purpose of providing incentives to directors, employees and
persons providing services to the Group. It will expire on 29th May,
2012. Under the Scheme, the board may grant options to eligible
employees, including directors of the Company and its subsidiaries,
suppliers and business associates to subscribe for shares in the
Company.

At the balance sheet date, the number of share options granted and
remained outstanding under the Scheme was 308,043,518 (2007:
86,141,855), representing 12.15% (2007: 8.32%) of the shares of
the Company in issue at that date. The total number of shares in
respect of which options may be granted under the Scheme is not
permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue
at any point in time, without prior approval from the Company’s
shareholders. The number of shares issued and to be issued in
respect of which options granted and may be granted to any
individual in any one year is not permitted to exceed 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any point in time, without prior
approval from the Company’s shareholders. Options granted to
substantial shareholders and independent non-executive directors
in excess of 0.1% of the Company’s share capital or with a value
in excess of HK$5,000,000 must be approved in advance by the
Company'’s shareholders.

HK$1 is payable upon the acceptance of each grant. Options may
be exercised at any time from the date of grant of the share option
during the option period ending on 29th May, 2012. The exercise
price is determined by the directors of the Company, and will not be
less than the higher of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares
on the offer date of the options; (ii) the average closing price of the
shares for the five business days immediately preceding the offer
date; and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares.

Green Global Resources Limited 4k 2IRELE R AR A A)

29.

30.

BIERERR @)

REER  AKEEUHREREZRD
77,901,000 7L (= Z 4 44,158,000
BIT) o R FESR RS M Al BE A EHKSE ]
FACAMREREZRE AW ELEHE
AT B i = R RE IR B EE -

RPEHTL  B-TTN\F—HA—H
i BETEMBARMMRIUEN ([ —ZF
TN\FERBMN]) ZRBEFGHREHOH - 1
—EENF+A=1T—H [ZF2/N\F
BBV IERZERERE - AEBEL KRR
EHRANGRAE VB HRERAFELEE - REAR
AEEREHREREZR KR - BF
FAERES Z BR Al BTN 10 A] LA ok o

BRnFRES
AARRABRETS([ZAEDRZ
T_FRAZTHERERMA  =EF
MEE  BEEERRBASEEZ ALRES
B BR-_E——FHEA-_thBER-
BEZTE ESgrARAERER (B
AR REWRBARES) HEFKER
BAREERE  AREBARARRD -

REEH  BEZTEERERINDATE
7 BERHE 5308,043,518M ( BT+ 4 :
86,141,855 )  HERERB A RFE %
TN Z212.15% (ZFZT+F : 832%) °
R ERARARBEBLHAEZBERLT 1B
Bz ange iR 2 BB HEFT A R AR (0 48
o WMEMERTNSBEaEARAREEITR
D10%  MITEAR D TIRE S LA 1B
T R —FAEEAMERALEE R
AIRER 2 RS R E LR G g T
ZRMEE  WEREETNSEBEaANAR
BTN Z21% ° M1E£ ZIE ME 7 IEH
TESREBAaARNGIKRA.1%HEER
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30.SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

30. BRI IR 2 (#)

Exercise Fair value
Date of grant Exercise period price at grant date
% B
= TR TEE ZAYE

(Note 2)

(Bf&E2)
21st January, 2000 From date of grant to 20th January, 2010 HK$2.498 (Note 1)
—ETTTF—-A=+—H HELASE T —TF—A=+H 24987 7T (f7E1)
27th November, 2003 From date of grant to 29th May, 2012 HK$0.233 HK$0.05674
—ET=F+—H=-++tH BELBHE-T——FRA=-1+NA 0.23387T 0.056747%& 7T
19th August, 2006 From date of grant to 29th May, 2012 HK$0.100 HK$0.05674
—ZETRENATIE HELBHE-_T——FRA=-1+NAB 0.100% 7T 0.05674%8 T
29th November, 2006 From date of grant to 29th May, 2012 HK$0.150 HK$0.05674
—EERF+—HZTNHE HEHASE-_T——FRA_-1+NH 0.150% 7T 0.05674% 7T
16th April, 2007 From date of grant to 29th May, 2012 HK$0.355 HK$0.12500
—EELFNA+IRAH BELBHE-T——FRA=-1+NAB 0.355% 7T 0.125007% 7T
9th July, 2007 From date of grant to 29th May, 2012 HK$0.651 HK$0.20200
—ZET+F+LANA HELBHE-_T——FRA=-1+NAB 0.6517% 7T 0.20200/8 7T
20th November, 2007 From date of grant to 29th May, 2012 HK$0.375 HK$0.21700
—EEHF+—HZ+H AELASHE-—"ZT——FAA=-+NH 0.375%87T 0.2170078 7T
13th March, 2008 From date of grant to 12th September, 2012 HK$0.240 HK$0.05060
—ZETN\F=H+=H MELBHE-_ZT——FNLA+=8 0.2407%8 7T 0.050607% 7T
15th August, 2008 From date of grant to 30th May, 2012 HK$0.100 HK$0.02474
—ZETN\FENATHB HELBHE-_T——FRA=1H 0.100% 7T 0.02474% 7T
8th October, 2008 From date of grant to 30th May, 2012 HK$0.100 HK$0.01637
—ZEZEN\F+HN\E HELASE T ——FHA=1H 0.100/8 7T 0.01637%7T

In accordance with the terms of the share-based arrangement,
options issued vest at the date of grant.

Note 1: The fair value of the options granted under the previous scheme
has not been estimated as the directors believe that the likelihood
of the exercise of the right is remote in view of the high value of
the exercise price of such options relative to the current market
price of the Company’s shares.

The fair value of those granted in 2003 was estimated by the
directors. Options were priced using the Black-Scholes option pricing
model. Expected volatility is based on extracts from Bloomberg'’s
information based on 400 trading days (around 1.5 years).

RIBRD ZBHGRR - B BITRRER R G

HHRE -

MIEE1 - ERRBBEFTICROBEEZITE
EBEREESNARARNRITHE  EF
BETEEREZATEEIA - Al

BEEHEATE-

RZZEZE=FAEHEREZ AFERE
EEE - BREFEAI AN — &FRET |8
EEEEXTE  BHREHREZIERE
BE400ARX S5 B (GA1.5F )it E 2Bk -
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 HZ —ZZ \F+_A=+—HI-FE

30.SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 30. BIpft&ZXH @)
(continued)
The fair value of the share options granted by the Group during REBNEEZE-_ZEN\FEF+_A=+—H

¢¢W~tuza%w% NFETEREARE
BYEBEEsBIARREXGEMESE

the year ended 31st December, 2008 have been arrived at on the
basis of valuations carried out on the grant date by Greater China

(2007: Grant Sherman Appraisal Limited), independent qualified —ETLF E}:'M%%ﬁﬁﬁ Al R
professional valuers not connected with the Group. The fair values HBEEETZEEME - A FEVERR

Iﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂxﬁémfﬁﬁ;‘lﬁ(fgﬁfti 18
N — R HEEER)FE - Af

were calculated using The Binomial Option Pricing model (2007:
Black-Scholes option pricing model). The inputs into the model were

as follows: 8 A 2 BURAT ¢
Share options grant on
ERMRAER L A
13th 15th 8th 16th 9th 20th 29th 19th
March, August, October, April, July, November, November, August,
2008 2008 2008 2007 2007 2007 2006 2006
ZEEN\E ZEBEN\E BB\ CBRLF ZEBTLF ZBTTtE ZBBERE ZBERF
=AR NR 1A MA +A +-A 1+-A NR
+=H +EA NH 1R nLB —tH —thA t+hAE
Weighted average

share price HK$0.219 HK$0.097 HK$0.072 HK$0.360 HK$0.350 HK$0.360 HK$0.138 HK$0.138
IMEFIRE 02197 0.097#7x  0072%87m 036081 03507  0360#7T  0.138%7T  0.138871
Exercise price (Note 2) HK$0.240 HK$0.100 HK$0.100 HK$0.355 HK$0.651 HK$0.375 HK$0.150 HK$0.100
1B (M) 0.240%7  0.100%7 01007  0355&7T 06517 037587 015087  0.100/87T
Expected volatility 66.70% 65.82% 68.95% 53.87% 54.32% 113.59% 90.39% 90.39%
BHRIE 66.70% 65.82% 68.95% 53.87% 5432%  113.59% 90.39% 90.39%
Expected option period 4.5 years 3.8 years 3.6 years 2.6 years 24years  2.26 years 1.5 years 1.5 years
BRI 4.5% 38F 365 26%F 24% 2.26% 1.5% 1.5%
Dividend yield 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
REX 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Risk-free interest rate 1.765% 2.770% 1.782% 4.015% 4.417% 2.491% 3.642% 3.642%
mRE R A% 1.765% 2.770% 1.782% 4.015% 4.417% 2.491% 3.642% 3.642%
Option type Call Call Call Call Call Call Call Call
BREES Rl REHE  AEME  TELNE ZBhE REHE  REDE R e
The variables and assumptions used in computing the fair value of HEENENTEREREES N EBE TR

REZHERESE - BREEEREZES

the share options are based on the directors’ best estimate. The

value of an option varies with different variables of certain subjective
assumptions.

The Group recognised total expense of HK$7,912,000 for the year
ended 31st December, 2008 (2007: HK$18,372,000) in relation to
the share options granted by the Company.

Green Global Resources Limited £k 53R ERE R AR A A

FIBERZ TARBRS -

REBRBE_TTENFT_A=1+—
BEFERARARMEBELBRIERRE
F#%E791200F T (=L F
18,372,000/ 7T) °



30.SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 30. B3 E%5 @)

(continued)
Movements of the Company’s share options held by directors, FR - EH - BEREBBEHEFAEFEARAANT
employees and business associates during the year are: BERRRE B EINT ¢
Number of share options
EREZA
Exercise
Outstanding Outstanding Outstanding ~price per
at  Granted Lapsed  Exercised at3fst  Granted Lapsed  Exercised at31st share
1st January, during during during  December, during  Adjustment during during  December, (Note 2)
Grantee Date of grant 207  theyear  theyear  theyear 2007 the year (Note2) ~ theyear theyear 2008 HK$
RZBBLE RZBENE
RZ2%tE e =8 =1
-A-8 =t-A L] =t-H kg
ERA REBH AE FREE O FRER ERAR g FREL (F2)  ERAN ERR RTE (MzE2)
BT
Directors
£
Mr. Tse Michael Nam 9th July, 2007 - 996,000 - - 996,000 - 13,645 - - 1,009,645 0.651
A “EStELANA
13th March, 2008 = = = = - 8,900,000 121,930 = - 9021930 0.240
“EZ\§=AT=H
15th August, 2008 = = = = - 15316425 = = - 15316425 0.100
“ZEN\E\ATEA
Mr. Tai Benedict 29th November, 2006 600,000 - - (600,000) - - - - - - 0.150
HuEss ZEEET-AZTNA
Mr. Fu Yan Yan 29th November, 2006 600,000 - - (600,000) - - - - - - 0.150
BRmESE ZEEET-AZTNA
Ms. Wang Xi Ling 29th November, 2006 600,000 - - (600,000) - - - - - - 0.150
IRk ZEEET-AZTNA
Mr. Lim Yew Kong, John 16th April, 2007 - 600,000 - - 600,000 - 8,220 = = 608,220 0.355
Lim Yew Kong, John% s —E5+EMA+AH
15th August, 2008 - - - - - 1925780 - - - 1925780 0.100
ZZE\EN\A TR
8th October, 2008 = = = = - 6,466,000 = = - 6,466,000 0.100
“ZENFTANA
Mr. Albert Theodore 13th March, 2008 = = = = - 1,200,000 16,440 = - 1,216,440 0.240
Powers “ZE\E=fAT=H
Albert Theodore 15th August, 2008 = = = = - 1,317,560 = = - 1,317,560 0.100
Powers3: “ZE\ENA 1A
8th October, 2008 - - - - - 7,466,000 - - - 7,466,000 0.100
“ZENETANR
Mr. Pang Seng Tuong 13th March, 2008 - - - - - 1,200,000 16,440 - - 1,216,440 0.240
PangSeng Tuongis  —ZF/\E=F+=H
15th August, 2008 = = = = - 1,317,560 = = - 1,317,560 0.100
ZZE\E/\AT1A
8th October, 2008 - - - - - 6,466,000 - - - 6,466,000 0.100
ZZENETANA
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE—ZTZTN\F+-A=+—HILFE

30.SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 30. B3E%5 @)

(continued)
Number of share options
BREHE
Exercise
Outstanding Outstanding Outstanding ~price per
at Granted Lapsed  Exercised at 31st Granted Lapsed  Exercised at 31st share
Ist January, during during during  December, during  Adjustment during during  December, (Note 2)
Grantee Date of grant 2007  theyear  theyear  theyear 2007 the year (Note2) ~ theyear theyear 2008 HK$
R-BELE RZBENE
R-28tE t=A = =
-R-B Sl FiL SiiaH %R
BEA RUAH AME  FREE  FAKN ERAR A FREE (M) EAXM ERAE A (W)
A
Directors (continued)
E2(8)
Mr. Puongpun Sananikone 9th July, 2007 - 600,000 - - 600,000 - 8,220 - - 608,220 0.651
Puongpun Sananikone’t —FE+E L ANA
13th March, 2008 - - - - - 9,000,000 123,300 - - 9123300 0.240
“Z5/\E=A1=H
15th August, 2008 = = = = - 15,616,480 = = - 15,616,480 0.100
“ZEN\FN\ATEA
Other employees
EftES
In aggregate 27th November, 2003 3,000,000 = (340,000 (2,660,000) = - - - - - 0233
£k ZRRSEt-AT4A
29th November, 2006 8,000,000 - - (7,200,000) 800,000 - - - (800,000) - 0.150
2R ET-AZ A
9th July, 2007 - 3,750,000 - - 3,750,000 - 44,525 (500,000 - 3294525 0.651
ZZRHECANA
13th March, 2008 = = = = - 2,000,000 23975 (250,000) - 17113975 0.240
“ZEN\FZRT=ER
15th August, 2008 - - - - - 7,367,800 - (400,000) - 6,967,800 0.100
ZZE\EN\ATHA
8th October, 2008 - - - - - 1320550 - - - 1,320,550 0.100
“ZRNETANR
Business associates
EBBH
In aggregate 21st January, 2000 1,320,000 = = - 1,320,000 = 18,084 - - 1338084 2498
£ Z222E-fA-t-A
19th August, 2006 6,600,000 - - (6,600,000) - - - - - - 0.100
255N \ATAR
29th November, 2006 33,200,000 - - (33,200,000) - - - - - - 0.150
ZERRET-AZTAR
9th July, 2007 - 70,000,000 - - 70,000,000 - 959,000 - - 70,959,000 0.651
ZEREFLANA
20th November, 2007 - 8,075,855 - - 80758% - 110,639 - - 818649 0375
ZERLET-AHH
13th March, 2008 - - - - - 79,700,000 1,091,890 - - 80,791,890 0.240
“Z5/\E=A1=H
15th August, 2008 = = = = - 51,715,200 = = - 51,715,200 0.100
“ZEN\FNATEA
8th October, 2008 - - - - - 3,000,000 - - - 3,000,000 0.100
“TENFTANA
Total 3 53,920,000 84,021,855 (340,000) (51,460,000) 86,141,855 221,295,355 2,556,308  (1,150,000)  (800,000) 308,043,518
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30.SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(continued)
Note 2: As a result of the Rights Issue on 8th August, 2008, the exercise BitaE2 :

prices and the numbers of shares issuable upon exercise in full of the
outstanding options have been adjusted.

Note 3: In respect of the share option exercised during the year, the BEEE3 -

31. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(a)

weighted average share price at the date of exercise is HK$0.230
(2007: HK$0.269).

30. xR 2 (#)

AR N\F\A/N\BETHAE
T 18 Ro R 1T {50 i P o TR 5 BT T o By
AT EITZRNEE EIERE -

RENTTEZBRERS - RITEA

HZ i HREA0.2308 T (=F
T4 1 0.26987T) ©

31. KRB LR

On 27th March, 2007, the Group acquired 100% of the @ MNZEEZELF=A=-++tH &XE&E

share capital of Green Global Licorice for a consideration of B4% K & 78,000,000 7% 7T U BE Green
HK$78,000,000. This acquisition had been accounted for using Global Licorice 100% %78 o ZIB UK EE
the purchase method. The amount of goodwill arising as a DEHRAWEEAR - 2BEWEELRD
result of the acquisition was approximately HK$29,578,000. 24929,578,000/8 7T ° A @I W EE
The relevant information about the acquisition was as follows: ZIHBEERT -
Acquiree’s
carrying
amount before Fair value
combination adjustment Fair value
WU A F]
REeEftaTZ
RE<SHE AFERE ATE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT FHET
(Note 1)
(BtsE1)
Net assets acquired: g NFEE -
Collection and cultivation W& & SR A
rights - 65,645 65,645
Other payables H b JE T RUIE (15) = (15)
Deferred tax liability EEFIEAE - (16,411) (16,411)
(15) 49,234 49,219
Goodwill [EES 29,578
Total consideration BR(E 78,797
Satisfied by: YTHRIAR :
Cash He 60,000
Deferred consideration EIERE (B EE2)
(Note 2) 18,000
Transaction costs DN 797
Total consideration of the Wi E
acquisition 78,797
Net cash outflow arising on WEEEA 7 IR REE -
acquisition:
Cash consideration paid 2fRERE 60,000
Transaction costs paid BERRZKAE 797
60,797
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 HZ —ZZ \F+_A=+—HI-FE

31. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(a) (continued)
Notes:

1. The fair value adjustment represented the fair value of the collection
and cultivation rights as at 27th March, 2007, which was determined
by reference to the valuation carried out by Greater China.

2. Pursuant to the sales and purchase agreement dated 12th February,
2007, HK$18,000,000 will be payable on production of evidence
to the reasonable satisfaction of the Group that the audited profit
after taxation of Green Global Licorice in the twelve months after the
completion date of acquisition is not less than HK$7,000,000.

Green Global Licorice had no significant contribution to the Group’s
turnover and contributed approximately HK$12,030,000 profit to
the Group'’s loss before taxation for the period between the date of
acquisition and the balance sheet date.

If the acquisition had been completed on 1st January, 2007, there
would have been no significant impact on the Group’s turnover and
contributed approximately HK$12,030,000 profit to the Group’s loss
for the year. The pro forma information is for illustrative purposes
only and is not necessarily an indication of revenue and results of the
Group that actually would have been achieved had the acquisition
been completed on 1st January, 2007, nor is it intended to be a
projection of future results.

Green Global Resources Limited 4k B IRERE RARA A

31. W hPH B 2 ) ()

(a) (#&)
B5E

1. RFPERBEURERBEENR_ZZLF
ZA-+ERZAYE  BHEEEEFE
HEITZAHEERE -

2. WBEAHA-_ZZTLF_A+-AZEE
W% + 18,000,000 TR HRALEEE
IB(Z4% - BRGreen Global Licorice AU B&
TR BB+l B 2 B RGRE R T
A HA7,000,000/8 7T 2 BEBEE AT ©

Green Global Licorice AE R E &£ E
AIESEEAEECEXBIEERE
Bt WAARERZ BRI REBA R E L
12,030,000/ 7T

WUEN —ZTT+tF— B —HxK » 81
SUHAEEAFEEETENEATE
I ¥ A& B 5 N B E 8L 4912,030,000 74
TTafl o ZEHEERERFEBRERZ - T
— A BRWMEBER ST F—A—
AEK AEBEEREBZ WA RES -

INFERIRELE 2 TER -



31. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(b)

On 2nd October, 2007, the Group acquired 100% of the
share capital of Green Global Salix for a consideration of
HK$190,594,000. This acquisition had been accounted for
using the purchase method. The amount of goodwill arising as
a result of the acquisition was approximately HK$114,461,000.

31. WP B 4 B ()
by RZZEZTLF+THZH  AEEIZRK
&190,594,000/8 7T Y2 Green Global
Salix 100% &2 - ZIEWHEEH A
WWEEEARR - ZAWEBEEEEY
114,461,000 7T - B EZEBYIE 2

The relevant information about the acquisition was as follows: MHEERIT -
Acquiree’s
carrying
amount
before Fair value
combination adjustment Fair value
HWUEE A A
REeBtaT 2
BRE S AFEAE A¥E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
(Note 1)
(PfFET)
Net assets acquired: FTENFEE -
Collection and cultivation W = % s fE
rights - 101,511 101,511
Other receivables H fth fEULFRIB 22 - 22
Other payables Hoth FE T RRIR (22) = (22)
Deferred tax liability EEFIEAE - (25,378) (25,378)
- 76,133 76,133
Goodwill RS 114,461
Total consideration (Note 2) BARE(EE2) 190,594
Satisfied by: AR
Cash e 70,000
Convertible loan notes AT E R EE (MEE3)
(Note 3) 120,000
Transaction costs RGEA 594
Total consideration of the Wb a8
acquisition 190,594
Net cash outflow arising on W B EE A 2 30 4 i R R
acquisition:
Cash consideration paid EREERE 70,000
Transaction costs paid BRNRZKA 594
70,594
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 HZ —ZZ \F+_A=+—HI-FE

31. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(b) (continued)
Notes:

1. The fair value adjustment represented the fair value of the collection
and cultivation rights as at 2nd October, 2007 which was determined

by reference to the valuation carried out by Greater China.

2. Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement dated 20th July, 2007
between the Group and the former shareholders of Green Global Salix
(the “Former Shareholders”), the Former Shareholders had guaranteed
to the Group a minimum profit generated by Green Global Salix for
the year ending 31st December, 2008 (the “Profit Guarantee”). If
Green Global Salix failed to meet the Profit Guarantee, the Former
Shareholders will refund part of the consideration to the Group and
the consideration will be adjusted accordingly. Details of this Profit
Guarantee had been set out in the Company’s circular dated 16th

August, 2007.

3. On 2nd October, 2007, the Group issued HK$120,000,000 convertible
loan notes at zero coupon interest rates as part of the consideration for

the acquisition of Green Global Licorice.

Green Global Salix had no significant contribution to the Group’s
turnover and contributed approximately HK$673,000 profit to the
Group’s loss before taxation for the period between the date of

acquisition and the balance sheet date.

If the acquisition had been completed on 1st January, 2007, there
would have been no significant impact on the Group’s turnover
and loss for the year. The pro forma information is for illustrative
purposes only and is not necessarily an indication of revenue and
results of the Group that actually would have been achieved had the
acquisition been completed on 1st January, 2007, nor is it intended

to be a projection of future results.

Green Global Resources Limited £k 53R ERE R AR A A

31. W hPH B 2 ) ()

(b) (#&)
PR

1. AFEARBRERBFEENR_ZTLF
TAZBZAFE  H2EREFTEER
PDREITZ FHHERE -

2. IREBEAEEEGreen Global SalixZ AIA%E
(TR ASA-ZSZT+F+ A
Z+HZEEHZ  AIRREANEERE
Green Global Salix?EZE ff/\¢+:
B=1+— B LtEEEAREERN ([ HFIR
& 1) o fHiGreen Global Salixk &3 :'J)‘ﬁTﬁU
RiE - IR AGRARBIRIEH S 1{@; '
MAREBINEEEAE - BFIRBFHBEHN
FiN/N Tﬁﬁjr'ﬁ*lflﬁﬂi%_qyii/\ﬁ"i'/\
H 238K °

3. RZEZTLE+ A EI C RNE BT
120,000,000 B T2 E B AR ERE
& fEBUEEGreen GIobaI Licorice Z &7
RiE-

Green Global Salix PR W HEIZA&E A 1
HEHAEBzEXBIES AR
W AAERE 2B A EIB SR & AL
673,000/8 7T ©

N —ZTTtF— B —HxK 81

SUAEBMAFTELEERBBEREXR
FE o ZEHBEEEERBRE  T—
FEAERMIBBER TS +F—F—H
T ANERBERERZRARES N
FERIRELE ZTEA -



31. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(@

On 17th December, 2007, the Group acquired 80% of the
share capital of Lao-Agro for a consideration of HK$7,800,000.
This acquisition had been accounted for using the purchase
method. The amount of goodwill arising as a result of the
acquisition was HK$7,800,000. The relevant information about
the acquisition is as follows:

31. W RSP B 2 ) ()

(0

R-ZBZL+E+-A++H X&EH
% X {8 7,800,000 7% 7T Y2 B Lao-Agro
80% M A o ZIBUWE B RAUWEEEA
AR o RZTHUCHE & A 752 7,800,000 %
7T o BRAZIBNEE 2 HEERIT -

HK$'000
FET
Total assets BEE -
Total liabilities FEN=E -
Net assets acquired i N FEE -
Goodwill RS 7,800
Total consideration BB 7,800
Satisfied by: YTHRIAR :
Cash e 7,800
Net cash outflow arising on WS EE ZIRE MR -
acquisition:
Cash consideration paid EffIRERE 7,800

Lao-Agro had no significant contribution to the Group’s
turnover and the loss before taxation for the period between
the date of acquisition and the balance sheet date.

If the acquisition had been completed on 1st January, 2007,
there would have been no significant impact on the Group’s
turnover and loss for the year. The pro forma information is for
illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily an indication of
revenue and results of the Group that actually would have been
achieved had the acquisition been completed on 1st January,
2007, nor is it intended to be a projection of future results.

Lao-AgropA I fiE H BiZ= 455 B 1 HAfA
HAEE EFBRRBAIEEYT &
EXRER -

HKER _—FTLF—A—B=K
BT EHAKREAFELEBENER
EREATE - ZFEHEZEREHRS
ARE T ErABERHEBEER =
ETLF-A—BREK  AEEER
ERZWARFE - MIFRKERELZ
FERI
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE—ZTZTN\F+-A=+—HILFE

32. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 32. HEME AT
(@) As referred to Note 13, on 31st March, 2008, the Group (@) WM FFE 13 - R_ZTZT )\ F
discontinued its real estate consultancy services operation at =A=+—8 ' "&EERZRRE
the time of disposal of GP Group. GP Group was disposed of to %9 4,267,000 B L (HHE R AR
an independent third party for a consideration of approximately 4,000,0007T) [A—H WL E=F HE
HK$4,267,000 (equivalent to RMB4,000,000). The relevant GPE= B 2 By 4% | F 4% 8 EL W) 35 B s R 755
information of the disposed was as follows: 7% - HER@EERNT
HK$'000
FAT
Net liabilities disposed of: it EaEFE
Plant and equipment B K 5%t 622
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H A Y GRIE 2,928
Bank balances and cash RITEHRKEIRS 347
Trade and other payables B 5 R EMEN IR (5,246)
Net liabilities at date of disposal REEEHZBEFE (1,349)
Exchange reserves realised on Hj’%ﬂﬁ% A IR 2 B N R
disposal of subsidiaries 277
Goodwill at date of disposal of REEERIEERE B 2 HE
the discontinued operation 5,034
Gain on disposal HE & 169
Total consideration mR(E 4,131
Satisfied by cash AR & 15 4,267
Less: Transaction costs W R (136)
4,131
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEELEZRERAEEE !
Cash consideration received SWEESRE 4,267
Transaction costs paid ERRZZA (136)
Bank balances and cash disposed of  R1T4E88 R FTHER S (347)
3,784
The impact of Grand Panorama Limited on the Group's results Grand Panorama Limited B ﬁﬁ&iﬁﬁ
and cash flows in the current and prior periods is disclosed in Y AEBEERBReRELFE
Note 13. AR EE 138 %R -
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32. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(b) At 31st May, 2007, the Group disposed of its entire interest
in an inactive subsidiary, China Action Development Limited
to two independent third parties for a consideration of
approximately HK$248,000. The relevant information about the

32. HEMB AT (@)
by R=ZZEZE+LFRA=1+—H &%
& 2 X 8 49248,000 7 7T [A] /A 4 78 32
FE=HHEHIETRME R T China
Action Development Limited ° B B:%

disposal was as follows: HHEZHEAERNT
HK$'000
FAT
Net assets disposed of: & & EFE -

Prepayment T 5RIE 249
Loss on disposal HEEE (1)
Total consideration BRE 248
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEELEZRERAEEE -

Cash consideration received BEWESRE 248

The subsidiary disposed of during the year ended 31st
December, 2007 had no significant impact on the turnover and
results of the Group.

33. DEREGISTRATION OF A SUBSIDIARY
In April 2008, the Group deregistered one of its wholly owned
subsidiaries, TVH Cyber Technology Limited.

FEENBRARARBE_ZTTLF
T A=+—BUEFEIENAEE
ZEXBNEEENEATE -

33. —[FHF 8 2 B R iH i

R-ZZBT/N\FOA  AEEBUEZEMEH
—REEMBRAREZEHBHEARA
ﬁjo

HK$'000
FHET

Net liabilities at the date of deregistration: REUEFME B 2 BEF5E -
Other payables H A f& < FRIE (283)
Gain on deregistration BUHGMEE 2 AT 283

The subsidiary deregistered during the year ended 31st December,
2008 had no significant impact on the turnover and results of the
Group.

EECHEMZMBRARRBE_TTNEF
+=A _+*Eiifjfﬂw¢$%2%
RELREEREATE
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 HZ —ZZ \F+_A=+—HI-FE

34. RELATED PARTIES AND CONNECTED PARTIES 34. 5lEATREEALES

TRANSACTIONS
Except as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial MIFEFERREMITOWEESEIN » KE
statements, the Group entered into the following significant related BEEMEATETATERBEALT
party transactions with related parties: R
(a) Loan from a substantial shareholder (a) — BFERRZER
During the year ended 31st December, 2008, the Group BE-_ZZN\NF+-_A=+—HIt
borrowed a loan amounting to approximately HK$25,000,000 FE  AEBEARAIEFTERR
from Integrated Asset, a substantial shareholder of the Integrated Assetf&ER%)25,000,000/8 7T
Company. The loan was unsecured, carried interest at B - ZEBERAEIRW  RBRITH
prevailing market rate and was fully repaid during the year. In BARHFBUWARNEERGES o
addition, the Group paid interest of approximately HK$263,000 AN+ A5 B B 5 F A A Integrated
to Integrated Asset during the year. Asset {5 #J263,000/8 7L 2 FI8. ©
(b) Compensation of key management personnel (b) EEEEAERE
The remuneration of the directors of the Company and other ARNBESENEMTEEEABRF
members of key management during the year was as follows: AzMemT :
2008 2007
—2EBN\F ZETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FA&TT
Short-term benefits SRR R 5,955 6,197
Post-employment benefits BEER 1212 F 49 49
Share-based payments SGENEN 2,411 801
8,415 7,047
The remuneration of directors of the Company and key ARRIZEEREBITHRAB ZH A
executives is determined by the remuneration committee having EMESSREARE T Z2XRE LTS
regard to the performance of individuals and market trends. BEET -
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35. COMMITMENTS
At the balance sheet date, the Group had the following
commitments:

(a) Commitments under operating leases

(b)

(c)

The Group as lessee

The Group leases certain of its office premises, staff quarters
and property agency branches under operating lease
arrangements. Lease for properties are negotiated for a term
ranging from two months to three years and rentals are fixed.

At the balance sheet date, the Group had commitments
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

(a) BEHEAE

AL BERATNA
AEERBEEHERHHEEST
BTEYE BIBSRMERES
7 MEHEPRERAMEAZE=FT
E MmESREE -

REER - AEERET A REEEE
HETENTHRB 2 RERERE
B

operating leases which fall due as follows: EEEOR
2008 2007
—EENF —ET+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHIT

Land and buildings T REF

Within one year —F R 1,510 2,547
In the second to fifth year inclusive FEZFERTF (REEHEMT) 1,338 2,195
2,848 4,742

Capital commitment for acquisition of intangible

(b) WIBELEE 2 EXRERE

assets
2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHER FAT
Contracted but not provided for BRTAEREME 14,751 -

Other commitment for an
cooperation project

investment in a

(0 RE-HEAHFERE ZHMEE

2008 2007

—EENF —ET+F

HK$’'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Contracted but not provided for EETAE R 23,400 =
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE—ZTZTN\F+-A=+—HILFE

36.BALANCE SHEET INFORMATION OF THE 36.Z.F&E&EXSIH

COMPANY
2008 2007
—EENF —EELF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
MIE FET FET
Non-current assets IEmBEE
Plant and equipment W K 5k A 799 744
Investments in subsidiaries RB AT ZIHE 67,631 39,631
68,430 40,375
Current assets mENEE
Other receivables H b fE U KT8 1,186 670
Amounts due from subsidiaries NG E e (a) 236,734 313,471
Bank balances and cash ﬁETTmnﬁ%&fﬁﬁ 29,092 2,893
267,012 317,034
Current liabilities mBEAE
Other payables H b e~ FRIE 2,600 4,275
Amounts due to subsidiaries N YNGR (a) 2,003 3,834
4,603 8,109
Net current assets MEVE EFE 262,409 308,925
330,839 349,300
Capital and reserves BRI E
Share capital A& AR 253,485 103,526
Reserves w1 (b) 9,671 169,896
330,839 349,300
Total equity R 263,156 273,422
Non-current liabilities IERBARE
Convertible loan notes RIS E R EE 67,683 75,878
330,839 349,300
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36.BALANCE SHEET INFORMATION OF THE 36. &2 \FFE&GFXTIHmWm)
COMPANY (continued)

(a) Amounts due from/to subsidiaries (a) FEU FENHIB A TIRE
The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable REFIHABIE R RARENR
on demand. The fair values of the amounts at the balance sheet RS c ARZEZERE ARG
date was approximated to the corresponding carrying amounts H . MARSEA Y A EHERS
due to their short-term maturity. A o
(b) Reserves (b) &
Convertible Share
Share  Contributed bonds options  Accumulated
premium surplus reserve reserve losses Total
Gk BRE
R EE - ON:4: RHRE 13 RitER ok
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERL THL TETL THEx TEL TEL
At 1st January, 2007 RZFZt+E-H—-H 342,547 39,431 - 1,505 (352,735) 30,748
Issue of convertible BIARERZE
loan notes - - 29,225 - - 29,225
Issue of shares upon AATEER TR
— placement of shares ~RERH 112,400 = = = = 112,400
- conversion of — RATRRER
convertible loan notes Zi 18,217 = (5,358) = = 12,859
- exercise of share options ~ —1T{FBERIE 5233 - - (2,769) - 2,464
~ transaction costs —BIIRDEGZ
attributable to issue RAKA
of shares (2,670) - = - - (2,670)
Recognition of equity-settled  HERRALE R
share based payment IDE - - - 18,372 - 18,372
Loss for the year FRER - - - - (33,502) (33,502)
At 31st December, 2007 RZBZ+ETZA=+—H 4715727 39,431 23,867 17,108 (386,237) 169,896
Issue of shares upon FA T SRR TR
~ placement of shares -RERH 29,850 = = = = 29,850
- conversion of —~FEABRRER
convertible loan notes Zi 15,496 - (4,469) - - 11,027
- exercise of share options ~ —1T{FBE R IE 85 - - (45) - 40
- rights issue — R 10,139 - - - - 10,139
~ transaction costs —BIRHEGZ
attributable to issue RPHA
of shares (5,197) - - - - (5,197)
Recognition of equity-settled  #ZAMR AL E R
share based payments IDE - - - 7,912 - 7912
Loss for the year FRER - - - - (213,996) (213,99)
At 31st December, 2008 WZEZ\F+=-A=+—-H 526,100 39,431 19,398 24,975 (600,233) 9,671
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 HZ —ZZ \F+_A=+—HI-FE

37.INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
At the balance sheet date, the Company has interests in the
following principal subsidiaries:

Nominal value of

Bt

37. RMB ARZIRE
REER - ARERTHIEZHE A AR

Place of paid-up share/ Proportion of
Company incorporation  registered capital ownership interest  Principal activities
BrRBG/
AL L HAfER
AT ok ZHE BERRELS TEEK
2008 2007
—EENE —TTHF
Held directly: BEERH:
Technology Venture British Virgin US$1,000 100 100  Investment holding
Investments Limited Islands (“BVI") 1,000% T LB
HERK
HE
Green Global Bioenergy BVI US$1 100 - Investment holding
Limited EERTES (E RERR
Green Global BVI us$1 100 - Investment holding
Agro-Conservation HBRIHE E B
Resources Limited
1t R IEAD The PRC Registered Capital 100 - Investment holding
BRAT R HK$28,000,000 REERK
AT E A
28,000,000/ 7T
Held indirectly: BERA
Sequent China/ Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 100  Distribution of information technology
Hong Kong Limited BB 10,0008 7T products and provision of computer

Green Global Resources Limited £k 53R ERE R AR A A

technology services
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37.INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Nominal value of

37. RIEB AR Z 8T (&)

Place of paid-up share/ Proportion of
Company incorporation  registered capital ownership interest  Principal activities
BRR®B
Ealljo A HfER
A ok ZHEE BHRRELS TEEK
2008 2007
—EENE C—TTLF
Held indirectly: (continued) fE#EE : (B)
Technology Venture (Software) BVI US$1,000 100 100  Investment holding
Holdings Limited RBRY 1,000%7T REER
i
Topasia Computer Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 100  Distribution of information technology
BREKERAA B 10,0007 7T products and provision of computer
technology services
DI E R E m R IR E R RS
Topsoft Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 100  Distribution of information technology
RERHBRAR a5 10,0007 70 products and provision of computer
technology services
7 $HE ARHRE fm IR PR A B M B AR 7
Topasia Tech (Shanghai) The PRC Registered Capital 100 100  Distribution of information technology
Limited® US$3,800,000 products and provision of computer
BaREE (E8) H A EAR technology services
ARAR® 3,800,000 7T 7 34 B A BHRE fn R R B R Bl AR 75
Topasia IT (Shanghai) The PRC Registered Capital 100 100  Provision of systems integration and
Limited® US$1,000,000 maintenance services
BRESHMERE (LE)  #E &R REZREK RRERE
BRRE @ 1,000,000 7T
Acacia Asia Partners Limited ~ BVI us$1 100 100  Investment holding
RBRUHS (E REEKR
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 HZ —ZZ \F+_A=+—HI-FE

37.INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Nominal value of

37. RIEB AR Z R T (#|)

Place of paid-up share/ Proportion of
Company incorporation  registered capital ownership interest  Principal activities
BRR®B
Ealiio A HfER
A ok ZHEE BHERRELS TEXK
2008 2007
“EENE C—TTLF

Held indirectly: (continued) FIE#EH : (8)

Acacia Asia Partners The PRC Registered Capital 100 100 Network technology,

Limited® US$140,000 software development and provision

AT R E R R H HFER of technical support services
ARAR® 140,000% 7T REEM - B3 IR RBITSR

PR %

Green Global Licorice BVI Us$1 100 100  Management and cultivation of licorice
China Limited EBRZES E ERRIEEHE

Green Global Salix BVI US$1 100 100 Management and cultivation of
China Limited EERTES (ES licorice and salix

BEREETERDW

Bioenergy Promotion Limited  BVI Us$1 100 100  Research and development and
(formerly known as (EV cultivation of raw materials for
China Bioenergy Holdings the bio-energy industry
Limited) e REEEDRRITEZ R
(R1%8China Bioenergy EBRLHS
Holdings Limited)

Hainan Venture Zhengke The PRC Registered capital 90 90  Nursery and research and
Bioenergy Development RMB50,000,000 development centre for jatropha
Company Limited HMEAR i 1 B B B A

BELEERAEYEER H ARE
ERBRRA 50,000,0007T

Lao Agro Promotion Lao People’s US$1,150,000 80 80  Nursery and research and
Co., Ltd Democratic 1,150,0003 7T development centre for jatropha

Republic i e B B B A
ZWAR
REHFE
# Wholly-owned foreign enterprises. # BRINERE
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37.

38.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affect the results for the year or
formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding as at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

(i) On 16th January, 2008, convertible loan notes of
HK$18,350,000 was converted into 32,363,315 ordinary shares
of HK$0.10 each in the Company.

(i) Included in trade and other payables as at 31st December,
2008 is an amount of approximately HK$7,623,000 unpaid
consideration for the acquisition of intangible assets.

(iii) In January 2007, the Group disposed of its remaining shares in
ChinaCast Communication Holdings Limited for a consideration
of approximately HK$69,597,000. On the same day, the Group
acquired 1,551,771 shares in ChinaCast Education Corporation

for a consideration the same amount.

(iv) In October 2007, the Company issued convertible loan notes of
HK$120,000,000 which was used as partial consideration for

the acquisition of Green Global Salix.

(v) During the year ended 31st December, 2007, convertible loan
notes of approximately HK$ 22,000,000 was converted into
38,800,705 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the company.

37. RIEB AR Z 8T (&)
ERAINARBMNBRARAREERRE
R EARBEAREANBRASEEE
FEEABO AR - BEFRL > BHE
B AR FER<SRIBENILE -

38.

BENBAREAEMNRNEEASFAE
fAlBs B 2 B5RE 55

EXFREXH

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

R=—ZEN \NE—-A+XH
18,350,000 L2 AJ MR EREED
Hi%/532,363,315 B EE0. 1078
T AN R E B o

R-ZBEENFE+-A=+—8 - #
KWHEFEENAINZRED
7,623,000 L hEt AE 5 R E M fE
3838 ©

RZZZ+LF—H  AEERKE
#)69,597,000 % 7T i1 & L PT#E 88 T
ChinaCast Communication Holdings
Limited B 2 = R B + 2N & B A48
A X & W B ChinaCast Education
Corporation 1,551,771 J&B&15 °

RZZEZE+F+H - AQARELT
120,000,000 BT 2 AT | B R E
B - {EAYEEGreen Global SalixZ B
ARAE -

REE-_ET+F+-_A=+—81
FZ - 422,000,000 7T 2 AT AR E
FREEIE W H#ARK 38,800,705 I B A% HE
0108 L2 A REEBE -
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39.

40.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
On 21st January, 2009, the Company announced a proposed capital
reorganisation by way of:

(i) a share consolidation of every ten (10) existing shares of
HK$0.10 each into one (1) consolidated share of HK$1.00
("Consolidated Shares”);

(i) the reduction of the issued share capital of the Company
through a cancellation of the paid-up capital of the Company
to the extent of HK$0.99 on each of the issued Consolidated
Shares so that the nominal value of each issued consolidated
share will be reduced from HK$1.00 to HK$0.01;

the subdivision of each authorised but unissued Consolidated
Share of HK$1.00 (including the unissued shares arising from
the capital reduction) into 100 new shares of HK$0.01 each;

(iii)

(iv) the cancellation of approximately HK$521,158,000 standing
to the credit of the share premium account of the Company
as at 30th June, 2008 based on the latest published financial
statements of the Company for the six months ended 30th

June, 2008;

(v) the transfer of the credit arising from the capital reduction
and the share premium cancellation to the contributed surplus
account of the Company; and

(vi) the utilisation of the contributed surplus account of the

Company to offset the entire balance of the accumulated

losses.

The shareholders of the Company approved the proposed capital
reorganisation during a special general meeting held on the 6th
March, 2009 whereby the capital reorganisation became effective
on 9th March, 2009. Immediately after the capital reorganisation
became effective, the total number of issued new shares was
253,484,525 new shares.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES
Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified to confirm with
current year's presentation.

Green Global Resources Limited £k (53R ERE R AR A A

39.

40.

HHA®ER
RZZTZNF—AZ+—H XRREM
BBEB T ETIRAEA

(i) BETOOKREREEI0ETLE
BRI EHR/—()ESREET.008
et ((&6HKD])

(i) BBRSREFETEHRH0.99ET
AR RBMERA - BEBRE BT
AR EE R 1.00/8 TTEIE Z0.01
BT REMEIR A DR BB TIRA

S EREE.008 T 2 A EB AT
HEHBRG (RIEERRAEIRES 2K
BEITRD ) R4 A 100 B AR TEI{E0.01
BT

(iii)

FHEHRZZEZENFEAAA=ZTHEAR
AElFBTIEEE ST NES
A=1THLEARBERAUBRERITE
ZARRNRIBROBER ZERSEHRY
521,158,000/ 7T

(v)  FERRAHIR MR R EEE 2
REBREARBZHABRSRE &

BRARRE 2 A BHIREHERETE
B2 EPAERR

(vi)

ARAIRERZZEZNF=ZANHETZ
RS ARG EHERBRAZAR - KA
EHEAMR_ZEENF=ZANBEH - B
BERR A EHAERIE - BEBRITHROBEA
253,484,525%1/% 17 °

LT
ETHBREHEEEHSE
ZE2HAA e

NERAFE
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